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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statategwhich are subject to the safe harbor provisioreated by the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such“expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “could,” “would,” “may,”
“intends,” “targets” and similar expressions or vations of such words are intended to identify farg«looking statements, but are not the
exclusive means of identifying forward-looking staénts in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the 'WaiiReport”). The identification of
certain statements as “forward-looking” is not imded to mean that other statements not specifitddigtified are not forward-looking. All
statements other than statements about historazasfare statements that could be deemed forwarkiflg statements, including, but not
limited to, statements that relate to our futureeeues, product development, demand, acceptanceariett share, growth rate,
competitiveness, gross margins, levels of resealetelopment and other related costs, expendittinesputcome or effects of and expenses
related to litigation and administrative proceedingelated to our patents, our intent to enforce imtellectual property, our ability to license
our intellectual property, our ability to monetittee DigitalOptics intellectual property, our abifito identify and effect third-party investments
or joint ventures, the effect of cost-saving measutax expenses, cash flows, our ability to ligtécand recover the carrying value of our
investments, our management's plans and objedtiverir current and future operations, our plans fuarterly and special dividends and
stock repurchases, the levels of customer speradingsearch and development activities, generaheatic conditions, and the sufficiency of
financial resources to support future operations @apital expenditure:

” ” ” " w

Although forwarelooking statements in this Annual Report refleéet good faith judgment of our management, suckrs@tts can only be
based on facts and factors currently known by wsmsequently, forward-looking statements are inhtyesubject to risks, uncertainties, and
changes in condition, significance, value and ¢ffiecluding those discussed below under the heptiisk Factors” within Item 1A of this
Annual Report and other documents we file from torgme with the Securities and Exchange Commisgi®“SEC”), such as our quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q and our current reports on Fo8-K. Such risks, uncertainties and changes imitimm, significance, value and effect
could cause our actual results to differ materidigm those expressed herein and in ways not rpdalieseeable. Readers are urged not to
place undue reliance on these forw-looking statements, which speak only as of the dathis Annual Report and are based on infornmatio
currently and reasonably known to us. We undertakebligation to revise or update any forward-laukistatements in order to reflect any
event or circumstance that may arise after the déthis Annual Report. Readers are urged to cdlsefeview and consider the various
disclosures made in this Annual Report, which gbtetm advise interested parties of the risks aruddiss that may affect our business, financia
condition, results of operations and prospects.

Iltem 1. Business

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 3a#6hard Parkway, San Jose, California 95134. €laphone number is (408) 321-6000. We
maintain a website at www.tessera.cdrne reference to our website address does notittdashcorporation by reference of the information
contained on this website.

Tessera, the Tessera log®@A, OptiML, DOC, the DOC logo, FotoNation, the Bblation logo, FaceTools, FacePower, FotoSavvy,rsas
the Invensas logo and SHELLCASE are trademarkegistered trademarks of the Company or its afiiatompanies in the U.S. and other
countries. All other company, brand and producteamay be trademarks or registered trademarksofréspective companies.

In this Annual Report, the “Company,” “we,” “us” dfiour” refer to Tessera Technologies, Inc., whigierates its business through its
subsidiaries. Unless specified otherwise, the tir@mesults in this Annual Report are those of@wenpany and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis.

Overview
Tessera Technologies, Inc. is a holding companly eyterating subsidiaries in two segments: IntaligicProperty and DigitalOptics.
The Intellectual Property segment, managed by Tasaeellectual Property Corp., generates revenum fnanufacturers and other

implementers that use our technology. The segmehtdes Tessera, Inc. and Invensas Corporationghisas"). Tessera, Inc. pioneered chip-
scale packaging solutions, which it licenses to the
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semiconductor industry. Invensas develops and eegjiiterconnect solutions and intellectual propirtareas such as mobile computing and
communications, memory and data storage, and 3dyiated Circuit ("3DIC") technologies.

The DigitalOptics segment has undergone many clsathgeng 2013 and 2014 through the date of thisntefyhe following restructuring and
other activities have occurred:

»  We sold our Micro-Optics business based in Gher] North Carolina. Originally purchased in 2086s business focused on
diffractive optical elements, refractive opticatelents, and integrated micro-optic sub-assembiestetained ownership of the
related land and building and certain fabricatieseds for this facility, which is being leasedhe buyer of the business. We are
currently pursuing a sale of these assets andftirer they are classified as held for sale onDmogember 31, 2013 balance sheet. Fo
further discussion, see Note 6 Biscontinued Operation§ Note 8" Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assétand Note 15-
"Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assets @ilder Chargesin the Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemeXitsather
assets of this business were sold.

We closed our leased manufacturing facility ruBai, China (the "Zhuhai Facility") and consolethbur manufacturing capabilities
into Taiwan. By closing the Zhuhai Facility, ourategy was to no longer supply the whole cameraueo@®ur primary focus was to
develop the mems|cam actuator, the imaging softaaglauser applications, and on manufacturing apglgiing only the lens barrel.
As a result of this closure, certain assets irzimghai Facility were considered impaired or writafhentirely. For further discussion
of affected assets, see Note 6DiScontinued Operation§ " Note 8—" Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assétand Note 15-
"Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assets @lder Chargesfin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

* InJanuary 2014, we announced a restructuririgeDigitalOptics segment to cease all remainirgufiacturing operations.
Therefore, we will no longer pursue a strategy ahofacturing and selling mems|cam products. Asqfdttese efforts, we are
undertaking a workforce reduction of over 300 engpls and are in the process of closing our fagdlith Arcadia, California,
Rochester, New York and in Taiwan and Japan. Asalfr of these closures, certain assets were iegbairwere written off entirely
2013 and we will incur additional restructuring asttler charges in the first half of 2014. For fertdiscussion of affected assets, <
Note 8—" Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assétand Note 15- "Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assetd &ther
Charges'in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2014, we plan to continue the DigitalOptics ended image processing development operations la$eaimania and Ireland (which
includes FaceTools™, face beautification, red-@yeaval, FacePoweél' , FotoSavvy", High Dynamic Range ("HDR"), panorama, and irr
stabilization products), which are not impactedhssy restructuring and workforce reduction. We rédethis business as our FotoNation
business unit. Additionally, we plan to seek waysionetize the DigitalOptics intellectual propeptyrtfolio and technology, through a sale,
licensing or other means.

In this document, the operations and financial ltesaf the Micro-Optics business and the Zhuhailfgoutlined above will be considered
discontinued operations. All other financial respibcluding the mems|cam operations noted abegdéneluded in continuing operations.

Our segments were determined based upon the marwbich our management viewed and evaluated oeratipns for the period reported.
As our business grows and evolves, our managemaytchange their views of our business operatioegnfent information in Part Il,

Iltem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtion and Results of Operatioaad in Note 14— Segment and Geograpt
Information” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateméniscorporated herein by reference and is presepér the authoritative
guidance for segment reporting.

Intellectual Property Segment

Tessera, Inc.'s research and development ledndisant innovations in semiconductor packagindghtemogy. Semiconductor packaging
creates the mechanical and electrical connectibmea®n semiconductor chips and systems such as ¢ers@and communication equipment,
often via connection to printed circuit boards. Pétented these innovations, often referred to gsstale packaging, which were widely
adopted in the industry. The wave of adoption wégally led by Intel Corporation, and over timeany semiconductor companies and
outsourced assembly and test companies adopteedmeology and entered into license agreements™esisera, Inc.

5
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Invensas, founded in 2011, is a wholly owned suasidbf Tessera Technologies, Inc. and a leadsemiconductor interconnect innovation
and intellectual property licensing. Invensas irateg in three primary areas: (i) DRAM and Flash (i) mobile computing and
communications, and (iii) 3DIC technology. Inverisangineering teams develop and prototype thedetdogies in extensive assembly and
test laboratories, as well as performing full pretcheliability testing and acceptance testing. Bilding collaborative partnerships with world-
class manufacturing companies and high-volume eggi suppliers, Invensas then licenses these tegynsolutions to original equipment
manufacturers ("OEMs"), original design manufaatsi(¢ODMs"), and integrated device manufactureB§IE"), and supports the technology
transfer at the customer sites.

Within each of these three Invensas sub-portfglioesmory, mobile, and 3DIC), Invensas has createdifip product solutions that address
critical needs in the market. For example, XD Invensas’s multi-chip DRAM technology, was desidrio provide a bridge between single-
chip DRAM and 3DIC DRAM, and it has gained initadoption with OEMs and memory module builders. B{Bdnd Via Array), one of
Invensas’s mobile packaging solutions, addressesdld for bandwidth and power reduction in mathéeices, and Invensas with its partners
are working on developing high-volume equipment pratesses to support mass adoption. Finally, lsagimnovates in the 3DIC space.
3DIC, which incorporates through Silicon Vias, iglely expected to be the next major inflection éméconductor packaging, and applicabl
multiple markets, including networking, data st@agomputing and mobility.

Customers:

Our semiconductor packaging technologies have beemsed to more than 70 companies. These custdnusle Intel Corporation, Samsu
Electronics Co. Ltd and SK hynix Inc., among othéfsre than 100 billion semiconductor chips havigséd with our intellectual property.

Research & Development:

As of December 31, 2013, our subsidiaries compyie Intellectual Property segment employed 3jinerers and technologists devoted to
semiconductor packaging and other semiconductbntdogies. Research and development and otheedetaists for the Intellectual Property
segment were approximately $25.9 million, $32.8iarland $28.8 million for the years ended Decen8igr2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Intellectual Property Portfolio:

As of December 31, 2013, our subsidiaries compgitte Intellectual Property segment owned approteipd.,225 United States patents and
patent applications, as well as approximately @8ifn patents and patent applications. The expiratates of our issued patents range from
2014 to 2032.

Tessera Intellectual Property Corp. evaluateslettlal property portfolios in the field of advadcgemiconductor packaging and fields bey
semiconductor packaging technologies, such asitriydechnologies. Our evaluation criteria for patacquisitions include, for example: the
size of the portfolio, the sales and profitabitifythe relevant products, our view of the prospefthe market for the relevant products, legal
criteria and our assessment of the likelihood d@éisling negotiated licenses.

Strategy:

We have developed significant capabilities in |I&iag, technical analysis and license administraéi®me have sought reasonable royalties
from companies that adopted our technologies. titiat to licensing the Tessera, Inc. portfolice tintellectual Property segment also license
technology developed and acquired by Invensas, asithe Invensas license agreements announce&kiktynix Inc. in January 2013 and
Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. in January 2014.

Reasonable royalties for our patented inventioasast secured through negotiated license agresiameby avoiding the uncertainties of
litigation and increasing the likelihood of our ologies being adopted.

Obtaining reasonable royalties for use of our eimgrtechnologies is generally dependent on:
. Explaining the benefits of new technology, inéhglany size, power and performance benefits;

6
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. Explaining the value proposition over existingatternative technologies;

. Explaining the manufacturability of the techndkxy

. Defeating any bias against externally developddt®ns; and

. Providing technical and market data supportirggrtiyalties we are seeking.

Although our Tessera Intellectual Property Congerlising team is engaged with many semiconductopaaias and Tessera, Inc. and Invensa
have licensed many semiconductor companies toeshnblogies, some of the companies that use oenteat technologies have not
voluntarily entered into license agreements. Assallt, we have developed significant abilities lempexecute and sustain litigation activities.
We believe that holding a significant cash and exghivalents position is essential to maintainimg ¢redibility of our litigation capabilities.
Some of Tessera, Inc.’s extensively litigated pEtempired in 2010, but Tessera, Inc. continuesdmtain legal actions seeking damages for
past infringement of these expired patents. Tess®raand Invensas also maintain legal actiorsedlto unexpired patents. See Part 1, ltem .
Legal Proceedings

Competition:

We compete with internal design groups at semicotdunanufacturers, assemblers, and electronic oaeng and system manufacturers, wh
may create their own packaging solutions that caenpéh our technologies that we license. We atsmefa form of competition known as
royalty stacking. Royalty stacking refers to sitoas in which a single product potentially infrirsgen many patents, and thus may bear
multiple royalty burdens. Our customers’ willingeesnd ability to pay reasonable royalties is, int,@fected by the number of patents
infringed by a particular customer product, theamniration of the holders of those patents, théoowsr’s cost of licensing those patents, and
the profitability of the infringing product. We al€ompete with other firms in acquiring patent fadids or partnering with owners of patent
portfolios. The key competitive factors includeditial resources and willingness to pay, experiempatent licensing, reputation as a licer
litigation history, and licensing strategy for thgbject portfolio.

DigitalOptics Segment

We have historically invested significant resourttesugh acquisitions and research and developmenir DigitalOptics business segment,
which investments resulted in an industry leadiagfplio of imaging and optical technologies. Thgbuour FotoNation team, which is
comprised of world-class image scientists and acedmathematicians, we continue to innovate in gprbdnd system-level imaging
technologies. While we announced in January 20a#vitle are ceasing our manufacturing efforts wigpeet to our mems|cam products, we
plan to seek ways to monetize the DigitalOpticellattual property portfolio and technology, throumsale, licensing or other means. Our
DigitalOptics patent portfolio consists primarilj assets that address image processing, MEMS andreamodules technologies.

FotoNation Solutions:

FotoNation’s software solutions for mobile imaginglude its FaceTool8", FotoSavvy™, FacePowel", face beautification, red-eye
removal, HDR, panorama, and image stabilizatiornpcts.

FaceTools" provides face-oriented imaging technology sucteas fietection/tracking, smile/blink detection, es@removal, face
recognition and face beautification. When combinéth our hardware acceleration technology, thegrerince of these applications
for both video and still images is enhanced.

» Face beautification allows users to automatyoatihance portraits (still and video) with featusash as skin toning, face slimming, eye
brightening, and teeth whitening.

» FotoSavvyVis a solution that enables the novice user of atgpimane camera to take pictures like a professiphatographer with
various aides that are provided by the camerandbles DSLR like pictures from the camera-phone.

» FacePowelenables the camera of a smart-phone to be a lowepsswnsor, in order to save battery power throatgiligent analysis
and processing means. It also powers up when daaler at the screen. HDR enables users to cagtiaity images even in the
presence of a wide range of lighting conditiong.(ebright lights or sun).

« Panorama enables users to easily and automataraliye panoramic images in a single step with®€ @r editing softwar

7
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* Image stabilization corrects for motion blur andlghinduced during video captt

Other Intellectual Property and Technology:

In addition to the FotoNation mobile imaging tecluyy, other elements of the DigitalOptics intellgat property portfolio and technology that
DigitalOptics seeks to monetize, through a satensing or others means, include MEMS autofocust@ogy, camera module technology
other imaging technologies that DigitalOptics haseloped or acquired.

Customers:

Our FotoNation technologies are currently licengedompanies such as Sony Corporation, Samsungréérs Co., Ltd., and Fujitsu
Microelectronics Limited, among others.

Sales and Marketing:

Our sales activities focus primarily on developdhigect relationships at the technical, marketind erecutive management levels with
companies in the camera module and smartphonetmdodicense our technologies. Product markefowyses on identifying the needs and
product requirements of our customers. Product ity also manages the development of all of athrtelogies throughout the development
cycle and creates the required marketing mateadssist with the adoption of the technologies.N&ee recently restructured the sales and
marketing organization to strengthen our markegfigrts, especially to build product strategy floe mobile phone segment as well as to look
at new opportunities in other adjacent markets.HaAee also re-organized the sales force in Asiato lgetter access to customers.

Research & Development:

Our research and development groups work closdly eir sales and marketing groups, as well as astomers and partners, to bring our
technologies to market in a timely, high qualitylaiost-efficient manner. As of December 31, 201igjtBIOptics employed 360 engineers anc
technologists devoted to consumer optics. Researdidevelopment and other related costs for theédb@ptics segment were approximately
$60.6 million, $56.0 million, and $36.9 million fthhe years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012, and B85dectively. The number of engineers
and technologists will decrease significantly irl2@s we complete our shutdown of the MEMS manufagy business.

Intellectual Property Portfolio:

As of December 31, 2013, our subsidiaries compyithe DigitalOptics segment owned approximatel Bhited States patents and patent
applications, as well as approximately 457 forgigtents and patent applications. The expiratioasdat our issued patents range from 2014 t
2032.

Strategy:

We plan to continue licensing our FotoNation imagecessing products to additional major OEMs aiadf@im providers in the smartphone
market, as well as seek new opportunities in adjacgrkets where technologies related to our FagisTHare relevant and can be gainfully
deployed. Such markets could include the AutomativBurveillance segments. We seek to monetize etkeents of our DigitalOptics
intellectual property portfolio and technology thgh a sale, licensing or others means.

Competition:

The FotoNation image processing technologies sadfaae Detection and our other FaceTools prodoeispete with other image processing
software vendors such as ArcSoft, Inc. as welhsermal design groups of our customers providinglar technologies by employing different
approaches. We also expect to see other competihgalogies emerge.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, prior to undertakinguwloekforce reduction we announced in January 20®4had 525 employees, with 400 in
research and development (including employees wefi@pn engineering, assembly, design and infragiracservices under our service
agreements with third parties) and 89 in generaliaidtration, including general management, leljaiman resources, information technology.
finance and accounting, and 36 in sales,
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marketing and licensing. We have never had a wmpgge among our employees and no personnel@esented under collective
bargaining agreements. We consider our relatiotis eir employees to be good.

Customer Concentration

All of our revenues are denominated in U.S. doll&@fe following table sets forth revenues gener&i@th customers comprising 10% or more
of total revenues for the periods indicated:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
SK hynix Inc. 26% * % * %
Sony Corporation 18 * *
Samsung Electronics 11 10 10
Micron Technology, Inc. * 15 20
Spansion Inc. * 12 *
Powertech Technology Inc. * % 11% 27%

* denotes less than 10% of total revenues.

A significant portion of our revenues are derivashi customers headquartered outside of the U.iagipally in Asia, and we expect these
revenues will continue to account for a significpattion of total revenues in future periods. Taielé below lists the geographic regions of the
headquarters of our customers and the percentageeiues derived from each region for the periodicated:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
u.sS. 25% 49% 30%
Korea 37% 20% 19%
Japan 2% 11% 12%
Other Asia 8% 18% 36%
Europe and other 1% 2% 3%

See Note 14—Segment and Geographic Informatiénn the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenmtadditional geographic informati
about our revenues and long-lived assets.

The international nature of our business exposés asiumber of risks, including, but not limited t
» laws and business practices favoring local coms:
* increased tax rates and withholding tax obl@aion license revenues that we may not be aldffdet fully against our U.S. tax
obligations;
« difficulties in enforcing U.S. judgments and ordagminst foreign persons and products made overaee
» less effective protection of intellectual propettign is afforded in the U.S. or other developecdhtioes

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.tessera.com where we maailable, free of charge, our annual reporfform 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendsnenthose reports, as soon as reasonably praetiatibr we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our SE€ports can be accessed through the investor nesasiection of our website. The information
found on our website is not incorporated into thigny other report we file with or furnish to t8&C.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
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Our operations and financial results are subjegtttmus risks and uncertainties, including thossadibed below, that could adversely affect
our business, financial condition, results of ofiers, cash flows, and the trading price of our own stock.

Our revenues are concentrated in a few customers drf we lose any of these customers our revenuesutih decrease substantially.

We earn a significant amount of our revenues frdimiéed number of customers. For the years endeckihber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
there were three, four and three customers, ragpBgtthat each accounted for 10% or more of to#gknues. We expect that a significant
portion of our revenues will continue to come frarfimited number of customers for the foreseealiieré. If we lose any of these customers,
our revenues could decrease substantially. For pbeafATI, one of our customers that accounted 86 br more of revenue for the year en
December 31, 2012, ceased making payments undeense agreement in 2012, which caused a sulstadizerse impact to our royalty
revenue as compared to prior periods. In additom license agreement with Micron Technology, Iacgther customer that accounted for
10% or more of revenue for the year ended DeceBibe2012, expired in May 2012. This expiration bagsed a substantial adverse impact t
our royalty revenue as compared to periods prigutth expiration. If we are not able to enter mtoew license agreement with Micron
Technology, Inc., it would continue to have a sabtal adverse impact on our royalty revenue.

We expect to continue to be involved in material gl proceedings in the future to enforce or protecbur intellectual property rights,
including material litigation with existing licensees or strategic partners, which could harm either bour business segments, or both.

From time to time, our efforts to obtain a reasdaabyalty through our sales effort does not resuthe prospective customer agreeing to
license our patents. In certain cases, we willltigation in order to secure payment for pastimjement and as a means of securing future
royalties for the use of our patents in the custsyoducts. We also litigate to enforce our oth&llectual property rights, to enforce the
terms of our license agreements, to protect odetsecrets, to determine the validity and scopgheproprietary rights of others and to defend
against claims of infringement or invalidity. Owrgent legal actions, as described in Part |, I18enbegal Proceedingsare examples of
disputes and litigation that impact our business.&kpect to be involved in similar legal proceediimgthe future, including proceedings to
ensure proper and full payment of royalties byrigees under the terms of their license agreements.

These existing and any future legal actions maynheither or both of our business segments, andhimaer our ability to independently
optimize each of them. For example, legal actianddccause an existing licensee or strategic pattneease making royalty or other paym:e

to us, or to challenge the validity and enforcagbdf our patents or the scope of our license agrents, and could significantly damage our
relationship with such licensee or strategic parémel, as a result, prevent the adoption of ouerdifitellectual Property or DigitalOptics
technologies by such licensee or strategic partriggation could also severely disrupt or shut aotlve business operations of our licensees ¢
strategic partners, which in turn would signifidgritarm our ongoing relations with them and causéouose royalty revenues. Moreover, the
timing and results of any of our legal proceediagsnot predictable and may vary in any individualceeding.

From time to time we identify products that we beé infringe our patents. We seek to license theufaaturer of those products but often the
manufacturer is unwilling to enter into a licenggesement and then we may elect to enforce our petgns against those products. Litigation
stemming from these or other disputes could alsmtwar relationships with other licensees or ollitglio gain new customers, who may
postpone licensing decisions pending the outcontkeofitigation or dispute, or who may, as a restiuch litigation, choose not to adopt our
technologies. In addition, these legal proceedamsgd be very expensive and may reduce or elimioaterofits.

The costs associated with legal proceedings aiealfyphigh, relatively unpredictable and not coetely within our control. These costs may
be materially higher than expected, which couldeaslely affect our operating results and lead tatldl in the price of our common stock.
Whether or not determined in our favor or ultimatsbttled, litigation diverts our managerial, teiclh legal and financial resources from our
business operations. Furthermore, an adverse dedisany of these legal actions could result ioss of our proprietary rights, subject us to
significant liabilities, require us to seek liceageom others, limit the value of our licensed tealogy or otherwise negatively impact our stock
price or our business and consolidated financiaitjpm, results of operations and cash flows.

Even if we prevail in our legal actions, signifita@ontingencies may exist to their settlement amal fesolution, including the scope of the
liability of each party, our ability to enforce jgohents against the parties, the ability and williess of the parties to make any payments owe
or agreed upon and the dismissal of the legal mdtyothe relevant court, none of which are compftetathin our control. Parties that may be
obligated to pay us royalties could be insolvend@cide to alter their business activities or ceapm structure, which could affect our ability to
collect royalties from such parties.
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From time to time we enter into license agreementkat have fixed expiration dates and if, upon expation or termination, we are
unable to renew or relicense such license agreemsnin terms favorable to us, our results of operatits could be harmed.

From time to time we enter into license agreemtrashave fixed expiration dates. Upon expiratibsuch agreements we need to renew or
replace these agreements in order to maintainem@nue base. For example, our license agreemdniidéron Technology, Inc. expired in
May 2012. Micron Technology, Inc. accounted for 16f4nore of revenue for the year ended Decembe2@®l2 and has since acquired Elf
Memory, Inc., a leading DRAM manufacturer, in JARA3. This expiration has caused a substantialradwmpact to our royalty revenue as
compared to periods prior to such expiration. Iffaiéto replace the expired Micron Technology,.llicense agreement, it will continue to
have a negative impact on our revenue and ourtgesiubperations.

Furthermore, we may not be able to continue licepsustomers on terms favorable to us, under thatimy terms or at all, which would harm
our results of operations. While we have expandedicensable technology portfolio through interdavelopment and patents purchased fror
third parties, there is no guarantee that thesesanea will lead to continued royalties. If we failcontinue to do business with our current
licensees, our business would be materially adiyeedtected.

The success of our licensing business is dependentthe quality of our patent portfolios and our ablity to create and implement new
technologies or expand our licensable technology gifolio through acquisitions.

We derive a significant portion of our revenuesiriicenses and royalties. The success of our lingrtsusiness depends on our ability to
continue to develop and acquire high quality papemtfolios. We devote significant resources toaleping new technologies and to sourcing
and acquiring patent portfolios to address thewenglneeds of the semiconductor and the consuntecammunication electronics industries
and we must continue to do so in the future to irro@ampetitive. Developments in our technologiesiaherently complex, and require long
development cycles and a substantial investmewntrdefe can determine their commercial viability. fglaver, competition for acquiring high
quality patent portfolios is intense and theredsassurance that we can continue to acquire suehtgaortfolios on favorable terms. We may
not be able to develop and market new or improeetrtologies in a timely or commercially acceptdathion. Furthermore, our acquired and
developed patents will expire in the future. Ourent U.S. issued patents expire at various tirhesugh 2032. We need to develop or acquire
successful innovations and obtain revenue-gengratitents on those innovations before our curratgs expire, and our failure to do so
would significantly harm our business, financiakion, results of operations and cash flows.

We are currently involved in litigation and administrative proceedings involving some of our key pates; any invalidation or limitation
of the scope of our key patents could significantlizarm our business.

As more fully described in Part |, Item Regal Proceedingswe are currently involved in litigation involvirgpme of our patents. The parties
in these legal actions have challenged the validitgppe, enforceability and ownership of our pateint addition, reexamination requests have
been filed in the U.S. Patent and Trademark OfflB& O") with respect to patent claims at issuerne or more of our litigation proceedings,
and oppositions have been filed against us witheetsto our patents in the European Patent Offioeler a reexamination proceeding and t
completion of the proceeding, the PTO may leavatari in its present form, narrow the scope ofpdent or cancel some or all of the claims
of the patent. The PTO issued several Official éwsi rejecting or maintaining earlier rejectionsratny of the claims in some of our patents.
We are currently asserting these patents and pel&nts in litigation and administrative proceedinif the PTO's adverse rulings are uphel
appeal and some or all of the claims of the patimatisare subject to reexamination are canceladhusiness may be significantly harmed. In
addition, counterparties to our litigation and adistrative proceedings may seek and obtain oradestaly these proceedings based on rejec
of claims in the PTO reexaminations, and other tsoarr tribunals reviewing our legal actions couldka findings adverse to our interests, eve
if the PTO actions are not final.

We cannot predict the outcome of any of these maiogs or the myriad procedural and substantivéamsin these proceedings. If there is ar
adverse ruling in any legal or administrative pextiag relating to the infringement, validity, enfeability or ownership of any of our patents,
or if a court or an administrative body such asRA® limits the scope of the claims of any of oatemts, we could be prevented from
enforcing or earning future revenues from thosemat and the likelihood that customers will takg/dicenses and that current licensees will
continue to agree to pay under their existing kesncould be significantly reduced. The resultedyction in license fees and royalties could
significantly harm our business, consolidated foiahposition, results of operations and cash floagswell as the trading price of our common
stock.

Furthermore, regardless of the merits of any cldm@,continued maintenance of these legal and aslmaitive proceedings may result in
substantial legal expenses and diverts our managé&ntine and attention away from our other busirgggerations, which could significantly
harm our business. Our enforcement proceedings liatarically been protracted and
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complex. The time to resolution and complexity of btigation, its disproportionate importance tar dousiness compared to other companies,
the propensity for delay in patent litigation, ahd potential that we may lose particular motionsvall as the overall litigation could all cause
significant volatility in our stock price and haaamaterial adverse effect our business and cordetdinancial position, results of operations

and cash flows.

The timing of payments under our license agreementsay cause fluctuations in our quarterly or annualresults of operations.

From time to time we enter into license agreemtrasinclude pricing or payment terms that resuljuarter-to-quarter or year-over-year
fluctuations in our revenues, such as volume pgieidjustments. The effect of these terms may assecour aggregate annual royalty reve

to grow less rapidly than annual growth in oveualit shipments in the applicable end market. Addgily, our licensees may fail to pay, delay
payment of or underpay what they owe to us undelicense agreements, which may in turn requireowenforce our contractual rights
through litigation, resulting in payment amountsl &iming different than expected based on the teshwaur license agreements. This also may
cause our licensing revenues to fluctuate on ateuan-quarter or year-over-year basis.

Recent changes to U.S. patent laws and proposed dgas to the rules of the U.S. Patent and Tradema®ffice may adversely impact
our business.

Our business relies in part on the uniform andhisally consistent application of U.S. patent lzamsl regulations. There are numerous recen
changes and proposed changes to the patent laws@pased changes to the rules of the PTO, whichhmse a significant impact on our
ability to protect our technology and enforce ateillectual property rights. For example, on Jun2043, President Obama issued five
executive actions and seven legislative recomméentatelated to U.S. patent laws and regulatiorduding, among other things, making
“Real Party-in-Interest” the new default in the P{gatent applicants and owners will regularly updawnership information when they are
involved in proceedings before the PTO), strengtitethe enforcement process of Exclusion Orderd,paaviding additional training to PTO
examiners. The effects of these changes and recodatiens on our patent portfolio and business lyat¢o be determined, as legislation
incorporating the recommendations is currently elabated and the PTO is still in the process pfémenting these changes. In addition, in
recent years, the courts have interpreted U.Snpktes and regulations differently, and in paéeuthe U.S. Supreme Court has decided a
number of patent cases and continues to activelgwemore patent cases than it has in the pasteSunthese changes or potential changes
may not be advantageous for us, and may make & difficult to obtain adequate patent protectioncoenforce our patents against parties
using them without a license or payment of royaltiEhese changes or potential changes could irecthascosts and uncertainties surrounding
the prosecution of our patent applications ancetifercement or defense of our patent rights, amdddoave a deleterious effect on our
licensing program and, therefore, the royaltiescese collect.

Some of our license agreements may convert to fulpaid-up licenses at the expiration of their termsand we may not receive royalties
after that time.

From time to time we enter into license agreemtrasautomatically convert to fully paid-up licesagoon expiration. For example, Tessera,
Inc.'s license agreement with Texas Instruments,datomatically converted to a fully paid-up liseron December 31, 2013, assuming that
Texas Instruments complied with all terms and coo of the license agreement up through its exipin. We may not receive further
royalties from licensees for any licensed technplagder those agreements if they convert to fuflidpup licenses because such licensees wi
be entitled to continue using some, if not allthe relevant intellectual property under the teahthe license agreements without further
payment, even if relevant patents are still inafféf we cannot find another source of revenueefdace the revenues from these license
agreements converting to fully paid-up licenses,reaults of operations following such conversianuid be materially adversely affected.

The DRAM market is highly cyclical, which may havea material adverse effect on our business during @mturns in the market.

The DRAM market is highly cyclical and from timetime prices for DRAM chips are less than our leegs' or potential licensees' variable
costs of making that chip. The DRAM market has gibmeugh many cycles of unprofitability, resultimgthe bankruptcy, consolidation or
discontinuation of DRAM production by many semicaotbr companies. For example, Elpida Memory Iredfior bankruptcy protection in
2012, Micron Technology, Inc. subsequently enténéala definitive sponsor agreement to acquiresrgport Elpida Memory Inc., which
closed in July 2013. Downturns in the DRAM markwittlead to poor profitability, bankruptcy, conslaliion or discontinuation of DRAM
production by any of these companies could havatmal adverse effect on our business.
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A significant amount of our royalty revenues comefrom a few end markets and products, and our busirgs could be harmed if demand
for these market segments or products declines.

A significant portion of our royalty revenues confiesn the manufacture and sale of packaged semizdodchips for DRAM, digital signal
processors, application-specific standard prodecticonductors, application-specific integrateddiscand memory. In addition, we derive
substantial revenues from the incorporation ofteahnology into mobile devices. If demand for semuctors in any one or a combination of
these market segments or products declines, oaityagvenues will be reduced significantly and business would be harmed.

The long-term success of our Intellectual Propertypusiness is dependent on a royalty-based businessdel, which is inherently risky.

The long-term success of our Intellectual Propbriginess is dependent on future royalties paid ioydicensees. Royalty payments under ou
licenses are primarily based upon the number etrédal connections to the semiconductor chip paekage covered by our licensed
technology. We also have royalty arrangements iichivioyalties are paid based on a percent of e sa rate per package, or a per unit sold
basis. We are dependent upon our ability to stractiegotiate and enforce agreements for the detation and payment of royalties, as well
as upon our licensees' compliance with their agezgsn We face risks inherent in a royaiysed business model, many of which are outsi
our control, such as the following:

*  the rate of adoption and incorporation of our tedbgy by semiconductor manufacturers and assemblers

*  the willingness and ability of materials and equiprsuppliers to produce materials and equipmentsilpport our licensed
technology, in a quantity sufficient to enable wokimanufacturing;

*  the ability of our licensees to purchase such reseand equipment on a cost-effective and timelsid

*  the demand for products incorporating semicondsdtuait use our licensed technology;

*  the cyclicality of supply and demand for producghg our licensed technology;

*  the impact of economic downturns; and

* the timing of receipt of royalty reports may noteheur revenue recognition criteria resulting inctuation in our results of
operations.

It is difficult for us to verify royalty amounts owed to us under our licensing agreements, and thisag cause us to lose revenues.

The terms of our license agreements generally requir licensees to document their use of our t@olgy and report related data to us on a
quarterly basis. Although our license terms geiegive us the right to audit books and recordswflicensees to verify this information,
audits can be expensive, time consuming, and maleoost justified based on our understandinguofioensees' businesses. Our license
compliance program audits certain licensees tewethe accuracy of the information contained inrth@yalty reports in an effort to decrease
the likelihood that we will not receive the royatgvenues to which we are entitled under the teriwar license agreements, but we cannot
give assurances that such audits will be effed¢tvidat end.

The markets for semiconductors and related productsire highly concentrated, and we may have limitedpportunities to license our
technologies or sell our products.
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The semiconductor industry is highly concentratethat a small number of semiconductor designelsnaanufacturers account for a
substantial portion of the purchases of semicormtumrbducts generally, including our products aratipcts incorporating our technologies.
Consolidation in the semiconductor industry mayeéase this concentration. For example, Micron Teldgy, Inc. acquired Elpida Memory,
Inc., a leading DRAM manufacturer, in July 2013 cadingly, we expect that licenses of our techniglegnd sales of our products will be
concentrated with a limited number of customerdlferforeseeable future. As we acquire new teclyimetoand integrate them into our product
line, we will need to establish new relationshipsell these products. Our financial results sigaiftly depend on our success in establishing
and maintaining relationships with, and effectinppstantial sales to, these customers. Even if es@acessful in establishing and maintaining
such relationships, our financial results will lpendent in large part on these customers' sateBuaminess results.

Our efforts to monetize our DigitalOptics intellecual property portfolio and technology may not be sacessful.

In January 2014, we announced that we would nodpbpgrsue a strategy of manufacturing and sellirgit&@Optics mems|cam products, but
instead would focus our DigitalOptics businessterimage enhancement business and on monetizirgigfitalOptics intellectual property
portfolio and technology, through a sale, licengsin@ther means. Other than with respect to ouge@r@nhancement technologies, we have nc
yet had significant success in licensing or selting DigitalOptics intellectual property portfolamd technology, and we cannot mi
assurances that we will be able to do so in theréutf we are unable to monetize our DigitalOptitellectual property portfolio and
technology, our operating results and financialditton may suffer.

We make significant investments in new products andervices that may not achieve technological feadity or profitability or that may
limit our revenue growth.

We have made and will continue to make signifigaméstments in research, development, and markefingw technologies, products and
services, including advanced semiconductor packadimvestments in new technologies are speculatidbtechnological feasibility may not
achieved. Commercial success depends on many$antduding demand for innovative technology, aadaility of materials and equipment,
selling price the market is willing to bear, compen and effective licensing or product sales. kVay not achieve significant revenues from
new product and service investments for a numbgeafs, if at all. Moreover, new technologies, pictd and services may not be profitable,
and even if they are profitable, operating mar@imsiew products and businesses may not be asaBigfe margins we have experienced
historically or originally anticipated. For exampie January 2014 we announced that we were ceaflintanufacturing efforts for our MEMS-
based autofocus technologies. In conjunction Witk decision, we are undertaking a workforce reédunodf over 300 employees and are in the
process of closing our facilities in Arcadia, Califia, Rochester, New York, and in Taiwan and Japémincurred approximately $49.0
million in impairment and other charges in the thwjuarter of 2013 related to certain assets wiviete impaired or written off entirely. In
addition, this action is expected to result in samee and other charges of between $6.0 millidetd million in the first half of 2014.

Competing technologies may harm our business.

We expect that our technologies will continue tmpete with technologies of internal design groupseaiconductor manufacturers,
assemblers, electronic component and system mduotges, image sensor and lens manufacturers andraamodule companies such as
Omnivision Technologies, Inc., Aptina Imaging Camgion, STMicroelectronics, Inc., Samsung ElectesrCo, Ltd., and Toshiba Corporatit
The internal design groups of these companiesesthatr own packaging, imaging and optics solutidihese internal design groups design
around our patents or introduce unique solutiop&sar to our technology, they may not need toriggeour technology. These groups may
design technology that is less expensive to impfgraethat enables products with higher performancadditional features. Many of these
groups have substantially greater resources, griéaémcial strength and lower cost structures Wwhitay allow them to undercut our price.
They also have the inherent advantage of accaegetmal corporate strategies, technology roadnaaplstechnical information. As a result,
they may be able to bring alternative solutionmtrket more easily and quickly.

For our DigitalOptics technologies, our MEMS-basetiofocus technology enables high-precision comtf@al moving lens for autofocus
functionality with a small form factor. This tecHogy competes with autofocus technologies includiagitional lens-motion-type autofocus,
emerging lens-modification-type autofocus, solusiosing voice coil motor technology, and also ottemputational-type autofocus solutions
and other solutions and technologies provided bypamies such as DxO Labs. For the embedded imagessing technologies such as Face
Detection and our other FaceTools products, owrioffls compete with other image processing softwanelors such as ArcSoft, Inc. as well
as internal design groups of our customers progidimilar technologies by employing different apgbes. Our competitors in the lens
actuator field include VCM manufacturers such asshini Electric Co., Ltd, Shikoh, and TDK Corporati®Ve also expect to see other
competing technologies emerge.

In the future, our licensed technologies may atsopete with other technologies that emerge. Thed®ablogies may be less expensive and
provide higher or additional performance. Compamiih these competing technologies may also hagatgr
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resources. Technological change could render abntdogies obsolete, and new, competitive technetogould emerge that achieve broad
adoption and adversely affect the use of our teldyies and intellectual property.

If we do not successfully further develop and comnmeialize the technologies we acquire, or cultivatetrategic relationships that expand
our licensable technology portfolio, our competitie position could be harmed and our operating resudtadversely affected.

We also attempt to expand our licensable techngpagtfolio and technical expertise by acquiring &ndher developing new technologies or
developing strategic relationships with others.sehstrategic relationships may include the righuf®to sublicense technology and intellectua
property to others. However, we may not be abkectjuire or obtain rights to licensable technologg itellectual property in a timely manner
or upon commercially reasonable terms. Even if wachuire such rights, some of the technologiegwest in may be commercially
unproven and may not be adopted or accepted bpdustry. Moreover, our research and developmdottsf and acquisitions and strategic
relationships, may be futile if we do not accunataledict the future needs of the semiconductansamer and communication electronics, anc
consumer imaging industries. Our failure to acqoies technologies that are commercially viablehim $emiconductor, consumer and
communication electronics, and consumer imagingstries could significantly harm our business, riicial position, results of operations and
cash flows.

The way we integrate internally developed and acqtéd technologies into our products and licensing ograms may not be accepted by
customers.

We have devoted, and expect to continue to decotesiderable time and resources to developing,iaegwand integrating new and existing
technologies into our products and licensing prograHowever, if customers do not accept the waphawe integrated our technologies, they
may adopt competing solutions. In addition, asmeduce new products or licensing programs, waagpredict with certainty if and when
our customers will transition to those new produetcensing programs. If customers fail to acaspiv or upgraded products or licensing
programs incorporating our technologies, our finangosition, results of operations and cash fleasld be adversely impacted.

If we fail to protect and enforce our intellectualproperty rights and our confidential information, our business will suffer.

We rely primarily on a combination of license, deygnent and nondisclosure agreements and otheraobnél provisions and patent,
trademark, trade secret and copyright laws to ptater technology and intellectual property. If faé to protect our technology and
intellectual property, our licensees and others s&gk to use our technology and intellectual ptypeithout the payment of license fees and
royalties, which could weaken our competitive fosit reduce our operating results and increasékblkhood of costly litigation. The growth
of our business depends in large part on our ghtdibbtain intellectual property rights in a timehanner, our ability to convince third parties
of the applicability of our intellectual propertights to their products, and our ability to enfooee intellectual property rights.

In certain instances, we attempt to obtain patesteption for portions of our technology, and duehse agreements typically include both
issued patents and pending patent applicationge ffail to obtain patents in a timely manner ahé patents issued to us do not cover all of th
inventions disclosed in our patent applicationeeat could use portions of our technology and lietéhal property without the payment of
license fees and royalties. For example, our bssingay suffer if we are unable to obtain patentsgt®n in a timely manner from the PTO
due to processing delays resulting from examinerover and a continuing backlog of patent applarai

We also rely on trade secret laws rather than p&ers to protect other portions of our propriet@ghnology. However, trade secrets can be
difficult to protect. The misappropriation of owadle secrets or other proprietary information cagidously harm our business. We protect ou
proprietary technology and processes, in partugincconfidentiality agreements with our employeesisultants, suppliers and customers. We
cannot be certain that these contracts have nat dree will not be breached, that we will be ablértely detect unauthorized use or transfe
our technology and intellectual property, that wit Rave adequate remedies for any breach, ordhatrade secrets will not otherwise become
known or be independently discovered by competitbrge fail to use these mechanisms to protecttecinology and intellectual property, or
if a court fails to enforce our intellectual properights, our business will suffer. We cannot betain that these protection mechanisms can b
successfully asserted in the future or will nofrbalidated or challenged.

Further, the laws and enforcement regimes of cedaintries do not protect our technology and liet#hal property to the same extent as do
the laws and enforcement regimes of the U.S. Itamejurisdictions we may be unable to protect teehnology and intellectual property
adequately against unauthorized use, which couldradly affect our business.

Our business may suffer if third parties assert thawe violate their intellectual property rights.
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Third parties may claim that either we or our custes are infringing upon their intellectual progeights. Even if we believe that such claims
are without merit, they can be time-consuming awgtlg to defend against and will divert managenseattention and resources away from oul
business. Furthermore, third parties making suatmd may be able to obtain injunctive or other tdplé relief that could block our ability to
further develop or commercialize some or all of products or services in the U.S. and abroad. Glaifrintellectual property infringement a
might require us to enter into costly settlemenicanse agreements or pay costly damage awar@és iEwe have an agreement that provides
for a third party to indemnify us against such sp#te indemnifying party may be unable to perfdmontractual obligations under the
agreement. If we cannot or do not license thernggd intellectual property on reasonable termgeed to substitute similar technology from
another source, our business, financial positieswlts of operations and cash flows could suffer.

Failure by the semiconductor industry to adopt ourpackaging technology for the next generation highgrformance DRAM chips would
significantly harm our business.

To date, our packaging technology has been usag\ysral companies for high performance DRAM chijas.example, packaging using our
technology is used for DDR2 and DDR3 DRAM and werently have licensees, including SK hynix Inc. @amsung Electronics, Co., Ltd.,
who are paying royalties for DRAM chips in advangadkages.

DRAM manufacturers are also currently developingt geeneration high performance DRAM chips, inclygdthe next generation of DDR
referred to as DDR4, to meet increasing speed arfdnmance requirements of electronic products.baleve that these next-generation, high
performance DRAM chips will require advanced padhkggechnologies such as CSP.

We anticipate that royalties from shipments of gheext generation, high performance DRAM chips pgekl using our technology may
account for a significant percentage of our funeneenues. If semiconductor manufacturers do ndimmos to use packages employing our
technology for the next generation of high perfonc@DRAM chips and find a viable alternative padkgdechnology for use with next
generation high performance DRAM chips, or if werahd receive royalties from the next generatioghiperformance DRAM chips that use
our technology, our future revenues could be adgifected.

Our technology may be too expensive for certairt gereration high performance DRAM manufacturettsictv could significantly reduce the
adoption rate of our packaging technology in nestiegation high performance DRAM chips. Even if package technology is selected for at
least some of these next generation high perform®&®AM chips, there could be delays in the intratturcof products utilizing these chips
that could materially affect the amount and timafgny royalty payments that we receive. Otherdiscthat could affect adoption of our
technology for next generation high performance DRgroducts include delays or shortages of matedatsequipment and the availability of
testing services.

Our licensing cycle is lengthy and costly, and oumarketing, legal and sales efforts may be unsuccésk

We generally incur significant marketing, legal aades expenses prior to entering into our liceiggeements, generating a license fee and
establishing a royalty stream from each licensée.[€ngth of time it takes to establish a new lsteg relationship can take 18 months or
longer. As such, we may incur significant losseany particular period before any associated rezestieam begins.

Our Intellectual Property business incurs signifia@verse engineering expenditures on produgi®tential licensees in order to prepare sale
and marketing collateral. We employ intensive mankeand sales efforts to educate licensees, patdéicensees and original equipment
manufacturers about the benefits of our technotodireaddition, even if these companies adopt ethiriologies, they must devote significant
resources to integrate fully our technologies thiir operations. If our marketing and sales e$fare unsuccessful, then we will not be able tc
achieve widespread acceptance of our technologgddiition, ongoing litigation could impact our dtyilto gain new licensees which could
have an adverse effect on our financial conditieaults of operations and cash flows.

If our licensees delay or are unable to make payménto us due to financial difficulties, or shift their licensed products to other
companies to lower their royalties to us, our operiéng results and cash flows could be adversely affeed.

A number of companies in the semiconductor andwnes electronics industries are facing severe Girsmifficulties. As a result, there have
been recent bankruptcies and restructuring of comepan these industries. Our licensees may fan#asifinancial difficulties which may
result in their inability to make payments to usitimely manner, or at all. In addition, our lisees may merge with or may shift the
manufacture of licensed products to companiesatehot currently licensees to us. This could nthkecollection process complex and
difficult which could adversely impact our busingfsancial condition, results of operations andtcélows.

Our financial and operating results may vary, whichmay cause the price of our common stock to decline
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Our quarterly operating results have fluctuatethapast and are likely to do so in the future.dmse our operating results are difficult to
predict, one should not rely on quarterly or anrmoshparisons of our results of operations as aicatidn of our future performance. Factors
that could cause our operating results to fluctdaring any period or that could adversely affaat @bility to achieve our strategic objectives
include those listed in thisRisk Factors' section of this report and the following:

*

*

the timing of, and compliance with license or seevagreements and the terms and conditions for @atyta us of license or
service fees under these agreements;

fluctuations in our royalties caused by the pridiegns of certain of our license agreements;

changes in our royalties caused by changes in défeamproducts incorporating semiconductors or aanmeodules that use our
licensed technology;

the amount of our product and service revenues;

changes in the level of our operating expenses;

delays in our introduction of new technologies @rket acceptance of these new technologies throaghlicense agreements;

our ability to protect or enforce our intellectyabperty rights or the terms of our agreements;

legal proceedings affecting our patents, patenliGgins or license agreements;

the timing of the introduction by others of compettechnologies;

changes in demand for semiconductor chips in teeiip end markets in which we concentrate;

changes in demand for semiconductor capital equipnaégital still cameras and other camera-enabiadces including cell
phones, security systems and personal computers;

the timing of the conclusion of license agreements;

the length of time it takes to establish new lideggrrangements;

our ability to monetize our DigitalOptics intelleel property portfolio and technology;

meeting the requirements for revenue recognitiaeungenerally accepted accounting principles;

changes in generally accepted accounting pringipled

cyclical fluctuations in semiconductor markets getig.

Due to fluctuations in our operating results, répdmrom market and security analysts, litigatiotated developments, and other factors, the
price at which our common stock will trade is likéb continue to be highly volatile. In future peds, if our revenues or operating results are
below the estimates or expectations of public maakalysts and investors, our stock price couldigiecin the past, securities class action
litigation has often been brought against compaiuikswing a decline in the market price of thedcsrities. If our stock price is volatile, we
may become involved in this type of litigation hetfuture. Any litigation could result in substahttosts and a diversion of management's
attention and resources that are needed to sualtgssih our business.
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Our stockholders may not receive the level of divieinds provided for in our dividend policy or any dividend at all, and any decrease in
or suspension of the dividend could cause our stogkice to decline.

In April 2013, we announced plans for a revisedteapllocation policy. The revised policy maimtaithe current quarterly dividend. We also
announced a plan to provide for special dividentteea year equal to 20-30% of “Episodic Gain,” vahie a net gain resulting from “Episodic
Revenue”. We define Episodic Revenue as revenuar tihn revenue payable over at least one yeaunguir$o a contract, and may include
revenue such as non-recurring engineering fedsliticense fees, back payments resulting fromtaudamages awards from courts or
tribunals, and lump sum settlement payments. Am@Be30% of Episodic Gain would be used to proadsinking fund” to provide for the
growth of the quarterly dividends. We anticipatattall quarterly and special dividends would belpait of cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments. The amount of special dividentteuthe dividend policy will vary based on the glic Gain we achieve. Additionally, the
dividend policy and the payment of future cashatwids under the policy are subject to the finatmeination each quarter by our Board of
Directors that the policy remains in our best iests, which determination will be based on a nurobéactors, including our earnings,
financial condition, capital resources and capiéguirements, alternative uses of capital, econ@midition and other factors considered
relevant by the Board of Directors. Given thesesagrations, our Board of Directors may increasdemrease the amount of the dividend at
any time and may also decide to suspend or disusmthe payment of cash dividends in the future; decrease in the amount of the divide
or suspension or discontinuance of payment of aelnd, could cause our stock price to decline.

Our stock repurchase program could increase the vatility of the price of our common stock, and the pogram may be suspended or
terminated at any time, which may cause the tradingprice of our common stock to decline.

In August 2007, we authorized a plan to repurchgs® a maximum total of $100.0 million of the Caanp's outstanding shares of common
stock dependent on market conditions, share prideother factors. In November 2013, the Board iasee the amount authorized to be used
for repurchases to $150.0 million. As of Decemher2)13, the total amount available for repurcheas $110.7 million. Additionally, in Apr
2013, we announced a plan to repurchase outstastiargs of our common stock, on an opportunissisba an amount equal to 20-30% of
Episodic Gain. Therefore, the amount of repurchasegr our stock repurchase program will vary,art pbased on the amount of Episodic
Gain we achieve. During 2013, we repurchased 125@0shares for an aggregate amount of $28.8 milAaiditionally, the timing of
repurchases is at our discretion and the prograynbeauspended or discontinued at any time andasgension or discontinuation could
cause the market price of our stock to decline.tithang of repurchases pursuant to our stock rdpmse program could affect our stock price
and increase its volatility. Furthermore, there bamo assurance that any stock repurchases Wiinee stockholder value because the marke
price of our common stock may decline below thelgat which we effected repurchases.

The investment of our cash, cash equivalents andvastments in marketable debt securities are subjetd risks which may cause losses
and affect the liquidity of these investments.

At December 31, 2013, we held approximately $73llian in cash and cash equivalents and $285.9anilin short-term investments. These
investments include various financial securitieshsas municipal bonds and notes, corporate bordis@ies, commercial paper, treasury and
agency notes and bills, and money market fundfiotijh the Company invests in high quality secwsjt@going financial events have at tii
adversely impacted the general credit, liquidityarket and interest rates for these and other typdebt securities. The European fiscal crises
and the U.S. "fiscal cliff* and government sequebte/e sometimes impacted market conditions foegawent debt securities. Additionally,
changes in monetary policy by the Federal Open BtaBlommittee and recent concerns about the risifg ggbvernment debt level may cause
an increase in prevailing interest rates and aelieedfect our investment portfolio. The financmbrket and monetary risks associated witt
investment portfolio may have a material adver$eceébn our financial condition, results of opesas and cash flows.

We operate in a highly cyclical semiconductor indusy, which is subject to significant downturns.

The semiconductor industry has historically beeclicgl and is characterized by wide fluctuationginduct supply and demand. From time to
time, this industry has experienced significant dtwns, often in connection with, or in anticipatiof, declining economic conditions,
maturing product and technology cycles, and exitegntories. This cyclicality could cause our opiegresults to decline dramatically from
one period to the next. Our business depends lyagwiln the volume of production by our licensedsicly, in turn, depends upon the current
and anticipated market demand for semiconductatgpapducts that use semiconductors. Similarly,psoduct revenues rely at least in part
upon the demand of the semiconductor equipmentehaBemiconductor manufacturers and package asgewminipanies generally sharply
curtail their spending during industry downturns;ts as in the recent global economic downturn,tasibrically have lowered their spending
more than the decline in their revenues. As a tesut financial results have been, and will coméirto be, significantly impacted by
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the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry. Iéware unable to control our expenses adequatedsponse to lower revenues from our
licensees and service customers in such downtaungesults of operations and cash flows will beemally and adversely impacted.

Changes in financial accounting or existing taxatin standards, rules, practices or interpretation maycause adverse unexpected revenue
and expense fluctuations which may impact our repded results of operations.

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with U.S. GAAP. These principles algest to interpretations by the SEC and
various accounting bodies. In addition, we areetttijo various taxation rules in many jurisdictiomie existing taxation rules are generally
complex, frequently changing and often ambiguousr@es to existing taxation rules, changes toittamial accounting standards such as th
proposed convergence to international financiabriqpg standards, or any changes to the interpoebf these standards or rules may
adversely affect our reported financial resulttherway in which we conduct business. Recent adowypronouncements and their estimated
potential impact on our business are addressedaia Bl-“Recent Accounting Pronouncemeiiis the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The international nature of our business exposes us financial and regulatory risks that may have anegative impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operatins and cash flows, and we may have difficulty pretting our intellectual property in
some foreign countries.

We derive a significant portion of our revenuesifricensees headquartered outside of the U.S. Béetave operations outside of the U.S.,
including our research and development facilittelr@land and Romania, to design, develop, testanket certain technologies. International
operations are subject to a number of risks, inomtut not limited to the following:

*  fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.Sadahd foreign currencies as our revenues arerdierabed principally in U.S.
dollars and a portion of our costs are based iallogrrencies where we operate;

* changes in trade protection laws, policies and oreasand other regulatory requirements affectiadet and investment;
*  regulatory requirements and prohibitions that diffetween jurisdictions;
* laws and business practices favoring local comganie

*  withholding tax obligations on license revenuegd tha may not be able to offset fully against ousLtax obligations, including the
further risk that foreign tax authorities may reacdicterize license fees or increase tax rateshadaald result in increased tax
withholdings and penalties;

*  security concerns, including crime, political irstay, terrorist activity, armed conflict and char military unrest;
*  differing employment practices, labor issues angirimss and cultural factors;
*  less effective protection of intellectual propettian is afforded to us in the U.S. or other devetbpountries; and

*  limited infrastructure and disruptions, such agéascale outages or interruptions of service fraifiies or telecommunications
providers.

Our intellectual property is also used in a largenher of foreign countries. There are many cousiirievhich we currently have no issued
patents. In addition, effective intellectual pragernforcement may be unavailable or limited in sdoreign countries. It may be difficult for
us to protect our intellectual property from misosénfringement by other companies in these coestiVe expect this to become a greater
problem for us as our licensees increase their faaturing and sales in countries which provide fasgection for intellectual property. Our
inability to enforce our intellectual property righn some countries may harm our business, fi@apaisition, results of operations and cash
flows.

We have recently undertaken a restructuring of ourDigital Optics business. The restructuring may takdonger than we anticipate or
require us to incur a greater amount of charges tha we currently estimate.
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In January 2014, we announced that we were reatingtour DigitalOptics business to cease its r@mgi manufacturing operations. In
connection with the restructuring, we are undertghkd related workforce reduction of over 300 emeésy/primarily in Taiwan, the United
States, and Japan, and we are in the processsifiglour facilities in Arcadia, California, RocheistNew York and in Taiwan and Japan. We
undertook these actions to reduce operating costsnjunction with the decision to no longer puraugrategy of manufacturing and selling
DigitalOptics mems|cam products, but instead tai$omur DigitalOptics business on its image enharcgiousiness and monetizing the
DigitalOptics intellectual property portfolio anédhnology, through a sale, licensing or other mealisough we expect the restructuring,
workforce reduction and facility closures to be @bated during the first and second quarters of 2€Hetrestructuring may take longer than
anticipated, which could cause disruption to owihess activities, diminish anticipated savings/ancesult in increased restructuring costs,
which would adversely affect our operating resattd financial condition. We incurred approximai®40.0 million in the fourth quarter of
2013 in connection with this restructuring. We estge incur an additional $6.0 million to $9.0 rioh to be taken in the first half of 2014. The
restructuring could result in additional chargest #xceed these estimates, which could adversigtafur operating results and financial
condition.

Our business and operating results may be harmed e are unable to manage growth in our business,\ife undertake any further
restructuring activities or if we dispose of a busiess division or dispose of or discontinue any pradt lines.

We have in the past expanded our operations, daratgtand internationally, and may continue tosidothrough both internal growth and
acquisitions. For example, in 2012, we acquiredufeturing capabilities in Zhuhai, China and compeghbuilding out a manufacturing
facility in Hsinchu, Taiwan, and we subsequentlyseld the Zhuhai, China facility in the second qerast 2013 and announced our plans to
close the Taiwan facility in January, 2014. To nmgmaur growth effectively, we must continue to ioy® and expand our management,
systems and financial controls. We also need tdirmoa to expand, train and manage our employee kfage are unable to effectively manage
our growth or we are unsuccessful in recruiting estdining personnel, our business and operatisgteewill be harmed.

From time to time, we may undertake to restructurebusiness, including the disposition of a bussngivision, or the disposition or
discontinuance of a product line. For example,dh2 we announced that we were exploring a posséparation of our DigitalOptics busin
from the parent corporation; in November 2012, weaainced the planned closure of our facility lodatelsrael; in March 2013, we
announced the planned closure of our Zhuhai FggilitApril 2013, we announced that we were explgra sale or other strategic alternatives
for our DigitalOptics business; in August 2013, amounced the sale of a significant portion ofabgets of the DigitalOptics manufacturing
facility based in Charlotte, North Carolina; andJanuary 2014, we announced that we were restmgtaur DigitalOptics business to cease
remaining manufacturing operations, and undertakimgorkforce reduction and facility closures in mention with the restructuring. There are
several factors that could cause a restructurimigs@osition or a discontinuance to have an adveffset on our business, financial position,
results of operations and cash flows. These inghadential disruption of our operations and oupinfation technology systems, the timing of
development of our technology, the deliveries @fduicts or services to our customers, changes iwotkforce and other aspects of our
business. In addition, such actions may increaseisk of claims or threats of lawsuits by our onsérs or former employees. In the case of a
disposition of a product line, there may be a dskot identifying a purchaser, or, if identifigtie purchase price may be less than the net as:
book value for the product line. Employee morald productivity could also suffer and we may losgkyees whom we want to keep. Any
restructuring, disposition or discontinuance wawduire substantial management time and attentidmaay divert management from other
important work. There are no assurances that euctgting, disposal or discontinuance will resalfuture profitability. We may also incur
other significant liabilities and costs includinggloyee severance costs, relocation expensesirgradrment of lease obligations and long-
lived assets. Moreover, we could encounter delayxécuting any restructuring plans, which couldsesfurther disruption and additional
unanticipated expense.

Disputes regarding our intellectual property may require us to indemnify certain licensees, the cosf avhich could adversely affect our
business operations and financial condition.

While we generally do not indemnify our licensesmmne of our license agreements in our image enhartebusiness provide limited
indemnities for certain actions brought by thirdtigs against our licensees, and some require potade technical support and informatior

a licensee that is involved in litigation for usiogr technology. We may agree to provide similaleimnity or support obligations to future
licensees. Our indemnity and support obligationdaoesult in substantial expenses. In additiotheotime and expense required for us to
indemnify or supply such support to our licensedigensee's development, marketing and salesaridied image enhancement products coul
be severely disrupted or shut down as a resuitigétion, which in turn could have a material acbeseffect on our business operations,
consolidated financial position, results of openasi and cash flows.

If we lose any of our key personnel or are unableotattract, train and retain qualified personnel, wemay not be able to execute our
business strategy effectively.
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Our success depends, in large part, on the comtiooetributions of our key management, engineesates, marketing, intellectual property
expertise, legal and finance personnel, many ofrwhae highly skilled and would be difficult to repk. None of our senior management, key
technical personnel or key sales personnel aredbynvritten employment contracts to remain witHarsa specified period. In addition, we
do not currently maintain key person life insuranoeering our key personnel or restrictions onrtpest-employment ability to solicit our
employees, contractors or customers if key perdoroientarily terminate their employment. The lafsany of our senior management or ot
key personnel, some of whom have only been in theairent positions for a relatively short periodiaie, could harm our ability to implement
our business strategy and respond to the rapidipgihg market conditions in which we operate. Their@cey has served as our Chief
Executive Officer since December 2013 and servezbatnterim Chief Executive Officer from May 2018til December 2013. In January
2014, we announced the appointment of Robert Areties our Chief Financial Officer. Our future siscwill depend to a significant extent
on the ability of these executives to effectivetive execution of our business strategy, and oratilty of our management team to work
together effectively.

Our success also depends on our ability to attiiaih and retain highly skilled managerial, engirieg, sales, marketing, legal and finance
personnel and on the abilities of new personnéination effectively, both individually and as aogp. Competition for qualified senior
employees can be intense. We have also experieanddye expect to continue to experience, difficuithiring and retaining highly skilled
engineers with appropriate qualifications to suppar growth and expansion. Further, we must toainnew personnel, especially our
technical support personnel, to respond to and@tippir licensees and customers. If we fail tohds, tit could lead to dissatisfaction among
our licensees or customers, which could slow oawtfn or result in a loss of business.

Our business operations could suffer in the eventfénformation technology systems' failures or secuity breaches.

Despite system redundancy and the implementati@eairity measures within our internal and exteimfarmation technology and networki
systems, our information technology systems magutgect to security breaches, damages from compinteses, natural disasters, terrorism,
and telecommunication failures. Any system failareecurity breach could cause interruptions inaperations in addition to the possibility
losing proprietary information and trade secretsiffe extent that any disruption or security bre@sults in inappropriate disclosure of our
confidential information, we may incur liability @dditional costs to remedy the damages causeltbisy Wisruptions or security breaches.

Decreased effectiveness of share-based compensationld adversely affect our ability to attract andretain employees.

We have historically used stock options and otbem$ of stock-based compensation as key componéetaployee compensation in order to
align employees' interests with the interests ofsbockholders, encourage employee retention aonge competitive compensation and
benefit packages. Since the adoption of the autitiivé guidance on share-based payment accountmpave recorded significant
compensation costs associated with our stock-bemagensation programs. Difficulties relating toabing stockholder approval of equity
compensation plans or changes to the plans couté immharder or more expensive for us to grantistzesed compensation to employees in
the future. As a result, we may find it difficut &ttract, retain and motivate employees, and aoly difficulty could have a materially adverse
impact on our business.

Failure to comply with environmental regulations calld harm our business.

We use hazardous substances in the manufacturihteating of prototype products and in the develepinof technologies in our research anc
development laboratories. We are subject to a tyaolocal, state and federal regulations relatimghe storage, discharge, handling, emissiol
generation, manufacture and disposal of toxic beiohazardous substances. Our past, present oe faflure to comply with environmental
regulations could result in the imposition of saosial fines, suspension of production, and altenadf our manufacturing processes or
cessation of operations. Compliance with such e@gns could require us to acquire expensive reati@ti equipment or to incur other
substantial expenses. Any failure to control the, désposal, removal or storage of, or to adequadsitrict the discharge of, or assist in the
cleanup of, hazardous or toxic substances, couddsuus to significant liabilities, including jdiand several liabilities under certain statutes.
The imposition of such liabilities could signifighnharm our business, financial position, resofteperations and cash flows.

Our effective tax rate depends on our ability to seure the tax benefits of our international corporat structure, on the application of the
tax laws of various jurisdictions and on how we op@ate our business.

Our international corporate structure and intercanyparrangements, including the manner in whichmaeket, develop, use and license our
intellectual property, fund our operations and &tute transactions with our international subsid&rmay result in the reduction of our
worldwide effective tax rate. Such internationalpmrate structure and intercompany arrangementsudoject to examination by the tax
authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operancluding the United
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States. The application of the tax laws of thesisdictions to our international business actiwtie subject to interpretation and depends or
ability to operate our business in a manner cogsistith our corporate structure and intercompargregements. Moreover, such tax laws are
subject to change. Tax authorities may disagrele et intercompany transfer pricing arrangementduding our transfer of intangibles, or
determine that the manner in which we operate aginess does not achieve the intended tax conseegieddditionally, future changes in the
tax laws (such as proposed legislation to refor®. thxation of international business activitieglyrhave an adverse effect on our internati
corporate structure and operations. The resulh@dverse determination of any of the above itemoddcincrease our worldwide effective tax
rate and harm our financial position and resultsperations.

We have business operations located in places trere subject to natural disasters.

Our business operations depend on our ability tmt@ia and protect our facilities, computer systeand personnel. Our corporate headque
is located in the San Francisco Bay Area, whicthépast has experienced severe earthquakes. \Wat darry earthquake insurance.
Earthquakes or other natural disasters could sveisrupt our operations, and have a material estveffect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects.

We have made and may continue to make or to pursweequisitions which could divert management's atterion, cause ownership
dilution to our stockholders, or be difficult to integrate, which may adversely affect our financial esults.

We have made several acquisitions, and it is otrentiplan to continue to acquire companies, aspatent portfolios and technologies that we
believe are strategic to our future business. liyasng businesses, assets, patent portfoliosamologies and integrating newly acquired
businesses, assets, patent portfolios or techredamiuld put a strain on our resources, could b#ycand time consuming, and might not be
successful. Such activities divert our managematiestion from other business concerns. In aduitice might lose key employees while
integrating new organizations or operations. Adtjoiss could also result in customer dissatisfattiperformance problems with an acquired
company or technology, potentially dilutive issuesiof equity securities or the incurrence of dédet,assumption or incurrence of contingent
liabilities, impairment charges related to goodwitid possible impairment charges related to otitangible assets or other unanticipated
events or circumstances, any of which could harmbaosiness.

Our plans to integrate and expand upon researchl@elopment programs and technologies obtainedigfr acquisitions may result in
products or technologies that are not adopted &yrtarket. The market may adopt competitive solstionour products or technologies.
Consequently, we might not be successful in intétgaany acquired businesses, assets, produatslonalogies, and might not achieve
anticipated revenues and cost benefits.

There are numerous risks associated with our acquisons of businesses, technologies and patents

We have made a number of acquisitions of busingssgmologies and patents in recent years. Thepgsitions are subject to a number of
risks, including but not limited to the following:

*  These acquisitions could fail to produce anticigdienefits, or could have other adverse effectsvigecurrently do not foresee. A:
result, these acquisitions could result in a reédaadf net income per share as compared to thanoetme per share we would have
achieved if these acquisitions had not occurrednvdlg also be required to recognize impairment asagd acquired assets or
goodwill, and if we decide to restructure acquibedinesses, we may incur other restructuring clsaigm example, in June 2012,
we acquired a manufacturing operation in Zhuhain&land, subsequently, this facility was closethathird quarter of 2013. In
January 2014, we announced a restructuring of dgitdlOptics business to cease its remaining martufang operations, in
connection with which we incurred approximately $48illion in restructuring and impairment chargeshe fourth quarter of 2013
and we expect to incur an additional $6.0 millior$8.0 million to be taken in the first half of 2DIThese totals include
approximately $39.0 million in fixed asset and ngible asset impairment charges.

*  The purchase price for each acquisition is detezthivased on significant judgment on factors sugir@jected value, quality and
availability of the business, technology or patémtaddition, if other companies have similar iet&s in the same business,
technology or patent, our ability to negotiate thasquisitions at favorable terms may be limited te purchase price may be
artificially inflated.

*  Following completion of these acquisitions, we nuagover additional liabilities, patent validity fimgement or enforcement issues
or unforeseen expenses not discovered during tigedce process. Any such additional liabilitieatgnt validity, infringement or
enforcement issues or expenses could result infisignt unanticipated costs not originally estinthtsuch as impairment charges of
acquired assets and goodwill, and may harm ounéiahresults.
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*  The integration of technologies, patent portfolosl personnel, if any, will be a time consuming argensive process that may
disrupt our operations if it is not completed itimely and efficient manner. If our integrationaffs are not successful, our results o
operations could be harmed, employee morale caedtiree, key employees could leave, and customatioak could be damaged.

In addition, we may not achieve anticipated syrergir other benefits from any of these acquisitions

*  We have incurred substantial direct transactioniategjration costs as a result of past acquisitiomfuture acquisitions, the total
direct transaction costs and the costs of integnatiay exceed our expectations.

*  Sales by the acquired businesses may be subjdiftdtent accounting treatment than our existingibesses, especially related to
the recognition of revenues. This may lead to paibdeferral of revenues due to new multiple-elatrrevenue arrangements.

*  There is a significant time lag between acquirirgagent portfolio and recognizing revenue from ¢hpatent assets. During that time
lag, material costs are likely to be incurred iagaring licensing and/or litigation campaigns thatld have a negative effect on our
results of operations, cash flows and financialtpms

*  We may require external financing that is dilutipegsents risks of debt or shares a corporate appty with a third party.

*  We are required to estimate and record fair vatifie®ntingent assets, liabilities, deferred taxetsand liabilities at the time of an
acquisition. Even though these estimates are basethnagement's best judgment, the actual resalgdiffer. Under the current
accounting guidance, differences between actualtseand management's estimate could cause ouatoperesults to fluctuate or
could adversely affect our results of operations.

If our amortizable intangible assets (such as acqrgd patents) or equity investments become impairedye may be required to record a
significant charge to earnings.

In addition to internal development, we intend todalen our intellectual property portfolio througfhategic relationships and acquisitions. We
believe this will enhance the competitiveness arel f our current businesses and diversify intokais and technologies that complement
current businesses. These acquisitions could thesiform of asset purchases, equity investmentsusiness combinations. As a result, we
have intangible assets which are amortized ovér ¢éismated useful lives, equity investments, ingess research and development, and
goodwill. Under U.S. GAAP, we are required to pdidally review our goodwill, amortizable intangitdssets (such as our patent portfolio),
and equity investments for impairment when eventhanges in circumstances indicate the carryihgevaay not be recoverable. Factors tha
may be considered a change in circumstances imatictitat the carrying value of our goodwill, ampatble intangible assets or equity
investments may not be recoverable include a dedtiriuture cash flows, fluctuations in market ¢alation, slower growth rates in our
industry or slower than anticipated adoption of praducts by our customers. In the first quarte2@f3, we recorded an impairment of
goodwill of $6.7 million when we revised our busisestrategy for the DigitalOptics business to catrege its manufacturing efforts on the |
barrel, rather than the whole camera module. hissed strategy made the Zhuhai Facility unnecgssad the goodwill tied to the Zhuhai
Facility became impaired. We also recorded an #8llfon charge due to the abandonment of existiagepts and technology, which caused a
revision of the useful life estimate of these patd technology assets thus fully impairing thémthe fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded an
impairment of intangible assets of approximately0$7illion in connection with the DigitalOptics tescturing that was announced in January
2014. As we continue to review for factors that raéfect our business which may not be in our cdntve may be required to record a
significant charge to earnings in our financiatesi@ents during the period in which any impairmemuw amortizable intangible assets or
equity investments is determined, resulting in dvease impact on our business, financial positioresults of operations.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate geernance and public disclosure may result in additinal expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatiraptporate governance and public disclosure, ne@ @gulations, requirements placed on
non-financial companies under the Dodd-Frank Act tie NASDAQ Stock Market rules, have created uagay for companies. These laws,
regulations and standards are often subject tdngigterpretations. As a result, their applicatiompractice may evolve as new guidance is
provided by regulatory and governing bodies, widahld result in higher costs necessitated by orggreémisions to disclosure and governance
practices. As a result of our efforts to complyhagtvolving laws, regulations and standards, we lreareased and may continue to increase
general and administrative expenses and diverdiomoagement time and attention from revegarerating activities to compliance activit|
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Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andbylaws or Delaware law might delay or prevent a chiage of control transaction and
depress the market price of our stock.

Various provisions of our certificate of incorpacat and bylaws might have the effect of making d@rendifficult for a third party to acquire, or
discouraging a third party from attempting to acgucontrol of our company. These provisions cdinhit the price that certain investors mic
be willing to pay in the future for shares of oermamon stock. Certain of these provisions elimirmateulative voting in the election of
directors, authorize the board to issue “blank Eheceferred stock, prohibit stockholder actionwsitten consent, eliminate the right of
stockholders to call special meetings, limit théigtof stockholders to remove directors, and bE&h advance notice procedures for director
nominations by stockholders and the submissiorntargroposals for consideration at stockholdertmgge. We are also subject to provisions
of Delaware law which could delay or make moreidift a merger, tender offer or proxy contest imia§ our company. In particular,
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation peahibits a Delaware corporation from engagingny business combination with any
interested stockholder for a period of three yeatess specific conditions are met. Any of thes®/isions could have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a change in control, inalgdwvithout limitation, discouraging a proxy corttes making more difficult the acquisition
of a substantial block of our common stock.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

Our principal corporate administrative, sales, retirlg and research and development facilities@satéd in San Jose, California, and are hel
under an operating lease. We have research antbgevent and marketing support facilities in Irelardi Romania that are held under
operating leases. Our DigitalOptics reporting seginéilizes all these facilities and our IntellegtiProperty reporting segment utilizes our
facilities located in San Jose, California. We asm a research and development and manufactuaiility in North Carolina, which we lease
to another company. We also have leased facilitidaiwan, Japan and Arcadia, California for faieb that we are in the process of closing.
We believe our existing facilities are suitable ad@quate for our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Other than to the extent the proceedings deschkémiv have concluded, we cannot predict the outcoihaay of the proceedings described
below. An adverse decision in any of these progegdcould significantly harm our business and amsolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

Tessera, Inc. v. Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. et al., Civil Action No. 4:05-cv-04063-CW (N.D. Cal.)

On October 7, 2005, Tessera, Inc. filed a complainpatent infringement against Advanced Micro Res, Inc. (“AMD”) and Spansion LLC
in the United States District Court for the Nortt@istrict of California, alleging infringement &f.S. Patent Nos. 5,679,977, 5,852,326,
6,433,419 and 6,465,893 arising from AMD's and SfanLLC's respective manufacture, use, sale, ¢dfeell and/or importation of packag
semiconductor components and assemblies theresdeli® Inc. seeks to recover damages, up to tiebkemount of actual damages, together
with attorney's fees, interest and costs. Tessaraalso seeks other relief.

On December 16, 2005, Tessera, Inc. added Spamgioand Spansion Technology, Inc. to the lawsuit.

On January 31, 2006, Tessera, Inc. added claimtsréarch of contract and/or patent infringementragjaiew defendants, including Advanced
Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., ASE (U.S.) Inollectively “ASE”), ChipMOS Technologies, Inc., GiNMOS U.S.A., Inc., Siliconware
Precision Industries Co. Ltd and Siliconware USA. Iftollectively “SPIL"), STMicroelectronics N.VSTMicroelectronics, Inc. (collectively
“ST"), STATS ChipPAC Ltd., STATS ChipPAC, Inc. asTATS ChipPAC Ltd. (BVI). The defendants in thigian have asserted affirmative
defenses to Tessera, Inc.'s claims, and some of blawe brought related counterclaims alleging thafTessera, Inc. patents at issue are
invalid, unenforceable and not infringed, and/@tthessera, Inc. is not the owner of the patents.

These actions were stayed pending completion addtigation No. 337-TA-605, including appeals, befthre International Trade Commission
(“ITC"). That stay was lifted on January 4, 2012.
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On January 4, 2012, the court set a fact discovetrpff date of January 18, 2013, a hearing omtlenstruction and certain dispositive
motions on December 5, 2013, and a trial date afl Xp2014. In July 2012, in connection with thkng of back-royalty reports and the
payment of back royalties, Tessera, Inc. by stipiadismissed its cause of action for breach ottt by ChipMOS Technologies, Inc. and
ChipMOS U.S.A. and its cause of action for breacbomtract by the SPIL entities. On October 2, 2ah2 Court granted the stipulated
dismissal with prejudice of Tessera, Inc.'s breafotontract claim against STATS ChipPAC Ltd., STATBipPAC (BVI) Ltd., and STATS
ChipPAC, Inc.

On December 5, 2012 and January 28, 2013, respigtiessera, Inc. entered into a settlement wiignSion LLC, Spansion, Inc., and
Spansion Technology, Inc. (collectively “Spansioafid STATS ChipPAC Ltd,, STATS ChipPAC, Inc. andAS'5 ChipPAC (BVI) Limited
(collectively “STATS ChipPac”). Tessera, Inc. filacstipulated dismissal on December 30, 2012 #set&pansion entities only and on
January 30, 2013 as to the STATS ChipPAC entitidg. 0

On January 31, 2013, the court issued three sumjmagynent opinions on motions filed related to gdlé breach of contract claims. The court
denied the defendants' motion for summary judgmelating to sales to Motorola Inc., granted in @antl denied in part ASE's motion for
summary judgment and granted ST's motion for sumiouaigment. Breach of contract claims remain agaeseral defendants after these
motions.

On February 27, 2013, Tessera Inc. announcedtthatlientered into a settlement with AMD. Tesskra, filed a stipulated dismissal as to
AMD on March 22, 2013.

On April 30, 2013, Tessera, Inc. entered into Hesaent with SPIL. Tessera, Inc. filed a stipulatiksmissal as to SPIL on May 9, 2013.

On November 8, 2013, Tessera, Inc. entered in&gtement with ChipMOS Technologies, Inc., andtedaentities, and filed a stipulated
dismissal as to them on November 12, 2013.

On December 3, 2013, the Court entered an Ordeifyimgl certain dates in the case schedule. Amohegrathings, the Order set the hearing
claim construction and certain dispositive motifarsMay 29, 2014 and kept the trial date of Augest 2014.

On February 24, 2014, Tessera Inc. announcedtthatientered into a settlement with ASE.

Tessera, Inc. v. Motorola, Inc,, et. al, Civil Action No. 4:12-cv-00692-CW (N.D. Cal.)

On April 17, 2007, Tessera, Inc. filed a complaigainst Motorola, Inc., Qualcomm, Inc., FreescamiBonductor, Inc. (“Freescale’gnd ATI
Technologies ULC (“ATI") in the United States DistrCourt for the Eastern District of Texas, allgginfringement of Tessera, Inc.'s U.S.
Patent Nos. 5,852,326 and 6,433,419, arising feormgng other things, the defendants' respective faetune, use, sale, offer to sell and/or
importation of certain packaged semiconductor campts and assemblies thereof. Tessera, Inc. seegsdver damages, up to treble the
amount of actual damages, together with attorrfeg's, interest and costs. Tessera, Inc. filed aanded complaint on May 22, 2007. The
parties agreed that the case would be tempordaiyed pending completion, including appeals, of Iigestigation No. 337-TA-605 titled In

re Certain Semiconductor Chips With Minimized CRigckage Size and Products Containing Same. Orpat dbne 2, 2009, Motorola, Inc.
and Tessera, Inc. entered into a settlement aaddeagreement regarding certain Tessera, Inmdkgy, including the patents at issue in this
action. Tessera, Inc.'s request to dismiss Motoionta from the action was granted by the Courfone 8, 2009.

On January 18, 2012, the stay was lifted and tee transferred to the United States District Ctarrthe Northern District of California. On
March 1, 2012, the Court ordered the parties toppmwith the scheduling order ifiessera, Inc. v. Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. et@lvil
Action No. 4: 05-04063-CW (N.D. Cal.).

The defendants answered the amended complaint echM&, 2012. ATl Technologies ULC and Qualcomne, Biso asserted counterclaims
alleging that the Tessera, Inc. patents at isseiénaelid and not infringed.

In February 2013, Tessera, Inc. reached a settlewidnATI, and filed a stipulated dismissal asA®l on March 22, 2013.
In August 2013, Tessera, Inc. reached a settlemigimt~reescale, and filed a stipulated dismissabdseescale on September 9, 2013.

On December 3, 2013 the Court entered an Orderfyiinglicertain dates in the case schedule. Amongrdtiings, the Order set the hearing or
claim construction and certain dispositive motifarsMay 29, 2014 and kept the trial date of Augest 2014.
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Tessera, Inc. v. A-DATA Technology Co., Ltd., et al., Civil Action No. 2;-07-CV-00534-TJW (E.D. Tex.)

On December 7, 2007, Tessera, Inc. filed a comipdajainst A-Data Technology Co., Ltd., A-Data Teabgy (U.S.A.) Co., Ltd., Acer, Inc.,
Acer America Corp., Centon Electronics, Inc., E¢pMdemory, Inc., Elpida Memory (USA) Inc., Interratal Products Sourcing Group, Inc
(“IPSG”), Kingston Technology Co., Inc., Nanya Tactogy Corporation, Nanya Technology Corp., U.SReripheral Devices & Product
Systems, Inc. d/b/a Patriot Memory (“PDP”), PowgucBemiconductor Corp., ProMOS Technologies InamBxel Technology Ltd., Smart
Modular Technologies, Inc., TwinMOS Technologiex;.] and TwinMOS Technologies USA Inc. in the Udittates District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, alleging infringementb&. Patent Nos. 5,679,977, 6,133,627, 5,663,h06a458,681, arising from, among other
things, the defendants' respective manufacture sade, offer to sell and/or importation of certpackaged semiconductor components and
assemblies thereof. Tessera, Inc. seeks to redaveages, up to treble the amount of actual daméagether with attorney's fees, interest and
costs.

The defendants have not yet answered Tessera, ¢ooiplaint, but, with the exception of the TwinM@&endants and Ramaxel, filed moti
to stay the case pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1659 pgritial resolution in the Matter of Certain Sentidactor Chips with Minimized Chip
Package Size and Products Containing Same (IIg,NB. 337-TA-630 (the “'630 ITC Action”). Tesserag¢. filed a motion seeking to find
TwinMOS Technologies U.S.A. Inc. in default, ané terk entered the default judgment. On Febru&n2008, the district court granted the
defendants' motion to stay the action.

On May 21, 2008, Tessera, Inc. settled its disputte IPSG, and entered into a settlement and lieeggeement with IPSG and its parent,
Micro Electronics, Inc. IPSG was dismissed fromTiegas district court action on June 30, 2008. @gust 14, 2008, Tessera, Inc. settled its
dispute with PDP, and entered into a settlementiaadse agreement with PDP. On September 9, DB, was dismissed from the Texas
district court action.

On May 3, 2012, the notice of Elpida’s foreign bangkcy and related Delaware proceedings was filddch has stayed the case.

Powertech Technology Inc. v. Tessera, Inc., Civil Action No. 4: 10-00945-CW (N.D. Cal.) and U.S. Court of Appealsfor the Federal Circuit
Case No. 2010-1489

On March 5, 2010, Powertech Technology, Inc. ("PTiléd a complaint against Tessera, Inc. in thé&thStates District Court for the
Northern District of California seeking a declargtpudgment of no-infringement and invalidity of Tessera, Inc.'s UP&tent No. 5,663,106.
On March 22, 2010, the case was relatefiieonware Precision Industries, Co., Ltd v. Teasénc., Civil Action No. 4:08-cv-03667-CW
(N.D. Cal.), and assigned to the judge presidingr dat action.

On April 1, 2010, Tessera, Inc. filed a motion tsndiss the complaint for lack of subject matteigdiction. On June 1, 2010, the judge grante:
Tessera, Inc.'s motion, and dismissed the action.

On June 29, 2010, PTI filed a motion seeking reictanation of the June 1, 2010 order dismissingaitteon. On August 3, 2010, PTI's motion
was denied.

On August 6, 2010, PTI filed a notice of appeahwite U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal CircOm September 30, 2011, the Federal
Circuit issued an opinion reversing and remandiggdase to the district court, determining thatdlveas declaratory judgment jurisdiction.
Tessera, Inc. filed a petition for rehearing on Blober 14, 2011. The Federal Circuit denied Tessgeas petition for rehearing on January 5,
2012. On January 19, 2012, the Federal Circuiedsts judgment and the case was remanded to $trécticourt. On December 15, 2011, the
district court case was relatedRowertech Technology Inc. v. Tessera,.|r€ivil Action No. 4:11-06121-CW (N.D. Cal.), disesed below.

The district court held a Case Management Conferenclanuary 4, 2012. The court issued a MinuteCadd Case Management Order date
January 4, 2012, setting, among other things, tadfacovery cut-off date of January 18, 2013, amdehdate of April 7, 2014.

On May 16, 2012, the Court entered an order thaiedePTI's motion to strike as to one of Tessara,d affirmative defenses, granted PTI's
motion to strike with leave to amend as to sevetfaér affirmative defenses asserted by Tesserg,dnd granted PTI's motion to strike as to
one of Tessera, Inc.'s affirmative defenses, gfdtiat Tessera, Inc. may move to amend to additfanse if circumstances change. Tessera,
Inc. filed an amended answer on May 29, 2012.

On June 29, 2012, PTI sent a letter to Tesseraplmporting to terminate the TCC License Agreenimtiveen PTI and Tessera, Inc. as of
June 30, 2012.

On July 30, 2012, Tessera, Inc. provided PTI witb@enant not to sue, or otherwise hold liable, &Tits customers under certain claims of
U.S. Patent No. 5,663,106 in connection with carRifl-manufactured products.
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On August 9, 2012, Tessera, Inc. moved for sumnualyment on the ground that as a matter of lawase ©r controversy exists sufficient to
support PTI's claims because of the covenant acause the parties' rights and obligations do notdn infringement or validity of the
Tessera, Inc. patent that forms the basis of RHIms.

On September 18, 2012, the Patent Office issuezkgrarte reexamination certificate in which certaiiginal claims were cancelled from U.S.
Patent No. 5,663,106, and certain new claims wedea

On October 1, 2012, Tessera, Inc. provided PTI witupplemental covenant not to sue, which amadmgr ¢hings, extended the covenant to
PTI's subsidiaries and made clear that Tesserawiticot contend that PTI is obligated to pay atiies based on infringement of U.S. Patent
No. 5,663,106

On October 2, 2012, PTI filed a motion for entnjudgment under Federal Rule of Civil Procedurebd4king the court to enter judgment
that certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 5,663,1@8 tere subject to reexamination are invalid.

On March 31, 2013, the Court issued an order grgrnfessera, Inc.'s motion for summary judgmentdarying PTI's motion for entry of
judgment under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure h4(be Court stated that because of the closdaakitip between this case sCivil Action
No. 4:12-06121-CW, the Court intends to delay entry of judgmentlyntigment can be entered in both cases simultahgou

On February 27, 2014, Tessera, Inc. announcedlarsent with PTI, pursuant to which the partieseagrto stay the case.

Powertech Technology Inc. v. Tessera, Inc., Civil Action No. 4:11-06121-CW (N.D. Cal.)

On December 6, 2011, PTI filed a complaint agalessera, Inc. in the U.S. District Court for therfdern District of California. PTl's
complaint seeks a declaratory judgment that PTithasight to terminate its license with Tessena, s of December 6, 2011. The complaint
also seeks damages for breach of contract in tlreianof all royalties paid to Tessera, Inc. sin@z&mber 7, 2007, purportedly totaling at
least $200 million, in addition to an accounting™dfl's damages, an accounting of Tessera, Ingghoe from PTI, prejudgment interest, costs
and fees, and other relief deemed proper. Tesserajisagrees with the assertions made by PTiaércomplaint regarding breach of contract,
and believes the likelihood that Tessera, Inc. beélrequired to return already-paid royalties maote.

On December 15, 2011, the case was relat@bieertech Technology Inc. v. Tessera,.IrCivil Action No. 4:10-00945-CW (N.D. Cal.),
discussed above.

On December 30, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed a mdtatismiss the complaint for failure to state @mlapon which relief can be granted and a
special motion to strike pursuant to Californiali-SLAPP statute. The Court denied Tessera, Inwoons on May 21, 2012.

The district court held a Case Management Conferenclanuary 4, 2012. The court issued a MinuteCadd Case Management Order date
January 4, 2012, setting, among other things, tadiacovery cut-off date of January 18, 2013 amdhdate of April 7, 2014.

On June 3, 2012, PTI filed an amended complainnhagadessera, Inc., adding claims for fraud ancedepatent misuse, and a declaratory
judgment interpreting PTI's license agreement Wihksera, Inc. In addition to the damages sougRTs original complaint, the amend
complaint seeks punitive damages for fraud, tertionaf the Tessera, Inc. license as of SeptemtheP@10, recovery of all royalties paid on
WBGA products since September 24, 2010, and arr 6etigpining Tessera, Inc. and directing that Tezskic. may not proceed against any
party,... under any Tessera Patent as defined bybiExhito the TCC License with all amendments, seppints, and additions through
September 28, 2010 until Tessera has first paidaf Dff the royalties paid on wBGA products by Ririce September 24, 2010, presently
estimated to be $40 million.” Tessera, Inc. fileghation to dismiss PTI's claim for patent misuse tmstrike portions of PTI's claim for fraud
on June 19, 2012. On August 10, 2012, the Courttgdain part and denied in part Tessera, Inc.'sampspecifically dismissing the patent
misuse claim and striking the fraud claim, and tgdrPTI leave to file an amended and supplementaptaint.

On June 29, 2012, PTI sent a letter to Tesseraplmporting to terminate the TCC License Agreeniativeen PTI and Tessera, Inc. as of
June 30, 2012.

On August 24, 2012, PTI filed a third amended caimp! In addition to the claims and recovery algeits earlier complaints, the third
amended complaint contained an amended fraud eaithan amended patent misuse claim. The new filaird sought damages at least in the
amount of the royalty payments made to Tesseraafiter December 7, 2007, and punitive damagesn&hepatent misuse claim asked for
declarations that Tessera has engaged in patensenithat the agreement is unenforceable againsiri®T Tessera, Inc. has purged the patent
misuse, and that the Tessera, Inc. patents are

27




Table of Contents

unenforceable against PTI until Tessera, Inc. liagqul the patent misuse. Tessera, Inc. answereddhgplaint on September 10, 2012. Also
on September 10, 2012, Tessera, Inc. filed couafers against PTI for breach of contract, breacthefimplied covenant, fraud, negligent
misrepresentation, declaratory judgment of indeitatiion, and declaratory judgment regarding PTd%eated termination of the agreement.

On July 20, 2012, PTI filed a motion for summargigment on PTI's first claim for relief in this ca€n August 9, 2012, Tessera, Inc. filed an
opposition to PTI's motion and filed its own motimn summary judgment on PTI's first, second aniditblaims on the ground, among others,
that under the unambiguous language of the agraenessera, Inc. did not breach the agreement iog féind pursing its claims in the '630 |
Action.

On September 20, 2012, the court heard argumer®§ b July 20, 2012 summary judgment motion anss€ea, Inc.'s August 9, 2012
summary judgment motions and took the motions usdbmission. On October 2, 2012, the parties stpdito the court's taking the motions
off calendar. On August 1, 2013, the court denieith Iparties’ summary judgment motions without e to renew on the presently-set date
for hearing summary judgment motions of DecembeR023. On October 11, 2013, PTI filed a motiondFommary judgment. Tessera, Inc.
filed its opposition and cross-motion for summargigment on November 1, 2013.

On October 23, 2012, the Court granted PTI leavfédetats fourth amended and supplemental compldtiit's fourth amended complaint adds
an allegation to PTI's claim for declaratory reBegking the recovery and return of royalty paymemide to Tessera, Inc. from at least March
2010 in an amount exceeding $130 million and camtinto seek the recovery sought in PTI's third aleéromplaint.

On February 6, 2013, the parties stipulated todrasdnc.'s filing Amended Counterclaims addingrekafor fraudulent transfer, intentional
interference with prospective economic advantageragligent interference with economic advantagd,seeking damages, punitive dama
to void the fraudulent transfer of PTI's businesdiacrotech Technology Inc. (“MTI"), to enjoin Pfrbm any such transfers in the future, and
attorneys' fees and costs. The parties furtheulstigd to PTI's filing of a response to Tessera, drcounterclaims adding affirmative defenses
of nonoccurrence of conditions precedent, unildratract, and mistake. On March 8, 2013, the €Cgave Tessera, Inc. leave to file the
Amended Counterclaims. On March 21, 2013, PTI fdacanswer to the Amended Counterclaims.

On March 19, 2013, the parties stipulated to Tesdac.'s Second Amended Counterclaims to add MH party, and to add Tessera, Inc.'s
claims of intentional interference with prospect@enomic advantage, negligent interference witmemic advantage, inducing breach of
contract, and constructive trust against MTI, wiielek damages, punitive damages, attorneys' felesoats, and an order that the royalties
owed by MTI be held in a trust for Tessera, Inc.Nbarch 21, 2013, the Court entered an order giliagsera, Inc. leave to file the Second
Amended Counterclaims. On March 28, 2013, PTI afd filed answers to the Second Amended Counterdaim

On October 11, 2013, PTIl and MTI filed a motion sommary judgment. Tessera, Inc. cross-moved fonsary judgment. Oral argument on
the motions was heard on December 12, 2013. Oradais, 2014, the Court issued a 31-page ordeh®rrbss motions. The Court granted
summary judgment in favor of Tessera, Inc. on: BTlaim for declaratory judgment that it has thyhtito terminate the contract; Tessera,
Inc.’s claim for declaratory judgment that PTI masright to terminate the contract; PTI's breaclarfitract claim; PTI's fraud claim; PTI's
claims for patent misuse and for declaratory judgntieat the TCC License requires infringement foraity obligations to accrue; and Tessera
Inc.’s breach of contract claim. The Court grarfdd’s motion for summary judgment on Tessera Inclam for declaratory judgment of
indemnification. The Court denied PTI's motions $simmary judgment on: Tessera Inc.’s claim for bineaf the implied covenant of good
faith and fair dealing; Tessera Inc.’s claim fauddulent transfer; Tessera Inc.’s interferencerdathat testingnly products be excluded fra
the breach of contract damages; and to precludeef@é$nc.’s claims based on lack of an alter egorth

On February 27, 2014, Tessera, Inc. announcedlarsent with PTI, pursuant to which the partieseagrto stay the case.

Contingency fee dispute for the case of Tessera Technologies, Inc. v. Hynix Semiconductor Inc. et. al, Case No. 1-06-CV-076688 (Cal.
Super. Ct.)

Tessera Technologies, Inc. had a dispute withoitmér counsel Susman Godfrey L.L.P. (“Susman”) dkeramount due to Susman, if any, as
a contingency fee for Susman's work in the matt@ressera Technologies, Inc. v. Hynix Semiconduatar$usman requested arbitration of
the dispute. On or about December 9, 2013, théegartached a settlement of the arbitration in arghk for a full release of all claims betweer
the parties.

Tessera, Inc. v. UTAC (Taiwan) Corporation, Civil Action No. 5:10-04435-EJD (N.D. Cal.)
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On September 30, 2010, Tessera, Inc. filed a cant@gainst UTAC (Taiwan) Corporation (“UTAC Taiwarin the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California. Tesa, Inc.'s complaint names as defendant UTAC Traiaved alleges causes of action for bre
of contract, declaratory relief, and breach ofithplied covenant of good faith and fair dealingeTdomplaint requests of the Court, among
other things, a judicial determination and declarathat UTAC Taiwan remains contractually oblighte pay royalties to Tessera, Inc., an
accounting and restitution in an amount to be ddtezd at trial, and an award of damages in an aftouse determined at trial, plus interest
on damages, costs, disbursements, attorneysaieegsuch other and further relief as the Court dem just and proper.

On March 16, 2011, UTAC Taiwan filed a motion terdiss the complaint. On March 28, 2012, the Coahigd UTAC Taiwan's motion with
leave to amend. On April 19, 2012, Tessera, Ihed fan amended complaint against UTAC Taiwan aliggh further detail causes of action
breach of contract, declaratory relief and breddh®implied covenant of good faith and fair degliThe amended complaint seeks the same
relief as the original complaint. On May 22, 2012AL Taiwan filed its answer and counterclaim to§egs, Inc.'s amended complaint.
Tessera, Inc. filed its reply to UTAC's countengiabsserting affirmative defenses, on June 21, .2012

The Court issued its case management order on2B)rg912, setting the schedule for the case. Omatar8, 2013 the Court granted a
stipulation by the parties to extend the case sadke®n February 13, 2013, the Court granted ailstifpn by the parties further extending the
case schedule. Both Tessera, Inc. and UTAC Taivleth dross motions for summary judgment. The Chettl a hearing on November 8, 2013
on Tessera, Inc. and UTAC Taiwan’s summary judgmastions and took both motions under submission.

Tessera, Inc. v. Sony Electronics, Inc. et al., Civil Action No. 1:10-CV-838-RMD-KW (D. Del.)

On October 1, 2010, Tessera, Inc. filed a compkagatinst Sony Electronics, Inc., Sony Corporatéo Renesas Electronics Corporation
(“Renesas”) in the United States District Courttto District of Delaware. On May 23, 2011, Tesshra. filed an Amended Complaint. On
October 28, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed a Second Ale@éiComplaint. On March 6, 2012, Tessera, Inad flérhird Amended Complaint, adding
allegations against Sony Mobile Communications AB &ony Mobile Communications (USA) Inc.

Tessera, Inc.'s Third Amended Complaint allegesSloay Electronics, Inc., Sony Corporation, Sonybl®Communications AB and Sony
Mobile Communications (USA) Inc. (collectively, “8¢’) and Renesas infringed and are currently igfing, including by directly infringing,
contributorily infringing and/or inducing infringeant, U.S. Patent Nos. 6,885,106 (the “106 patartt) 6,054,337 (the “337 patent”). The
complaint requests of the Court, among other thingadgment that the defendants willfully infriryénduced others to infringe, and/or
committed acts of contributory infringement of aremore claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,885,106 a@84337; an order that defendants, their
affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, officers, eoy@es, attorneys, agents, and all persons in aotiveert or participation with any of them be
preliminarily and permanently enjoined from furtlaets of infringement, inducing infringement, amshtributory infringement of U.S. Patent
Nos. 6,885,106 and 6,054,337; an order for an atoay and an award of damages that result frond#fendants' infringing acts, interest
damages, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees andthigcland further relief as the Court deems judt@oper.

On June 17, 2011, Renesas filed an Answer and €alaims to Tessera, Inc.'s Amended Complaintsifiling, Renesas, among other thin
denies infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,885, 1i66054,337, alleges invalidity of U.S. Patent N& 885,106 and 6,054,337 and
unenforceability of U.S. Patent No. 6,885,106,gaethat Tessera, Inc. is not entitled to any ictiue relief, and requests an award to Renesa
of its attorneys' fees and costs.

On July 11, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed a motionisoniss Renesas's counterclaim of inequitable carahat to strike Renesas's affirmative
defense of inequitable conduct. On March 30, 20&2Qourt denied the motion because it was baseth @mswer to a now-moot prior
complaint. On July 12, 2011, Renesas filed a madianansfer the case to the Northern District efiférnia. On March 30, 2012 the Court
denied the motion.

On March 19, 2012, Sony filed an Answer to Tesde@'s Third Amended Complaint and certain Sonyigs filed Counterclaims; in its

filing, Sony, among other things, denies infringetnaf U.S. Patent Nos. 6,885,106 and 6,054,337atlades invalidity of U.S. Patent Nos.
6,885,106 and 6,054,337. Sony also alleges thaefasinc.'s claims are precluded to the extenidlagedly infringing products are supplied
directly or indirectly to Sony by an entity or di@s having an express or implied license to themia-in-suit, to the extent any allegedly
infringing products are supplied, directly or irattly, by Sony to an entity or entities having apress or implied license to the patents-in-suit
and/or to the extent Tessera, Inc.'s claims arerafbe precluded by the doctrine of patent exhansony also requests an award of its
attorneys' fees and costs. On April 12, 2012, Tras$ec. filed an Answer to the Sony parties' Ceutlaims, denying that they are entitled to
any relief on their Counterclaims.
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On April 20, 2012, Renesas filed an Answer and @&naraims to Tessera, Inc.'s Third Amended Complénits filing, Renesas, among other
things, denies infringement of U.S. Patent Nos8%,806 and 6,054,337, alleges invalidity of U.SeRaNos. 6,885,106 and 6,054,337 under
35 U.S.C. 88 102, 103, and 112, alleges invalidity).S. Patent No. 6,885,106 for improper doublepting, alleges unenforceability of U.S.
Patent No. 6,885,106 due to inequitable conduletges that Tessera, Inc. is not entitled to aryniciive relief, and requests an award to
Renesas of its attorneys' fees and costs. On Ma®Qll®, Tessera, Inc. filed an Answer to Renesasmterclaims, denying that Renesas is
entitled to any relief on its Counterclaims.

On June 17, 2011, Sony filed a request with the RoF@ter partesreexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,885,106, an8eptember 24, 2012,
Sony filed a petition with the PTO famter partesreview of U.S. Patent No. 6,054,337, as discussepdater detail in theReexamination
Proceeding¢’ section below. On October 11, 2012, Sony filad@tion to stay the litigation pending completionpobceedings on both
asserted patents before the PTO. On November 22, Z@ssera, Inc., Sony, and Renesas submittée Gdurt a stipulated order whereby
each party agreed to dismiss with prejudice itsrdaand counterclaims regarding U.S. Patent N®@%H1®6, each party to bear its own fees
costs, and to stay the litigation until the eartiér(1) The Patent Trial and Appeal Board's (“PTABenial of Sony's Petition fanter partes
review of U.S. Patent No. 6,054,337, or (2) theficoration by the PTAB of claim 27 or claim 28 of&l.Patent No. 6,054,337. As part of the
stipulation, Renesas agreed not to assert invalidit).S. Patent No. 6,054,337 in the litigatiors&é on prior art raised unsuccessfully in the
inter partesreview of U.S. Patent No. 6,054,337. The partibgntise expressly reserved all rights and madednassions. On December 11,
2012, the Court entered the parties' stipulatedrord

On October 25, 2013, Tessera, Inc. reached arsettliewith Sony. The terms of settlement are contidé and were reduced to a final written
agreement that was executed in December 2013nlrada 2014, pursuant to a stipulation between Tassgc. and Sony, the claims in this
action against Sony were dismissed with prejudice.

Tessera, Inc. v. Sony Corporation, Civil Action No. 5:11-04399-EJD (N.D. Cal.)

On May 26, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed a complairdiagt Sony Corporation in the California Superiou@ for Santa Clara County. Tessera,
Inc.'s complaint alleges breach of contract andditef the covenant of good faith and fair deatitgms against Sony Corporation. Tessera,
Inc. contends that Sony Corporation failed to atigéhe terms of a royalty-bearing technology Ieeagreement between the parties. Tesser
Inc. contends that it commissioned an audit of paytsidue by Sony Corporation under the agreemelneded an audit report to Sony
Corporation on February 14, 2011, and that Sonyp@ation has failed to pay the amounts the audftarad due. Tessera, Inc. requests its
damages, plus interest, costs and attorney's $eay. Corporation removed the case to federal distaurt (Northern District of California) on
September 2, 2011. On September 8, 2011, Sony €ximo filed an answer and defenses to Tesseras mmplaint, and a counterclaim
alleging breach of the implied covenant of goothfaind fair dealing. On January 31, 2012, the Cisstted a Case Management Order, settin
various case deadlines, including scheduling arRirgdry Pretrial Conference for February 22, 2008.0October 10, 2012 Sony Corporation
filed a motion requesting leave to file an Amendedwer, which proposed adding counterclaims agdiassera, Inc. for fraud, violation of
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 17200, and civil conspira®y. January 7, 2013, the Court denied Sony Corporatmotion for leave to file an
Amended Answer and issued an order resetting vagase deadlines, including rescheduling the Piredim Pretrial Conference to March 22,
2013. On July 1, 2013, Sony Corporation filed aiorofor partial summary judgment. On July 9, 20th&, Court struck Sony Corporation's
motion as untimely. The final Pretrial Conferencasviield on October 17, 2013, and trial was schddoleommence on October 28, 2013. Or
October 25, 2013, Tessera Inc. reached a settlermtmSony. The terms of settlement are confidéndiad were reduced to a final written
agreement that was executed in December 2013nlrada 2014, pursuant to a stipulation between Tas#gc. and Sony, this action was
dismissed with prejudice.

Invensas Corporation v. Renesas Electronics Corporation, Civil Action No. 1:11-CV-00448-GMS-CJB (D. Del.)

On May 23, 2011, Invensas filed a complaint agdRestesas in the United States District Court fer@iistrict of Delaware. Invensas's
complaint alleges that Renesas has infringed aadriently infringing, including by directly infriging, contributorily infringing and/or
inducing infringement, U.S. Patent Nos. 6,777,8)825,554, 6,566,167, and 6,396,140. The complafuests of the Court, among other
things, a judgment that Renesas has willfully mged, induced others to infringe, and/or committet$ of contributory infringement of one or
more claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,777,802, 6,825,6%66,167, and 6,396,140; an order that Rengsasfiliates, subsidiaries, directors,
officers, employees, attorneys, agents, and afiqrerin active concert or participation with anytrefm be preliminarily and permanently
enjoined from further acts of infringement, induginfringement, or contributory infringement of URatent Nos. 6,777,802, 6,825,554,
6,566,167, and 6,396,140; an order for an accoginéind an award of damages that result from Reisdsé&snging acts, interest on damages,
costs, expenses, attorneys' fees and such othdurdiner relief as the Court deems just and proper.
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On October 28, 2011, Renesas filed an Answer anoh@cclaims to Invensas's Complaint. In its filiRgnesas, among other things, denies
infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,777,802, 6,82%,%,566,167, and 6,396,140, alleges invaliditthee same patents, alleges that Invensa
is not entitled to any injunctive relief, allegést Invensas's claims for damages are limited webaalleges that the court lacks personal
jurisdiction over Renesas, and seeks an awardiesas of attorneys' fees and costs. On Novemb@021, Invensas filed an Answer
Renesas's Counterclaims.

On June 4, 2012, the Court issued a Case Managédndet, setting various case deadlines. On Apri2®4 3, the Court granted Invensas's
motion for leave to amend its complaint to named3as Electronics America Inc. as an additionalrakfat. On May 13, 2013, Renesas filed
an Answer and Counterclaims, again seeking deolgratdgments of invalidity and non-infringementtbé asserted patents, and seeking
remedies including its costs and attorneys' femd sach additional relief as the Court may deem@pyate. The Court set an April 19, 2014
pretrial conference and May 12, 2014 trial date JOly 15, 2013 the Court issued an Order constro@mtain patent claim terms.

Reexamination Proceedings

On February 9, 2007 and February 15, 2007, SP&d fivith the PTO requests fmter partesreexamination relating to U.S. Patent Nos.
6,433,419 and 6,465,893. On May 4, 2007, the PT@tgd the requests forter partesreexamination.

The PTO issued a non-final Official Action in costien with theinter partesreexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,433,419 iniiadljecting a
number of the patent claims on June 5, 2007, teahvhiresponse was filed by Tessera, Inc. on AuguaB07. On February 19, 2008, the PTO
issued a second official action maintaining thectpns in U.S. Patent No. 6,433,419. On March2008, Tessera, Inc. filed a petition to
vacate the second official action in the reexanmmadf U.S. Patent No. 6,433,419 on the ground tthesecond official action did not properly
take account of an amendment to the specificatidh $. Patent No. 6,433,419. On June 3, 2008, Tasbe. filed a renewed petition to vac
theinter partesreexamination on the ground that the request foln seexamination did not name the real party iarggt. The petition was
denied on September 10, 2008. On June 13, 200@,Tt@eissued a third official action in tirger partesreexamination of U.S. Patent

No. 6,433,419 which was denominated as an actmsirg} prosecution. A Right of Appeal Notice wasiexs on September 17, 2008, ¢
Tessera, Inc. filed a Notice of Appeal on Octobar2008. On November 3, 2008, the PTO issued aidacivithdrawing the Right of Appeal
Notice and returning the case to the examinersguwance of a further action. On December 23, 20@8PTO issued a n-final official action,
also denominated as an action closing prosecuidright of Appeal Notice was issued on June 1992@n July 1, 2009, Tessera, Inc. filed a
petition to withdraw the Right of Appeal Notice. Wiag not yet received a decision on the petitioduf 1, 2009, Tessera, Inc. filed a Notic
Appeal on July 20, 2009. On July 30, 2009, the FSBDed a decision dismissing Tessera, Inc.'s petitf July 1, 2009. Tessera, Inc. timely
filed an appeal brief on October 5, 2009. The PTD'swer to Tessera, Inc.'s appeal brief was maiteduly 13, 2010. On January 17, 2011,
Tessera, Inc. filed a petition to reopen proseoudioe to new developments after the close of mgefi the appeal which include actions by the
PTO in other reexaminations and a new holding lbyGburt of Appeals for the Federal Circuit in apead from a decision of the International
Trade Commission concerning U.S. Patent No. 6,433,@n February 25, 2011, the PTO issued a decig@mting in part Tessera, Inc.'s
petition to the extent that prosecution of the egmixation proceedings in connection with U.S. Palém 6,433,419 was reopened. On

March 11, 2011, the PTO issued a fourth officidiacin theinter partesreexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,433,419 whick denominated
an action closing prosecution. The official actadrMarch 11, 2011 confirmed that all of the claisubject to reexamination are patentable. A
Right of Appeal Notice was issued on May 3, 201 SPIL filed a Notice of Appeal on June 2, 201h.Mbvember 15, 2011, the Examiner
mailed an Examiner's Answer maintaining all posisiset forth in the Right of Appeal Notice issuedvay 3, 2011. An oral hearing in the
appeal was held on September 19, 2012 at the PRxandria, VA. On December 21, 2012, Tessera, fited a petition for the entry of
additional evidence after appeal. SPIL filed anagijion to Tessera, Inc.'s December 21, 2012 patiih January 2, 2013. On January 28,
2013, the Patent Trial and Appeal Board denied @rassic.'s December 21, 2012 petition and dismiSsid's January 2, 2013 opposition to
same. On December 21, 2012, the Patent Trial ape@iBoard issued a Decision on Appeal, reversiagexaminer's favorable decision of
patentability, by rejecting all of the claims sutijeo reexamination on a new ground. On Janua@43, the Patent Trial and Appeal Board
granted a petition filed by Tessera, Inc. on Decen28, 2012 to extend Tessera, Inc.'s deadlineefggonding to the Decision on Appeal to
February 21, 2013. On February 21, 2013, Tessetdiled a response and request to reopen prosecittjether with new evidence to addres:
the new ground of rejection in the Board's Decende2012 Decision on Appeal. On March 21, 2013 $ied comments in response to
Tessera, Inc.'s February 21 response and requesigen prosecution. On May 9, 2013, SPIL withdfem theinter partesreexamination of
U.S. Patent No. 6,433,419, indicating that it wihkke no further comment or otherwise participatdhé@proceeding and also that it does not
object to Tessera, Inc. having substanéxgartecommunication with the Patent Office for the rendainof the proceeding. On June 25, 2013
the Patent Trial and Appeal Board issued an Ortmanding the proceeding to the examiner for conaiita of Tessera Inc.'s response filed
February 21, 2013. The order entered certain nesleage submitted by Tessera Inc. in said respomdelismissed SPIL's March 21, 2013
comments as moot in view of SPIL's withdrawal. @ptember 25, 2013, the Examiner issued a determinigt which the Examiner
recommended that the Patent Trial and Appeal Bomidtain the new grounds of rejection in the Baaikcember
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21, 2012 Decision on Appeal. On October 25, 20E3s€ra, Inc. submitted comments in response tBxAminer's determination, after which
the proceeding will be returned to the Patent Tarad Appeal Board for reconsideration. Also, ondDet 25, 2013, Tessera, Inc. requested an
oral hearing before the Patent Trial and Appealr80d.S. Patent No. 6,433,419 expired on Septe@be2010, but thanter partes
reexamination will continue after expiration.

The PTO issued a non-final Official Action in coetien with theinter partesreexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,465,893 initiadljecting a
number of patent claims on May 4, 2007. On Febra&r2008, the PTO issued a second official acédsg denominated as an action closing
prosecution, maintaining the rejections of U.SeRaNo. 6,465,893. On March 28, 2008, Tesserafilad.a petition to vacate the second
official action in the reexamination of U.S. Patéitt 6,465,893 on the ground that the second affaition did not properly take account of
amendment to the specification of U.S. Patent Ng6%893. On June 9, 2008, Tessera, Inc. filechawed petition to vacate ther partes
reexamination on the ground that the request foln seexamination did not name the real party iarggt, which petition was denied on
September 10, 2008. On August 21, 2008, a non-fifiimle action was issued. On February 5, 2009PH® issued a non-final official action,
also denominated as the second action closing putiea. A Right of Appeal Notice was issued on JABe2009. Tessera, Inc. filed a Notici
Appeal on July 22, 2009. On November 10, 2010Ph® issued an action closing prosecution confirnti@gain of the original claims subject
to reexamination as patentable and rejecting affaéms subject to reexamination. A second Righipeal Notice was issued on February 18
2011. Tessera, Inc. filed a Notice of Appeal on &ha3, 2011, and SPIL filed a Notice of Cross AppeaMarch 7, 2011. On August 22, 2011,
the examiner mailed an examiner's answer main@galinpositions set forth in the Right of Appealtie issued on February 18, 2011. An ora
hearing in the appeal was held on September 12, a0the PTO in Alexandria, VA. On December 21,200essera, Inc. filed a petition for
the entry of additional evidence after appeal. Siéld an opposition to Tessera, Inc.'s Decembe2R12 petition on January 2, 2013. On
January 28, 2013 the Patent Trial and Appeal Bdarded Tessera Inc.'s December 21, 2012 petitidrdeamissed SPIL's January 2, 2013
opposition to same. On December 21, 2012, the Pateat and Appeal Board issued a Decision on Appaffirming the Examiner's previous
holding of unpatentability as to some claims, reireg the Examiner's favorable decision of patelitglais to other claims by rejecting those
claims on new grounds of rejection, and affirming Examiner's favorable decision of patentabilgyastill other claims. On January 4, 2013,
the Patent Trial and Appeal Board granted a petiiled by Tessera, Inc. on December 28, 2012 terekTessera, Inc.'s deadline for
responding to the Decision on Appeal to February?P13. On February 21, 2013, Tessera Inc. fileehjaest to reopen prosecution together
with new evidence to address the new grounds ettiep in the Board's December 21, 2012 DecisioApeal. On March 21, 2013, SPIL
filed comments in response to Tessera, Inc.'s kep2d request to reopen prosecution. On May 9328PIL withdrew from thénter partes
reexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,465,893, indticathat it will make no further comment or otheseiparticipate in the proceeding and also
that it does not object to Tessera, Inc. havingtutiive ex parte communication with the Patenid®ffor the remainder of the proceeding. Or
June 25, 2013, the Patent Trial and Appeal Boaukeid an Order remanding the proceeding to the @earfor consideration of Tessera Inc.'s
request filed February 21, 2013. The order enteegthin new evidence submitted by Tessera Inaithrequest and dismissed SPIL's

March 21, 2013 comments as moot in view of SPIlitedvawal. On July 17, 2013, the Examiner issue@termination in which the Examiner
recommended that the Patent Trial and Appeal Bowmidtain certain of the new grounds of rejectiotthia board's December 21, 2012
Decision on Appeal as to certain claims, and recendrd that the board withdraw other new groundsjettion as to certain claims. On
August 16, 2013, Tessera, Inc. submitted commantssponse to the Examiner's determination, aftéctwthe proceeding will be returned to
the Patent Trial and Appeal Board for reconsideratOn August 19, 2013, Tessera, Inc. requestedtarmearing before the Patent Trial and
Appeal Board. U.S. Patent No. 6,465,893 expire&eptember 24, 2010, but timter partesreexamination will continue after expiration.

On June 17, 2011, a request ifter partesreexamination of U.S. Patent No. 6,885,106 was filg Sony Corporation and Sony Electronics,
Inc. On September 8, 2011, the PTO granted theestdar reexamination. On September 20, 2011, @ Bsued a non-final official action
rejecting certain claims and confirming certainrola Tessera, Inc. filed a Petition under 37 C.B.R.181 to Withdraw the Pending Office
Action and Ultra Vires Requirement for Informati(Rule 105 Requirement) on November 11, 2011. Tassec. then filed a response to the
September 20, 2011, non-final official action orcBaber 20, 2011. Sony filed responsive commentiaonary 19, 2012 with a Petition to
waive page limits. The PTO dismissed TesseraslRule 181 Petition as moot because the PTO act&ptesera, Inc.'s arguments in the
Response regarding the Rule 105 requirement. Ti@fBlnd Tessera, Inc.'s response non-compliaréXoeeding the page limits in a Notice
mailed February 22, 2012. Tessera Inc. filed a Besp to the Notice and a Petition to waive pagédiMarch 7, 2012. The PTO granted
Tessera Inc.'s and Sony's separate petitions teevpaige limits on April 10, 2012. The PTO issuediation Closing Prosecution (ndimal) on
April 17, 2012, which rejected certain claims awodfirmed certain claims. Tessera, Inc. filed atietito Strike Sony's Comments on April 23,
2012. Sony opposed on May 1, 2012 by withdrawingfthe record the challenged proposed rejections.PITO denied Tessera, Inc.'s
Petition on May 25, 2012 based on Sony's withdralWessera, Inc. filed a Response to the Actioni@¢pBrosecution on June 18, 2012. So
Comments were filed on July 18, 2012. The PTO foliessera, Inc.'s June 18, 2012 Response pagezbmipliant in a petition decision
mailed September 28, 2012.
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On January 29, 2013, Tessera, Inc. filed a Statidisclaimer in the patent file of U.S. Patent ¢B885,106 dedicating to the public all of the
originally issued claims in U.S. Patent No. 6,886,1Tessera, Inc. then filed, on February 5, 2@18upplemental Amendment in the
reexamination that canceled all pending claimsaaded the Examiner to the Statutory Disclaimére Bupplemental Amendment also sough
termination of thenter partesreexamination proceeding. On February 11, 201easpecific request of the U.S. Patent and Tradeff#ice,
Tessera, Inc. filed in the reexamination a Notit€oncurrent Proceedings, again alerting the Exantin the Statutory Disclaimer filed in the
patent file of U.S. Patent No. 6,885,106. On Fetyr@&, 2013, the PTO mailed a Notice of Intentssuie a Reexamination Certificate (NIRC),
which terminated the reexamination and noted theistof the claims as: 1-60 currently disclaimed @h-155 cancelled. On September 3,
2013, a Reexamination Certificate issued showihglaiims had been cancelled from the patent. Ttiten has now concluded.

European Oppositions

On or about January 3, 2006, Koninklijke Philligedronics N.V. and Philips Semiconductors B.V.Hilps”), MICRON Semiconductor
Deutschland GmbH (“Micron GmbH?”), Infineon and STdvbelectronics, Inc. (“STM") filed oppositions t@3sera, Inc.'s European Patent No
EP1111672 (the “EP672 Patent”) before the Eurofzant Office (the “EPO”). Micron GmbH and Infineaithdrew their oppositions on
July 24, 2006 and November 4, 2006, respectivetyD@cember 4, 2006, Phillips withdrew its oppositi®n September 16, 2008, the EPO
Opposition Division issued a “Summons to attend praceedings” which states “preliminary” opiniomsfavorable to the claims of the EP672
Patent. An oral hearing before the EPO Oppositiosisidn, was held on June 4, 2009, resulting ireaision to revoke the EP672 Patent.
Tessera, Inc. filed a Notice of Appeal on August2@09. On September 17, 2013, the EPO Board otAlggssued aSummons to attend or
proceedings” which states “preliminary” opinionsiethexpresses the Board's view that the principason for revocation of EP672 Patent set
forth by the Opposition Division is incorrect. Or€&mber 20, 2013, Tessera, Inc. filed a responetBummons to Oral Proceedings. On
December 30, 2013, the opponent filed a responget8ummons to Oral Proceedings. An oral heargfgrb the EPO Board of Appeals was
held on January 30, 2014. On September 24, 20@ ER672 Patent expired, but the appeal continues.

Inter Partes Review Proceedings

On September 24, 2012, Sony filed a petitioniriiter partesreview of Tessera, Inc.'s U.S. Patent No. 6,054(83R2012-00033). On
September 27, 2012, the PTO mailed a Notice actgfhie petition filing, which set a December 2712@eadline for Tessera, Inc. to file a
preliminary response. Tessera, Inc. filed a patemter preliminary response on December 26, 201Z-&nuary 26, 2013, the Patent Trial anc
Appeal Board (PTAB) mailed a Decision initiatingril for claims 27-29 and 39 on two grounds ofgméability. On May 31, 2013, Tessera,
Inc. filed a patent owner response. On Septemb20B3, Sony filed a Reply to Tessex®atent Owner Response. The PTAB has schedul
Oral Hearing for November 21, 2013. Sony and Tesdec. have agreed to request that the PTAB dssthisinter partesreview. On
December 6, 2013, Tessera, Inc. and Sony filedra NMtwtion to Terminate, Joint Request to Treatl8etent Agreement as Business
Confidential Information, and the Settlement Agreem On December 20, 2013, the Board granted botfons. This matter has now
concluded.

On April 9, 2013, Amkor Technologies, Inc. filegatition forinter partesreview of Tessera, Inc.'s U.S. Patent No. 6,046(0FR2013-
00242). On July 12, 2013, Tessera, Inc. filed @mpadwner preliminary response. On October 11, 2B&3atent Trial and Appeal Board
instituted a trial for claims 1-8, 108, 18, 19, 24, and 25 on a single ground of umpabdity for each claim. On October 23, 2013, Beasinc
filed a Request for Rehearing directed to Amkaoaiekl of standing to bring the IPR. On October 23,28mkor filed a Request for
Reconsideration of Nomstituted Grounds. On November 5, 2013, Tessarafiled a motion to terminate; and on November2?.3, Amko
filed its opposition to Tessera, Inc.’s motion ¢éominate. On December 26, 2013, Tessera, Inc.ifseddlatent Owner’s Response. On January
10, 2014, the Board denied both Tessera, Inc.'®omédr rehearing and Amkor's motion for reconsédiem. On January 31, 2014, the Board
denied Tessera, Inc.’s motion to terminate duertkér’s lack of standing. Oral argument, if requdstethisinter partesreview, is currently
scheduled for May 2014.

The patents that are subject to the above-descrdge@mination, opposition atater partesreview proceedings include some of the key
patents in Tessera, Inc.'s portfolio, and clainas #e treated in the current official actionslaegg asserted in certain of Tessera, Inc.'s variol
litigations. The Company cannot predict the outcarfhihese proceedings. An adverse decision coslal significantly affect Tessera, Inc.'s
ongoing litigations, as described herein, in wipeltents are being asserted, which in turn couldifgggntly harm the Company's business and
consolidated financial position, results of operasi and cash flows.

I nsolvency Proceedings over the Estate of Qimonda AG, Local Court of Munich, Insolvency Court, File No. 1542 N 209/09
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On January 23, 2009, Qimonda AG filed a bankrupttjtion with the Local Court of Munich, Insolven@purt. On April 1, 2009, the Court
opened insolvency proceedings over the estaternb@ila AG and appointed Rechtsanwalt Dr. MichadéJaf the insolvency administrator.

On or about May 27, 2009, Dr. Jaffé chose non-perémce of Tessera, Inc.'s license agreement withoQida AG under Section 103 of the
German Insolvency Code and purported to termiregditense agreement. On June 12, 2009, Tesserdildéd a Proof of Claim in the
Qimonda AG bankruptcy alleging amounts due of agiprately 15.7 million Euros. On December 2, 2008, Iaffé preliminarily contested
Tessera, Inc.'s claim in full. On November 15, 2@0 Jaffé acknowledged approximately 7.8 millBuros of Tessera, Inc.'s claim. The
amount has been registered with the list of creslitdaims at the Local Court of Munich, Insolver@gurt. However, both the date and the
final amount of recovery for unsecured debtors iamacertain.

Amkor Technology, Inc. v. Tessera, Inc. (ICC Case No. 16531/VRO)

On or about August 7, 2009, Amkor filed a requestairbitration against Tessera, Inc. before therirdtional Chamber of Commerce (“ICC").
The request, among other things, accused Tessetaflinterference with Amkor's existing and presfive business relationships, of
improperly claiming that Amkor had breached thetipatlicense agreement, and of improperly threatgto terminate that agreement. Amkor
seeks relief including judgment that it is in corapte with the license agreement and is a licemsgeod standing under the license
agreement; judgment that the license agreementimsrimaeffect and no breach alleged by Tesseradgainst Amkor has terminated the
license agreement; judgment that Amkor's methozhtafulating royalties on a goirfgrward basis complies with Amkor's obligations anthe
license agreement; an injunction against Tessecafdrbidding it from making statements to Amkastomers and potential customers
inconsistent with the above; an injunction agairessera, Inc. forbidding it from attempting to teéraie the license agreement or threatening 1
terminate the license agreement during the arhlutratr based on events occurring prior to the aggioh of the arbitration; a damage award
against Tessera, Inc. for attorneys' fees and tm#tmkor associated with this arbitration, togetivih all other damages resulting from
Tessera, Inc.'s alleged acts of tortious interfe@eand punitive damages; all other relief recoMerahder the Rules of Arbitration of the ICC;
and such other and further relief as the arbitsai@em just and proper.

On November 2, 2009, Tessera, Inc. filed its answéne request, including counterclaims. The amsammong other things, denies Amkor's
accusations and accuses Amkor of failing to pays@ies Inc. full royalties on products Amkor sold3aalcomm and potentially others that are
subject to ITC injunctions, of refusing to allowsBera, Inc. to audit in accordance with the patimense agreement, of interference with
Tessera, Inc.'s prospective economic relationsbipiling to pay royalties or full royalties omgaucts that infringe various U.S. and foreign
patents owned by Tessera, Inc., and of violatiegriplied covenant of good faith and fair dealifigssera, Inc. seeks relief including judgn
that the license agreement has been breached anbetssera, Inc. is entitled to terminate the beeagreement; judgment that products on
which Amkor has not paid the full contractual rdied to Tessera, Inc. are not licensed under Tesk®.'s patents; damages for Amkor's
breaches of the license agreement; damages, inglpdinitive damages, for Amkor's interference Wigissera, Inc.'s prospective business
relationships; interest on any damages; attorrfegs'and costs incurred by Tessera, Inc.; denidhdfor's claims against Tessera, Inc.; an
order that awards Tessera, Inc. all other reliebverable under the rules of Arbitration of the {@@d an order for such other and further relie
as the arbitrators deem just and proper.

On January 15, 2010, Amkor filed its response tes€ea, Inc.'s counterclaims, along with new cowtdaens by Amkor and a motion for
priority consideration of certain issues. In itspensive pleading, Amkor denied Tessera, Inc.'stewclaims, arguing in part that Tessera, i
counterclaims for royalties are barred by the doet of collateral estoppel and res judicata, andjist a declaratory judgment that it has not
infringed and that its packages are not made ualeof the patents asserted in Tessera, Inc.'saaraavd that the patents are invalid and
unenforceable. Amkor also claimed a credit for foga it alleges it overpaid Tessera, Inc.

On May 14, 2010, Amkor filed a motion to bar Tessénc.'s counterclaims for royalties before Decenth 2008, as res judicata. The Tribt
ruled on Amkor's motion on November 15, 2010, grapAmkor's motion as to Tessera, Inc.'s counterddor royalties on some products
timeframes at issue, and denying the motion asher products and timeframes.

On October 20, 2010, Amkor paid Tessera, Inc. apprately $2.3 million to address a portion of thesproyalties claimed by Tessera, Inc.

On December 9 and December 10, 2010, the Tribwldldntwoelay trial on certain issues in the arbitrationjuding (1) royalties payable or
going-forward basis for the patents addresseddrptbvious arbitration, including but not limitemirbyalties applicable to packages assemble
for Qualcomm, Inc.; (2) Tessera, Inc.'s countencléor breach of the audit provision of the licemaggeement; (3) Tessera, Inc.'s claim for
breach of the covenant of good faith and fair aeglto the
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extent that it is based on issues (1) and (2) glawe (4) the status of Tessera, Inc.'s latestagido terminate the license agreement, to the
extent that it is based on issues (1), (2), an@l@)ye.

On February 17, 2011, Tessera, Inc. sent Amkoiffaciad notice of termination of Amkor's licenser@gment with Tessera, Inc. Amkor has
disputed Tessera, Inc.'s right to terminate thenke agreement.

On March 11, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed a motiorkisgg among other things, to strike Amkor's defeokmvalidity for the time period before
Amkor challenged the validity of the asserted ptefhe Tribunal granted Tessera, Inc.'s motiodwn 1, 2011, striking (1) Amkor's
invalidity and unenforceability defenses to therpant of royalties that accrued under the assert&d patents before those defenses were
raised, and (2) Amkor's invalidity defenses tophgment of royalties due under the asserted foneégents regardless of when the royalties
accrued.

On June 1, 2011, the Tribunal issued an order agngtcertain claims of the patents-in-suit.

On July 11, 2011, the Tribunal issued a Partial Alaan certain issues tried to the Tribunal on Ddoen®-10, 2010. The Tribunal (1) granted
Tessera, Inc.'s request for additional royalties fiw the patents addressed in the previous atibitran an amount to be determined later, but
denied Tessera, Inc.'s claim for additional rogaltbwing from certain packages assembled for cis®mcluding Qualcomm, Inc., (2) found
that Amkor was in breach of the License Agreemertbats royalty obligations and the audit provisaf the license agreement, and

(3) deferred a final decision on certain groundgdéomination of the license agreement until theose phase of this arbitration has concluded

On August 15, 2011, pursuant to the parties' sijnn, the Tribunal entered an Order dismissindy\piejudice the parties' respective tortious
interference claims.

A seven-day hearing on the remaining issues wabkftamh August 15, 2011 to August 21, 2011.

On October 17, 2011, the Tribunal issued a Pakiiedrd on certain issues tried to the Tribunal or@&wvber 9-10, 2010. The Tribunal awardec
Tessera, Inc. approximately $0.5 million associatét additional royalties due for the patents a&dded in the previous arbitration.

On July 5, 2012, the Tribunal issued a Partial Alvé&rmong other things, the Partial Award furtheenpreted the parties' agreement, found
that certain packages were neither licensed naltypearing under the agreement, found that ortbeopatents at issue in the arbitration was
not valid, that seven of the asserted patents naranfringed by the accused Amkor products, thatilaset of accused Amkor products did not
infringe two additional asserted patents, and fibngdlties are due under seven of the patents @ issthe arbitration for certain TCC and
related integrated circuit packages. In additibe, Tribunal awarded interest to Tessera, Inc.ctefeAmkor's contention that it is in
compliance with the license agreement and thatatlicensee in good standing, rejected Amkorisnclaat Tessera, Inc.'s counterclaims were
barred by doctrines of laches, waiver, estoppeadlaan hands or the statute of limitations, rejeétetkor's request to enjoin Tessera, Inc. from
behavior outside the arbitral forum, and agreeti Tieasera, Inc. was entitled to and did terminag¢elitense agreement as of February 17, :
The Tribunal also found that the parties should ltesir own attorney's fees and costs. The Pakthard contains additional rulings not
summarized here. Further proceedings are expexteel tndertaken to ascertain, among other thihgsaimount due to Tessera, Inc. consistel
with the Partial Award. Tessera, Inc. cannot prettie timing of the damage award(s) that may re€utAugust 20, 2012, Tessera, Inc.
received an initial payment of $19.9 million frormor related to the Partial Award the Tribunal edwn July 5, 2012.

On November 27, 2012, the Tribunal issued an Addentb its Partial Award dated July 6, 2012.

On February 20, 2013, the Tribunal issued anotheid Award. Among other things, the February 2013 Partial Award further interpreted
the parties' agreement and the scope of produetsed by the now-terminated license agreement.

On April 16, 2013, the Tribunal issued an Ordeirigyout a schedule for the exchange of additiorsdaVery and the preparation of a joint
expert report in order to finalize the award of dges consistent with Partial Awards issued on 3uB012 and February 20, 2013. On
September 26, 2013, the Tribunal heard oral argtsr@mcerning disputes over the damages amoun@d@ber 7, 2013, the Tribunal issued
an interim order, ordering Amkor to provide additb discovery. The Tribunal also ordered a supptaaigoint expert report and further
briefing, which was completed on December 30, 20h&re may be further proceedings to ascertainngmther things, the amount due to
Tessera, Inc. Tessera, Inc. cannot predict the¢jrof the damages award(s) that may result.

Expert discovery is proceeding on Tessera, Infalms for royalties against certain Amkor packabased on certain additional patents
Tessera, Inc. has asserted against Amkor. On Ja@6aP013 the Tribunal denied Amkor's motion fartfal Summary Judgment seeking to
exclude certain packages as not covered by theskcagreement. On June 4, 2013, the
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Tribunal issued a claim construction ruling on digielitional patents. A hearing on these additioagéipts is tentatively scheduled for June
2014.

On April 9, 2013, Amkor filed a request fimter partesreview of U.S. Patent No. 6,046,076, one of thepston which the Tribunal awarded
damages as part of the July 5, 2012 Partial Awaudther information regarding thiister partesreview proceeding is provided above.

Amkor Technology, Inc. v. Tessera, Inc., Civil Action No. CPF-13-512796 (S.F. Superior Ct.); A139596 (1st District of California Court of
Appeals, Third Division))

On February 27, 2013, Amkor filed a petition in $Saancisco Superior Court to correct the July 3, 28rbitration award idmkor
Technology, Inc., v. Tessera, In¢CC Case No0.16531/VRO, to remove the grant ofages from February 2011 to July 2012, or in the
alternative to vacate the award. On March 8, 28h3kor filed a motion to Correct An Arbitration Awgin the San Francisco Superior Court
that substantially repeated the request for reli@s Petition. Amkor's Motion to Correct was heaand orally denied, on June 14, 2013. The
Court issued a signed order denying Amkor's Motm@orrect on June 25, 2013. Amkor filed a notitampeal on August 26, 2013. Amkor
filed its appeal brief on January 21, 2014. Tesdara’s response is due on March 2, 2014.

Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc. (ICC Case No. 17976/VRO)

On May 26, 2011, Tessera, Inc. filed an additiorguest for arbitration against Amkor before th€1The request, among other things, all
that Amkor failed to make a required election uritherparties' license agreement, and that Amkéedao comply with obligations regarding
“Licensee Improvements” under the license agreemiagsera, Inc. seeks relief including a declanatti@t Amkor breached the license
agreement; that the license agreement was profgertynated on this basis; a declaration that Anskaghts to Tessera, Inc.'s patents expired
on May 9, 2011 or earlier; the identification anahisfer of all Licensee Improvements to Tessei@; &m injunction preventing Amkor from
using Licensee Improvements, to the extent it lrisomplied with the license agreement; damagefiadégorgement of profits for Amkor's
failure to comply with the license agreement; attys' fees, costs and exemplary damages; and anfordsuch other and further relief as the
Tribunal deems just and proper. In its requests@iegs Inc. estimated the amount in dispute to exa@ess of $1 million.

On July 26, 2011, Amkor filed its response to thguest, which, among other things, denies Tesberss allegations, raises various purportec
defenses, asserts that Tessera, Inc.'s requestsiéfrshould be denied, contends that Tessecahlas breached the license agreement, argue
that Amkor is entitled to attorneys' fees, costd exemplary damages relating to the allegationfostt in Tessera, Inc.'s request, and asks th:
the Tribunal order Tessera, Inc. to pay such funtbkef to Amkor as the Tribunal deems approprid&ssera, Inc. filed an answer denying the
allegations in Amkor's response on September 11.201

On April 30, 2013 the ICC upon request of the garput the matter in abeyance until the earlighuole 30, 2014 or the final resolution of ICC
Case No. 16531/VRO.

Tessera, Inc. v. Amkor Technology, Inc., Civil Action No. 1:12-cv-00852-SLR (D. Del.)

On July 6, 2012, Tessera, Inc. filed a complairtiagt Amkor Technology, Inc. in the United Statestiict Court for the District of Delaware.
Tessera, Inc.'s complaint alleges that Amkor hgged and is currently infringing, including byreictly infringing, contributorily infringing
and/or inducing infringement of, U.S. Patent N@4&,076. The complaint requests of the Court, anuthgr things, a judgment that Amkor
has infringed or will infringe, induce others tdringe, and/or commit acts of contributory infrimgent of one or more claims of U.S. Patent
No. 6,046,076; an order that Amkor, its affiliatesbsidiaries, directors, officers, employees,ratgs, agents, and all persons in active cor
or participation with any of them be preliminardnd permanently enjoined from further acts of mfement, inducing infringement, or
contributory infringement of the U.S. Patent N@d4®,076; an order that the infringement be adjudgdtul and that the damages be increa
under 35 U.S.C § 284 to three times the amountdaymmeasured; an order for an accounting; andvamchof damages that result from
Amkor's infringing acts, interest on damages, atgs' fees and such other and further relief aCthat deems just and proper.

The accused products include, for example and withimitation, infringing vacuum encapsulated andlaed underfill semiconductor
packages manufactured by Amkor that are not liakbsesed on the July 5, 2012 arbitration awar@iritkor Technology, Inc., v. Tessera, Inc.
16531/VRO. On August 14, 2012, Amkor filed an ansamd counterclaims seeking a declaratory judgrieitU.S. Patent No. 6,046,076 is
not infringed and is invalid. It also interposefirafiative defenses,
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including but not limited to, non-infringement, aldity, estoppel, license, patent exhaustionufaito mark, and laches. Further, Amkor is
seeking an award of attorneys' fees and costssaetdother relief as the Court deems to be jusipaopler.

On April 9, 2013, Amkor filed a request fmter partesreview of U.S. Patent No. 6,046,076. Tessera,filed its preliminary response on July
12, 2013. Further information regarding thiter partesreview proceeding is provided above.

On April 29, 2013 Tessera, Inc. filed a reply to Karis counterclaims and an additional counterclagainst Amkor regarding infringement of
U.S. Patent No. 6,046,076. Tessera, Inc. interpaffachative defenses, including but not limited @mbitration and award, res judicata and
issue preclusion, failure to state a claim, vafidibd infringement, and equitable

relief.

On May 23, 2013, Amkor filed an answer to Tesskra,s counterclaim in reply, seeking to dismissSega, Inc.'s counterclaim in reply.
Amkor also asserted affirmative defenses, includingnot limited to, non-infringement, invaliditgstoppel, license, patent exhaustion, failure
to mark, laches, equitable estoppel, failure ttesdiaclaim, and no irreparable harm.

On November 13, 2013, the Court granted the pastigsilation to stay this district court proceeglipending the determination by the Tribuna
in ICC 16531/VRO identifying the packages on whiket ICC will award damages under U.S. Pat. No.&W76.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is traded publicly on The NASDAQIal Select Market under the symbol “TSRA.” Th&prrange per share is the
highest and lowest bid prices, as reported by TASIDNAQ Global Select Market, on any trading day dgrihe respective quarter.

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013
First Quarter (ended March 31, 2013) $ 1891 $ 15.8¢
Second Quarter (ended June 30, 2013) $ 213 % 18.11
Third Quarter (ended September 30, 2013) $ 225¢ % 18.1¢
Fourth Quarter (ended December 31, 2013) $ 20.6¢ $ 17.9¢
High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012
First Quarter (ended March 31, 2012) $ 2052 % 14.7(
Second Quarter (ended June 30, 2012) $ 17.3¢  $ 12.7i
Third Quarter (ended September 30, 2012) $ 1590 $ 13.63
Fourth Quarter (ended December 31, 2012) $ 16.6: $ 13.0¢

As of January 31, 2014 there were 53,111,401 oudsig shares of common stock held by 25 stockhsldérecord.

In April 2013, we announced plans for a capitab@dition strategy. The strategy maintains the otigaarterly dividend of $0.10 per share tha
was originally instituted in March 2012. We alsmaunced a plan to provide for special dividendseomyear equal to 20-30% of “Episodic
Gain,” which is net gain after expenses resultiognf “Episodic Revenue”. We define Episodic Reveasieevenue other than revenue payable
over at least one year pursuant to a contractpramdinclude revenue such as non-recurring engingéees, initial license fees, back payment:
resulting from audits, damages awards from courtslmnals, and lump sum settlement payments. Ae1020-30% of Episodic Gain would be
used to provide a “sinking fund” to provide for thewth of quarterly dividends. We also announcgtha to repurchase outstanding shares c
our common stock in an amount equal to 20-30% dddefic Gain. We anticipate that all quarterly apecial dividends, as well as stock
repurchases, would be paid out of cash, cash dgutgaand short-term investments.
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In 2012, we paid quarterly dividends of $0.10 garse in each of May 2012, August 2012 and Nover2b&R. In 2013, we paid quarterly
dividends of $0.10 per share in each of March 204y 2013, August 2013 and November 2013.

In May 2013, we also paid a special dividend oB88(per common share in accordance with the rewisedend policy noted above. The
special dividend was calculated based on the Efmisadin generated over the preceding four quarters.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graphic representation shows a comsparof total stockholder return for holders of dommon stock, the NASDAQ Compos
Index and the Philadelphia Stock Exchange Semiottodindex from December 31, 2008 through Decerlie2013. The graph and table
assume that $100 was invested on December 31,i2@2#h of our common stock, the NASDAQ Compositiek and the Philadelphia Stock
Exchange Semiconductor Index, and that all dividemdre reinvested. This graphic comparison is ptesiepursuant to the rules of the SEC.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
December 2013

300.00

250.00 +

200.00 A

150.00
100.00 L

50.00 +

0.00 . . . . .

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—+&— Tessem Technologies, Inc. — & — NASDAQ Composite-Total Returns +-=<>-+- Philadelphia Semiconductoer Index
12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13

Tessera Technologies, Inc. $ 100.0¢ $ 1958t $ 186.4f $ 140.9¢ $ 1413t $ 175.6
NASDAQ Composite $ 1000 $ 1453 $ 171.7( $ 1703« $ 20057 $ 281.1
PHLX Semiconductor $ 100.0¢ $ 1725 $ 199.8¢ $ 179.1f $ 19217 $ 2725

This section is not “soliciting material,” is noteimed “filed” with the SEC and is not incorporabgdreference in any filing of the Company
under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securlirshange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”), whether madére or after the date hereof and
irrespective of any general incorporation languiageny such filing.

STOCK REPURCHASES

The following are our monthly stock repurchasestierfourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, all of wlinivere made as part of a publicly
announced plan.
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Total number of Approximate dollar
shares purchased as value of shares that
part of our publicly

Total number Average announced share may yet be purchased

of shares price paid repurchase under our share

Period purchased per share program repurchase program (a)
(Shares in thousands)
2013
October 22C % 19.31 22(
November 641 $ 18.8¢ 641
December 38C $ 19.4¢ 38C
Total 1,241 % 19.27 1,241 $110.7 million

(a) In August 2007, our Board of Directors ("theaBd') authorized a plan to repurchase up to a maxirtotal of $100.0 million of our
outstanding shares of common stock dependent oketnemnditions, share price and other factors. dnédnber 2013, the Board increased
the amount authorized to be used for repurchasg$50.0 million. No expiration date has been spedifor this plan.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with “Management’sddission and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and our cadatéd financial statements and the related ngipsaring elsewhere in this Annual Report

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated statements of operations

data
Revenues:
Royalty and license fees (1) $ 168,90¢ $ 209,83¢ $ 237,92¢ % 281,170 $ 285,62(
Total revenues 168,90t 209,83t 237,92! 281,17" 285,62(
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 4,51¢ 7,84% 8,40¢ 6,42( 5,97¢
Research, development and other
related costs 86,65! 88,76: 65,66¢ 56,98¢ 50,82
Selling, general and administrative 82,23t 92,53: 79,16 74,14¢ 67,58¢
Litigation expense 60,38t¢ 34,01¢ 29,35« 21,89 26,13:
Restructuring, impairment of long-
lived assets and other charges 70,00° 2,52¢ 4,29¢ — —
Impairment of goodwill — — 38,08: — —
Total operating expenses 303,79 225,68: 224,96¢ 159,44« 150,51¢
Operating income (loss) (134,889 (15,849 12,95¢ 121,73: 135,10:
Other income and expense, net 1,78( 5,872 2,64: 2,60¢ 5,51¢
Income (loss) before taxes from
continuing operations (133,109 (9,972 15,59¢ 124,33 140,62:
Provision for income taxes 24,48: 1,144 14,28t 57,05¢ 60,15:
Income (loss) from continuing operations (157,59 (11,11¢ 1,31« 67,27¢ 80,46
Loss from discontinued operations, net of
tax (27,967) (19,109 (20,619 (9,937 (10,677)
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Net income (loss) $ (185,55) $ (30,227 $ (19,300 $ 57,34t $ 69,79¢

Income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations:

Basic (2) $ (2.95 % (0.27) % 0.0 $ 134 §$ 1.6
Diluted (2) $ (299 $ 0.2) $ 0.0: $ 132 § 1.62
Loss from discontinued operations:
Basic (2) $ (052 $ 037 $ 040 $ 020 $ (0.22)
Diluted (2) $ (0.52) $ (0.37) $ 0.40 $ 0.20 $ (0.22)
Net loss:
Basic (2) $ (3.4¢) 9 (0.5¢) $ (0.3¢) $ 118 $ 1.42
Diluted (2) $ (3.4¢) $ (0.5¢9) $ (0.35) % 114  $ 1.42
Cash dividends declared per share $ 0.7¢ $ 03C % — % — $ —
Weighted average number of shares used in
per share calculation-basic (2) 53,34¢ 51,971 51,08: 50,07( 48,82¢
Weighted average number of shares use
per share calculation-diluted (2) 53,34t 51,97% 51,44: 50,45( 49,26

December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(in thousands)
Consolidated balance sheets data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

investments $ 359,58 $ 442,60: $ 492,44¢ % 475,008 $ 387,95¢
Working capital $ 353,82 $ 422,11 $ 481,42 $ 468,91: $ 379,55¢
Total assets $ 484,75 % 705,10 $ 716,52t % 711,85 $ 616,31¢
Long-term liabilities $ 5827 $ 9,50t $ 5017 $ 10,50 $ 11,43:
Total stockholders’ equity $ 440,43 % 642,42¢ $ 670,67¢ $ 664,58. $ 572,18!

(1) Revenue previously classified as past prodagteyments, defined as royalty payments for theofiseir intellectual property and where
payments are made as part of a settlement of atgafengement dispute from previously unlicengetties, has been reclassified and is
included in "Royalty and License Fees."

(2) See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Firdr8tatements for an explanation of the methodd tesdetermine the number of shares use
to compute per share amounts.

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion (presented in thousandseet for percentages) should be read in conjuncti@h our consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

Business Overview
Tessera Technologies, Inc. is a holding companly eyierating subsidiaries in two segments: Intall@gicProperty and DigitalOptics.

Our Intellectual Property segment generates revéoue manufacturers and other implementers thabuseéechnology. We pioneered chip-
scale packaging solutions, which we license tes#fmaiconductor industry. We also develop and acdniegconnect solutions and intellectual
property in areas such as mobile computing and aamzations, memory and data storage, and 3DIC tdobies.

Our DigitalOptics segment has undergone many cteadgeng 2013 and 2014 through the date of thienteps summarized under the heading
“Overview” in Part I, Item 1Busines®f this Annual Report.
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In 2014, we plan to continue the DigitalOptics ended image processing development operations la$eaimania and Ireland (which
includes FaceTool", FacePowel" , FotoSavwy", face beautification, red-eye removal, HDR, panmaand image stabilization products),
which are not impacted by the restructuring andkfarce reduction we announced in January 2014. tkaidilly, we plan to seek additional
ways to monetize the DigitalOptics intellectual peaty portfolio and technology, through a salegttising or other means.

In this document, the operations and financial ltssaf the Micro-Optics business and the Zhuhailfgaoutlined under the heading
“Overview” in Part I, Item 1Busines®f this Annual Report, will be considered discon8d operations. All other financial results, indchgl
the mems|cam operations noted in the “Overviewe iacluded in continuing operations.

Results of Operations
Restructuring Activities

As noted under the heading "Overview" in Partdnitl - Busines®f this Annual Report, we have had three majoruestring actions in 201:
Key financial impacts of these actions are as ¥ailo

1) We sold most of the assets of the Micro-Optigsifiess located in Charlotte, North Carolina inhexage for $14.9 million in cash, which
resulted in a disposal gain of $8.7 million . Weurred $2.6 million in restructuring and impairmehgrges related to this action. All financial
results of this business are included in discomtihoperations.

2) We closed our Zhuhai Facility and consolidatadmanufacturing capabilities into Taiwan. We irregr$4.1 million in restructuring and
impairment charges related to this action. All finil results of this business are included inatisicued operations.

3) In January of 2014, we announced the cessafiath mems|cam manufacturing operations. As a tesd incurred approximately $49.0
million in long-lived asset impairment and othendles related to the mems|cam operations in thghfquarter of 2013. In addition, we
anticipate that this decision may result in seveezemd other charges of between $6.0 million t6 $@llion in the first half of 2014. The 2013
financial results of this business and this restmicg action are included in continuing operatiasshe decision to discontinue the operations
and dispose of the assets was not made until Ja@04&n.

For more information regarding these actions, set ¥ - "Discontinued Operation§ Note 8—" Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assets
and Note 15- "Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assetd &ther Chargesih the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

All financial results and discussions below rekateontinuing operations unless otherwise specified

Revenue

Our revenues are generated primarily from royatiy kcense fees. Royalty and license fees are g@tkfrom licensing the right to use our
technologies or intellectual property. Licenseesegally report shipment information 30 to 60 dafterahe end of the quarter in which such
activity takes place. Since there is no reliablgidan which we can estimate our royalty revenuies o obtaining these reports from the
licensees, we generally recognize royalty reveimmes one quarter lag. The timing of revenue redagnand the amount of revenue actually
recognized for each type of revenues depends upanety of factors, including the specific ternfeeach arrangement, our ability to derive
fair value of the element and the nature of ouiveehbles and obligations. In addition, our royaktyenues will fluctuate based on a number o
factors such as: (a) the timing of receipt of royaéports; (b) the rate of adoption and incorgorabf our technology by licensees; (c) the
demand for products incorporating semiconductaas tise our licensed technology; (d) the cyclicaitgupply and demand for products using
our licensed technology; (e) volume incentive prgcierms in licensing agreements that may resudignificant variability in quarterly revent
recognition from customers and (f) the impact afremmic downturns.

From time to time we enter into license agreemtrashave fixed expiration dates. Upon expiratibsuch agreements, we need to renew or
replace these agreements in order to maintainemenue base. We may not be able to continue liegresistomers on terms favorable to us,
under the existing terms or at all, which wouldrharur results of operations. For example, our Beeagreement with Micron Technology, |
expired in May 2012. Micron Technology, Inc. acctmehfor 10% or more of total revenues for the yeraded December 31, 2012. This
expiration has caused a substantial adverse inbpacir royalty revenue as compared to periods poiguch expiration. If we are not able to
enter into a new license agreement with Micron hebtbgy, Inc., it will continue to have a substah#idverse impact on our royalty revenue.

PTI, a customer that accounted for 10% or moretal tevenues for the year ended December 31, 2@h2ed making payments in 2012,
which caused a substantial adverse impact to gatsorevenue as compared to prior periods. On&hr27, 2014, we announced a
settlement with PTI related to Tessera, Inc.’s Biitls pending cases in the United States District
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Court for the Northern District of California. Tlsettlement provides that PTI will pay $196 millienTessera, Inc. with two required payme
to be made in 2014 and quarterly recurring paymieeggnning in 2015 through the end of 2018.

In the past, we have engaged in litigation andtietidn proceedings to directly or indirectly erderour intellectual property rights and the
terms of our license agreements, including procegdio ensure proper and full payment of royaltiesur current licensees and by third
parties whose products incorporate our intelleguaperty rights. For example, on February 20, 2@&3nternational Court of Arbitration of
the International Chamber of Commerce issued amdhindavor of Tessera, Inc. in its dispute with Ron. Tessera, Inc. cannot predict the
precise amount or the timing of Amkor's payment. bgkeve that the dispute with Amkor and similatufie proceedings may result in
fluctuations in our revenue and expenses.

The following table presents our historical opaeratiesults for the periods indicated as a percentdgevenues:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Royalty and license fees (1) 10C % 10C % 10C %
Total Revenues 10C 10C 10C
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 3 4 4
Research, development and other related costs 51 42 28
Selling, general and administrative 49 44 33
Litigation expense 36 17 13
Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atiger charges 41 1 2
Total operating expenses 18C 10€ 95
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations (80) (8 5
Other income and expense, net 1 3 1
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeetax (79 5) 7
Provision for income taxes 14 1 6
Income (loss) from continuing operations (93 5) 1
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax a7 9) 9)
Net loss (110% (14)% (8)%

(1) Revenue previously classified as past productigmgats, defined as royalty payments for the ussuointellectual property and where
payments are made as part of a settlement of atgatengement dispute from previously unlicengedties, has been reclassified and is
included in "Royalty and License Fees"

The following table sets forth our revenues by y@athousands, except for percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase/ %
2013 2012 (Decrease) Change
Royalty and license fees $ 168,90¢ $ 209,83t $ (40,93() (20)%

Total revenue for the years ended December 31, 20d2012 was $168.9 million and $209.8 millioespectively. See “Segment Operating
Results” below for an explanation of the change®ugnue between the reporting periods.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues primarily consists of amortizatibimtangible assets related to acquired techriespglirect compensation and depreciation
expense. Amortization of certain acquired intargjdssets and depreciation expense of propertyqngmeent are generally classified as a
component of cost of revenues from research, dpusdat and other related costs when an in-procesdajement project reaches
commercialization. For each associated period, @ostvenues as a percentage of

42






Table of Contents

total revenues varies based on the rate of adopfionr technologies and the timing of property agdipment being placed in service.

Cost of revenues for the year ended December 3B @@s $4.5 million , as compared to $7.8 millionthe year ended December 31, 2042
decrease of $3.3 million, or 42%. The decreasepsiazarily related to the $2.3 million decrease inaatization due to the impairment of
intangibles in 2013 (see Note 8 Gbodwill and Identified Intangibles Assétim the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenjeatsd a $0.9
million decrease in outside services.

Research, Development and Other Related

Research, development and other related costsstgmsnarily of compensation and related costgpfmsonnel, as well as costs related to
patent applications and examinations, product 'learns" and reverse engineering, amortization t@figible assets, materials, supplies and
equipment depreciation. Research and developmenniducted primarily in-house and targets develagroechip-scale packaging, circuitry
design, 3D architecture, wafer-level packaging medbgy, high-density substrate, image sensor pasgagnd image enhancement technology
All research, development and other related castegpensed as incurred.

Research, development and other related costedoretar ended December 31, 2013 were $86.7 mjlksncompared to $88.8 million for the
year endeDecember 31, 2012 , a decrease of $2.1 millio2%r The decrease was primarily related to a redudti outside services of $3.3
million, personnel related expenses of $3.4 milliand stock-based compensation of $1.7 million s€hdecreases were partially offset by an
increase in depreciation expense of $3.0 millianijlities related expense of $1.6 million, and mate expense of $1.2 million due to the
expansion of the DigitalOptics mems|cam manufagtudperation in Taiwan.

We believe that a significant level of research dedelopment expenses will be required for us teaia competitive in the future, we also
expect research and development costs to declid@lis from current levels as a result of the shutdof the DigitalOptics mems|cam
manufacturing operation (see Note 17Subsequent Eventsn the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling expenses consist primarily of compensatiot related costs for sales and marketing perspravedrse engineering personnel and
services, marketing programs, public relationsptional materials, travel, trade show expenses stock-based compensation expense.
General and administrative expenses consist piliynafrcompensation and related costs for generalagament, information technology, and
finance personnel, legal fees and expenses, fasitibsts, stock-based compensation expense, afabgional services. Our general and
administrative expenses, other than facilitiesteel@xpenses, are not allocated to other expamsé@dims. Our selling, general and
administrative expenses declined in 2013 as we mapkemented cost savings strategies. We anticifh@&t®e costs to decline further in 2014
from current levels as we continue to restructuneaperations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ®tar ended December 31, 2013 were $82.2 millikancompared to $92.5 million for the
year endedDecember 31, 2012 , a decrease of $10.3 milliod186. The decrease was primarily attributable trekeses in outside services of
$4.7 million, personnel related expenses of 3.3anil facilities related expenses of $1.9 milliemd travel related expenses of $1.0 million.
The decreases were primarily the result of theallvstreamlining of our administrative personnedl autside services (see Note 15 —"
Restructuring, Impairment of Lo-Lived Assets and Other Chardeisn the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeansl were partially
offset by a $1.9 million increase in depreciaticpense.

Litigation Expenst

Litigation expense for the year ended Decembef313 was $60.4 million , as compared to $34.0 arilfor the year ended December 31,
2012, an increase of $26.4 million, or 78%. Theéase was primarily attributable to the incredseaee activities in our docket of legal
proceedings.

We expect that litigation expense will continudotoa material portion of our operating expensdatire periods, and may fluctuate
significantly between periods, because of our amgditigation, as described in Part I, Item Begal Proceeding, and because of litigation
initiated from time to time in the future in orderenforce and protect our intellectual propertgl aontract rights.
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Upon expiration of the current terms of our custshicenses, if those licenses are not renewéidation may become a necessary element o
a campaign to secure payment of reasonable roydttiche use of our patented technology. If wedte such litigation, our future litigation
expenses may increase.

Restructuring, Impairment of Lo-Lived Assets and Other Charges

In 2013, we continued the restructuring of our Rilfdptics business and assessed the recoveralfilityr manufacturing assets during the
year. We incurre$70.0 million of restructuring, impairment of lotiged assets and other charges for the year endedrbber 31, 2013 whit
were mainly due to $58.3 million of impairmentslafig-lived assets and $9.8 million of purchaseg#ilons (see Note 15 -Restructuring,
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Other Chardeis the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateméntsdditional details).

Stock-based Compensation Expense

The following table sets forth our stock-based cengation expense for the years ended Decembef33,éhd 2012 (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Cost of revenues $ 50 $ 641
Research, development and other related costs 3,591 6,45¢
Selling, general and administrative 9,862 9,94(
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 13,50¢  $ 17,03¢

Stock-based compensation awards included empldgek sptions, restricted stock awards and unitd,@mployee stock purchases. For the
year ended December 31, 2013, s-based compensation expense was $13.5 millionvhath $7.8 million related to employee stock opsipn
$4.3 million related to restricted stock awards ands and $1.4 million related to employee stoakchases. For the year ended December 31
2012, stock-based compensation expense was $1fidnmif which $10.3 million related to employetsk options, $4.8 million related to
restricted stock awards and units and $1.9 millelated to employee stock purchases. The decreatedk-based compensation from 2012 to
2013 primarily resulted from forfeitures of optioasd restricted stock awards and units due to teduin staff, offset by increased expenses
related to the modification of expenses relatestdok awards of $3.5 million in the year ended Datwer 31, 2013 versus $0.1 million in the
year ended December 31, 2012. Modifications typicacur when we enter into consulting agreemertitis departing employees. Futt
stock-based compensation expense will vary duelatility in our stock price, number and type afck awards granted and timing of
modifications to stock awards, if any.

Other Income and Expense, Net

Other income and expense, net for the year endedrbleer 31, 2013 was $1.8 million , as comparedt8 #illion , for the year ended
December 31, 2012 . The decrease was primariipatable to a $5.4 million payment we received frAmkor in 2012 related to the
International Court of Arbitration of the Internatial Chamber of Commerce interim award in favof@e$sera, Inc. that was recorded as int
income.

Provision for (benefit from) Income Tax

The provision for income taxes for the year endedddnber 31, 2013 was $24.5 million, and was coragris a tax expense for domestic and
selected foreign jurisdictions as well as foreigthtwlding and income taxes. The provision for imeotaxes for the year ended December 31
2012 was $1.1 million, and was largely comprised &reign withholding and income taxes offset tyeaefit for domestic federal tax. The
increase in the tax expense for the year endedrbleee31, 2013 as compared to the prior year waglhaattributable to the valuation
allowance on substantially all the Company’s feblldederred tax assets.

During 2013, we recorded a valuation allowanceragjaubstantially all of our federal deferred tageas as we concluded such assets were n
longer fully realizable. The need for a valuataiowance requires an assessment of both positigeagative evidence when determining
whether it is more likely than not that deferrex &gsets are recoverable; such assessment ise@quira jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. In
making such assessment, significant weight is gigezvidence that can be objectively verified. ekftonsidering both negative and positive
evidence to assess the recoverability of our nigrokl tax assets during 2013, we determined theds not more likely than not we would
realize the full value of our federal deferred &msets given current uncertainties regarding thimgj of profits that has caused the Company t
bein a
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cumulative three year loss position as of Decer3tie2013. We continue to monitor the likelihoodttive will be able to recover our deferred
tax assets in the future. This determination idekiobjectively verifiable positive evidence thatveeighs potential negative evidence.

Discontinued Operation

In 2013, we sold our Micro-Optics business locate@harlotte, North Carolina, and shut-down our eeamodule manufacturing facility in
Zhuhai, China. Both of these operations were pfastio DigitalOptics segment. In 2013 and all prexgeriods presented, these operations a
reported as discontinued operations. For furthfarination about discontinued operations, see Noté Biscontinued Operationsin the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fortamtail details

Fiscal Year 2012 and 2011
The following table sets forth our revenues by t{ipghousands, except for percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase/
2012 2011 (Decrease) Change
Royalty and license fees $ 209,83¢ $ 237,92 $ (28,08 (12)%

Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2@k2$209.8 million compared to $237.9 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2011.
“Segment Operating Results” below for an explamatibthe changes in revenue between the reporgniogs.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for the year ended December 32, @@s $7.8 million , as compared to $8.4 millionthe year ended December 31, 2011, :
decrease of $0.6 million, or 7%. This decreaseltesdirom a $1.7 million decrease in outside sawioffset by a $1.3 million increase in
intangible amortization.

Research, Development and Other Related

Research, development and other related costhdorear ended December 31, 2012 were $88.8 milliencompared to $65.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $#Bidn, or 35%. The increase was primarily duertcreases in personnel related expel

of $7.8 million, in material costs of $3.5 millioim consulting fees of $2.5 million, in patent peostion, application and examination expense:
of $2.0 million, mask and tooling expenses of $hillion, travel related expenses of $1.7 milliordan the amortization of intangible assets of
$1.6 million. These increases were primarily theuteof the expansion of the DigitalOptics busines®l were partially offset by a decrease in
stock-based compensation expense of $1.5 million.

We believe that a significant level of research dedelopment expenses will be required for us toaia competitive in the future.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses ®tar ended December 31, 2012 were $92.5 millikancompared to $79.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $1iBidn, or 17%. The increase was primarily atttigole to increases in outside service
$5.3 million related to our acquisition activitiesnortization of intangible assets of $5.2 milli@sulting from purchases of intangible assets,
personnel related expenses of $4.0 million, tragkelted expenses of $1.3 million, general legakesps of $1.6 million, audit and tax fees of
$1.0 million and depreciation of $1.0 million, affsoy a decrease in stock-based compensation expéf6.9 million. The decrease in stock-
based compensation is mainly due to the decreasediifications as noted in theStock-based Compensation Experdistussion below.

Litigation Expenst

Litigation expense for the year ended DecembeRB12 was $34.0 million , as compared to $29.4 arilfor the year ended December 31,
2011, an increase of $4.6 million, or 16%. The éase was primarily attributable to the timing a$ecactivities in our docket of legal
proceedings.
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Restructuring and Other Charg

In January 2011, we announced a reorganizatiomob@italOptics segment to focus on key growth agpnities including EDoF, Zoom and
MEMS-based autofocus, and a reduction up to 15%uofvorldwide employee base. In August 2011, weoanoed a commitment to
undertake a workforce reduction at our Yokohampadalevelopment facility and to close that facilityorder to optimize our operations.
Restructuring and other charges primarily consisfezskverance, costs related to the continuatie@ngfloyee benefits, expenses related to the
closure of facilities, and other costs relatechi d¢losure of the leased facility in Japan. Restrug and other charges were $5.2 million for
year ended December 31, 20

In November 2012, we announced further restrucguoinour DigitalOptics segment to focus our effatsour core MEMS camera module
business. In connection with this effort, we redlioar workforce and ceased operations at our fadiliTel Aviv, Israel. In connection with
these actions, we incurred total charges of $2lkomin the fourth quarter of 2012.

Impairment of Goodwil

In 2011, we recorded a goodwill impairment charg$49.7 million due primarily to the low market pei of our common stock, which resulted
in our market capitalization being significantlyder than the book value of equity for an extendexdog of time.

Stock-based Compensation Expense
The following table sets forth our stock-based cengation expense for the periods indicated (inghods):

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Cost of revenues $ 641 $ 45¢
Research, development and other related costs 6,45¢ 8,23:
Selling, general and administrative 9,94( 16,87¢
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 17,03¢ $ 25,57(

Stock-based compensation awards included empldgek gptions, restricted stock awards and unitd, @nployee stock purchases. For the
year ended December 31, 2012, s-based compensation expense was $17.0 million, @ha$10.3 million related to employee stock optic
$4.8 million related to restricted stock awards anids and $1.9 million related to employee stookcpases. For the year ended December 31
2011, stock-based compensation expense was $2Bidghmof which $16.5 million related to employe®ek options, $7.0 million related to
restricted stock awards and units and $2.1 millelated to employee stock purchases. The $8.5omitlecrease in stock-based compensation
in 2012 when compared to 2011 was primarily theltex a $5.1 million decrease in expense relatechodifications. Modifications typically
occur when we enter into consulting agreements géfparting employees. Some of these agreementsneiage continued vesting of the
departing employees’ stock awards and an exterditre exercise period from the standard 90 days #employment termination date to the
termination of the consulting agreement.

Other Income and Expense, Net

Other income and expense, net, was $5.9 millionHeryear ended December 31, 2012 compared ton§iftién for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase was primarily dube portion of the payment from Amkor relatedhe International Court of Arbitration
of the International Chamber of Commerce interinaahin favor of Tessera, Inc. that was recordeidtasest income offset by lower interest
income resulting from a reduction in cash, cashwdgnts and short-term investments.

Provision for (benefit from) Income Tax

The provision for income taxes for the year endedédnber 31, 2012 of $1.1 million was largely cosgnli of foreign income and withholding
taxes as offset by domestic income tax benefit. @fogision for income taxes for the year ended Ddwmer 31, 2011 was $14.3 million and v
largely comprised of domestic income tax, foreigeoime and withholding taxes as offset by a tax tieofethe impairment of tax-deductible
goodwill. The decrease in income tax expense fytar ended December 31, 2012 as compared toitig/@ar was largely attributable to
U.S. domestic loss incurred in the year ended 20fs2t by an increase in valuation allowance relatestate and foreign deferred tax assets.
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Segment Operating Results

We have two reportable segments: Intellectual Rtg@and DigitalOptics. Corporate Overhead includegain operating amounts such as
finance, IT, HR, legal, business development aheéroadministrative services that are not alloctettie reportable segments because these
operating amounts are not considered in evaludiiegperating performance of the Company’s busisegments.

Our Chief Executive Officer is also the Chief Oirg Decision Maker (“CODM”") as defined by the aaititative guidance on segment
reporting. We have organized our reporting unitalign with the vision of the CODM.

Our Intellectual Property segment, managed by Tadséellectual Property Corp., generates revenum fnanufacturers and other
implementers that use our technology. The segmehtdes our subsidiaries, Tessera, Inc. and Ingefd&ssera, Inc. pioneered chip-scale
packaging solutions, which it licenses to the semdiictor industry. Invensas develops and acquitesdonnect solutions and intellectual
property in areas such as mobile computing and aamwations, memory and data storage, and 3DIC tdobies.

FotoNation (part of the DigitalOptics segment) aéfembedded image processing solutions which ieslikhceTools™, face beautification,
red-eye removal, FacePowér, FotoSavvy™, HDR, panorama, and image stabilization produsdslitionally, DigitalOptics seeks to monet
the DigitalOptics intellectual property portfolimétechnology, through a sale, licensing or otheans.

Our reportable segments were determined basedthpananner in which our management views and eteduaur operations. Segment
information below and in Note 14 -Segment and Geographic Informatibaf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateméntgesented in
accordance with the authoritative guidance on segneporting.

The following table sets forth our segments’ revagjwperating expenses and operating loss (in dimols3:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Intellectual Property revenues $ 14997. $ 192,89: $ 213,41
DigitalOptics revenues 18,93¢ 16,94¢ 24,51
Total revenues 168,90¢ 209,83t 237,92!
Operating expenses:
Intellectual Property Segment 118,83¢ 97,98 81,49:
DigitalOptics Segment 143,82 80,67 96,50¢
Corporate Overhead 41,13« 47,02: 46,96¢
Total operating expenses 303,79 225,68: 224,96
Operating income (loss):
Intellectual Property Segment 31,13: 94,90¢ 131,91¢
DigitalOptics Segment (124,889 (63,729 (71,999
Corporate Overhead (41,139 (47,029 (46,969
Total operating income (loss) $ (134,889 $ (15,849 $ 12,95¢

Revenues and operating income and loss amourtigsiedction have been presented on a basis cansigte U.S. GAAP applied at the
segment level. Corporate Overhead expenses, whigh lheen excluded, are primarily support servicesian resources, legal, finance, IT,
corporate development, procurement activities,inadrance expenses. For the year ended Decemb20B3, Corporate Overhead expenses
were $41.1 million as compared to $47.0 millionthee year ended December 31, 20The decrease of $5.9 million was mainly attriblgao
decreases in employee related expenses of $2i8miind outside services of $2.3 million. The dase in employee related expenses res
primarily from reduced headcount due to our restmircg of our DigitalOptics business. For the yeamsled December 31, 2012 and 2011,
Corporate Overhead expenses were $47.0 million .

Intellectual Property Segme
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Fiscal Year 2013 and 2012

Years ended
December 31

2013 2012
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Intellectual Property segment
Royalty and license fees $ 149,97 $ 192,89:
Total Intellectual Property revenues 149,97. 192,89:.
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 68¢ 891
Research, development and other related costs 25,91 32,78
Selling, general and administrative 29,76: 30,06
Litigation expense 60,15¢ 34,24¢
Restructuring charges, impairment of long-liveceésand other charges 2,32( —
Total operating expenses 118,83¢ 97,98
Total operating income $ 31,13 § 94,90¢

Intellectual Property revenues consist primarily@falty and license fees received from our licessé&or the year ended December 31, 2013
Intellectual Property revenues were $150.0 milbsrcompared to $192.9 million for the year endeded®er 31, 2012 , a decrease of $42.9
million, or 22%. The overall decrease in revenuas wimarily due to the $49.1 million decreaseoyaity revenues primarily from Micron
Technology Inc. and Powertech Technology, Inc.

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@03B,were $118.8 million and consisted primarilyegearch, development and other
related costs of $25.9 million , selling, generad administrative expenses of $29.8 million aniddition expenses of $60.2 million .
Restructuring charges, impairment of long-livedeéssand other charges for the year ended Decenib@033 included a $1.5 million charge
relating to disposal of an entity that furtheredated packaging solutions, $0.7 million of fixexbet impairments and $0.1 million in
severance. The increase of $20.9 million or 21% pvasarily attributable to the $25.9 million incismin litigation expense offset by a $6.9
million decrease in research and development expense e€heade in research and development expense waly gi@ven by the decreases
outside services of $2.1 million, patent and tradeafiling expenses of $2.1 million, personnel tethexpenses of $1.6 million, and stock
compensation of $0.8 million.

We expect that litigation expense will continudotoa material portion of our operating expensdatire periods, and may fluctuate
significantly in some periods, because of our ongditigation, as described in Part I, Item Begal Proceedingsand because of litigation
initiated from time to time in the future in orderenforce and protect our intellectual propertgl aontract rights.

Operating income for the year ended December 3113 2as $31.1 million as compared to operating ireai$94.9 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2012 , which represented a decre&@3d@ million , or 67% , for the reasons stateovab

Fiscal Year 2012 and 2011
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Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011

(in thousands)

Revenues:
Intellectual Property segment
Royalty and license fees $ 192,89: $ 213,41;
Total Intellectual Property revenues 192,89:. 213,411
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 891 2,591
Research, development and other related costs 32,78: 28,75:
Selling, general and administrative 30,06¢ 17,72¢
Litigation expense 34,24¢ 29,30¢
Restructuring and other charges — 3,11:
Total operating expenses 97,98 81,49:
Total operating income $ 94,90¢ $ 131,91¢

For the year ended December 31, 2012, Intelle&mberty revenue was $192.9 million, compared tiB3$%2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The overall decrease of $20IBmor 10%, was primarily due to PTI ceasing taka payments in 2012, the expiration
of Micron Technology Inc.’s license and lower walumes reported by other customers, partiallyeiftsy a $24.7 million payment from
Spansion Inc. related to settlement of litigatiar$19.9 million payment from Amkor ($16.7 milliofithe payment was recorded as royalties
and the balance as interest income) related tmtegm award by the International Court of Arbttoa of the International Chamber of
Commerce and by license and royalty payments afoeqapately $9.4 million related to audits.

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@032, were $98.0 million and consisted primarilyedearch and development expense of
$32.8 million, selling, general and administratofes30.1 million and $34.2 million in litigation pense. The increase of $16.5 million as
compared to $81.5 million for the year ended Decan®i, 2011 was primarily attributable to an insee@ the amortization of intangible
assets of $8.3 million, an increase in litigatioppense of $4.9 million, an increase in patent negiance expense of $4.0 million and an
increase in consulting fees of $2.5 million. Thesweases were partially offset by a decreaseoickdbased compensation expense of $2.1 an
no restructuring and other charges in 2012 compar&3.1 million in 2011.

We expect that litigation expense will continuébtoa material portion of the Intellectual Propesgment’s operating expenses in future
periods, and may fluctuate significantly in somequs, because of our ongoing legal actions, asriesl in Part I, Iltem 3—-Legal
Proceedings, and because we will become involved in othegdition from time to time in the future in orderewforce and protect our
intellectual property and contract rights.

In 2011, we announced workforce reductions anasuce of our Yokohama, Japan development facilitgpant to our ongoing efforts to
optimize our operations. Restructuring and othargés primarily consisted of severance, costseelat the continuation of employee benefits
and expenses related to the facility closure thanhat expected to be recurring.

Operating income for the years ended December@2 and 2011 was $94.9 million and $131.9 milli@spectively, which represented a
decrease of $37.0 million, or 28%, for the reasiated above.

DigitalOptics Segmer

Fiscal Year 2013 and 2012

49




Table of Contents

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
(in thousands)
Revenues:
DigitalOptics segment
Royalty and license fees $ 18,93¢ $ 16,94¢
Total DigitalOptics revenues 18,93¢ 16,94¢
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 3,827 6,95¢
Research, development and other related costs 60,74( 55,98(
Selling, general and administrative 13,66¢ 15,217
Litigation 74 —
Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atiter charges 65,51" 2,52¢
Total operating expenses 143,82 80,67¢
Total operating loss $ (124,889 $ (63,729

DigitalOptics revenues for the year ended DecerBteP013 were $18.9 million as compared to $16/8anifor the year ended December 31,
2012, an increase of $2.0 million or 12%his increase was due primarily to higher revemadated to royalties and licenses of our Fotadtk
image enhancement technologies.

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@033, were $143.8 million . The increase of $63.Mlioni, or 78% , in total operating
expenses as compared to $80.7 million for the gaded December 31, 2012 , was primarily due t&@80 million increase in restructuring,
impairment of long-lived assets, and other char§es. Note 15 —Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assets @tlder Charges in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fortemtgil details

Operating expenses are expected to decrease sagnifi in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to the shrtdf DigitalOptics manufacturing
activities in January 2014 (see Note 17Subsequent Everitsn the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemjents

Operating loss for the years ended December 318 aod 2012 was $124.9 million and $63.7 millioespectively, which represented an
increased loss of $61.2 million, or 96%, for thasens stated above.

Fiscal Year 2012 and 2011

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(in thousands)

Revenues:
DigitalOptics segment
Royalty and license fees $ 16,94¢ $ 24,51
Total DigitalOptics revenues 16,94¢ 24,51:
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 6,95¢ 5,80¢
Research, development and other related costs 55,98( 36,91¢
Selling, general and administrative 15,217 14,77
Restructuring and other charges 2,52¢ 934
Impairment of goodwiill — 38,08:
Total operating expenses 80,67: 96,50¢
Total operating loss $ (63,729 $ (71,999

DigitalOptics revenues for the year ended DecerBiigP012 were $16.9 million as compared to $24J8anifor the year ended December 31,
2011, a decrease of $7.6 million or 31%. The demreeas mainly due to a 39.3% decrease in royattyieanse revenues from our image
enhancement technologies.
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We recorded an impairment charge of goodwill of $38illion for the year ended December 31, 201 % giimarily to the low market price of
our common stock, which resulted in our market tedigation being significantly lower than the boekiue of equity for an extended period of
time.

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@032, were $80.7 million and consisted of cost géreies of $7.0 million , research,
development and other related costs of $56.0 milliselling, general and administrative expense&l6f2 million and restructuring and other
charges of $2.5 million . Excluding impairment afogiwill, the increase of $22.2 million, or 38% tatal operating expenses as compared to
$58.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2@bhsisted of increases which relate primarilyhi® éxpansion of the DigitalOptics busin
in Taiwan. The increases include personnel relexpenses of $11.0 million, materials and supplfe6al million, outside services of $1.4
million, and equipment depreciation of $1.2 million

In January 2011, we announced a reorganizationob@italOptics segment to focus on key growth agpnities including EDoF, Zoom and
MEMS-based autofocus. We also announced a reductibigitalOptics employees up to 15% of our woridezemployee base. In November
2012, the Company announced further restructuriritg ®igitalOptics segment to focus its effortsitgicore MEMS camera module business.
In connection with this effort, DigitalOptics redeatits workforce and ceased operations at itsifia@il Tel Aviv, Israel. Restructuring and
other charges primarily consisted of severancecasts related to the continuation of employee hitnéfat are not expected to be recurring.

Operating loss for the years ended December 32 a@6d 2011 was $63.7 million and $72.0 millionspectively, which represented a
decreased loss of $8.3 million, or 12%, for thesoes stated above.

Net Operating Losses and Tax Credit Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2013, we had federal net opgradiss carryforwards of approximately $53.8 miiliand state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $122.1 million . lysificant amount of the state net operating lassyforwards are carried over from the
acquired entities, Digital Optics Corporation ir080and Siimpel Corporation in 2010. If not utilizedese operating loss carryforwards will
begin to expire on various dates beginning in 28d will continue to expire through 2033. In aduditiwe have research tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $2.7 millidar federal purposes which will start to expire2®l4 and will continue to expire through 2033.
also have research tax credit carryforwards of @pprately $4.9 million for state purposes and $hillion for foreign purposes, which will
never expire. We have $19.9 million of foreign tawdit carryforwards which will expire beginning2022 and will continue to expire through
2023. Under the provisions of the Internal Reve@uode, substantial changes in the Company's oulitsidiaries' ownership may limit the
amount of net operating loss and research taxtaradiyforwards that can be utilized annually ia fhture to offset taxable income.

Tax Benefits from Stock Options

The benefits of tax deductions resulting from tkereise and disqualifying dispositions of stockiops and vesting of restricted stock reduce
our income taxes payable for federal and stateqa&® There were no tax benefits from our emplsy@ek option plan for the year ended
2013. The tax benefits from our employee stockapgilan totaled $5.5 million and $7.7 million ftvetyears ended 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The tax benefits for the excessfieductions over the related stock-based compensatpense recorded will create a benefit
to additional paid-in capital. Conversely, cand@ias and modifications of stock option and restdcstock result in a reversal of the related
deferred tax assets and a debit to additional maddpital to the extent that excess amounts haee previously recorded in additional paid in
capital, otherwise the debit will be to the proeisifor income tax. The Company recorded a valualtmwance on its domestic deferred tax
assets; therefore, any reversal of the deferredgaats related to stock options cancellationsvaodifications do not impact the Company's
overall tax provision for the year ended 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
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December 31,

(in thousands, except for percentages) 2013 2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,72: % 103,80: $ 55,75¢
Short-term investments 285,86 338,80: 436,68
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term inverstsn $ 359,58 $ 442,60: $ 492,44!
Percentage of total assets 74% 63% 69%

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net cash from operating activities $ (48,07) $ 24,86( $ 79,42¢
Net cash from investing activities $ 47947 % 32,85 % (100,789
Net cash from financing activities $ (29,950 $ (9,669 $ 7,858

Our primary source of liquidity and capital resasgds our investment portfolio. Cash, cash equitaland investments were $359.6 million at
December 31, 2013, a decrease of $83.0 milliom f§d42.6 million at December 31, 2012 . Cash aisti eguivalents were $73.7 million at
December 31, 2013, a decrease of $30.1 milliom f4403.8 million at December 31, 2012 . The de@éasash and cash equivalents was
primarily the result of $48.1 million in cash udeyloperating activities and $30.0 million net casked in financing activities, offset by $47.9
million in cash provided by investing activities.

Cash flows used in operations were $48.1 milliarttie year ended December 31, 2013 , primarilytdwair net loss of $185.6 million being
adjusted for non-cash items of depreciation andramation of $15.9 million , restructuring and impaent of $64.7 million , amortization of
intangible assets of $22.3 million , impairmengobdwill of $6.7 million , stock-based compensatixpense of $13.5 million and deferred
income taxes of $22.7 million , offset by changesperating assets and liabilities of $8.3 million.

Cash flows provided by operations were $24.9 nmilfior the year ended December 31, 2012 , primdily to net loss of $30.2 million ,
adjusted for non-cash items of depreciation andramation of $40.3 million and stock-based compd¢iesaexpense of $17.0 million and a net
increase in the changes in operating assets avilitiés of $2.2 million .

Cash flows provided by operations were $79.4 nrilfior the year ended December 31, 2011, primatily @ net loss of $19.3 million, adjus
for non-cash items of depreciation and amortizatib$27.4 million, stock-based compensation exp@i§25.6 million and impairment of
goodwill of $49.7 million, offset by a net decreasehe changes in operating assets and liabildfe&2.0 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities v$47.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20d8marily related to the maturities and sales
of short-term investments of $285.6 million and pineceeds from the sale of property and equipmg$18.7 million , offset by purchases of
available-for-sale securities of $233.9 milliorurghases of property and equipment of $20.1 millind purchases of intangible assets of $3.4
million .The sales of property and equipment watmarily related to those assets in our Micro-Optitisiness in Charlotte, North Carolina
which was sold in August 2013, and our leased fgdtoZhuhai, China, whose assets were sold asgpéie closure of that facility in the
second quarter of 2013. The purchases of propadygquipment were primarily related to expandirgyrtranufacturing operation in Hsinchu,
Taiwan. This operation will be closed as part @f tbstructuring of the DigitalOptics segment anmmaehin January 2014.

Net cash provided by investing activities v$32.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20d2marily related to proceeds from maturi
and sales of investments of $359.5 million , oftsgpurchases of short-term investments of $233lieom, cash of $27.9 million used in our
acquisition of the Zhuhai Entity and related asfeis Flextronics, purchases of property and eqeipinof $33.4 million primarily for the
manufacturing operation in Taiwan and purchasestahgible assets of $4.9 million .

Net cash used in investing activities was $100./8anifor the year ended December 31, 2011, prilpaelated to purchases of st-term
investments of $353.1 million, purchases of inthlgassets of $66.7 million, and purchases of ptg@ad equipment of $5.9 million, offset
by proceeds from maturities and sales of investmen$322.7 million and proceeds from the salesskss of $2.2 million.

Net cash used in financing activities v$30.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 to dividend payments of $37.6 million and
stock repurchases of $29.3 million , offset by $3aillion in proceeds due to the issuance of comstonk under our employee stock option
programs and employee stock purchase plans.

52




Table of Contents

Net cash used in financing activities was $9.7iarilfor theyear ended December 31, 2012 due to a dividend @atyai $15.6 million, offset
by the issuance of common stock under our empleiak option programs and employee stock purchiase p

Net cash from financing activities was $7.9 millilmm the year ended December 31, 2011 due to e of common stock under
employee stock option programs and employee stoodhpse plans.

The primary objectives of our investment activittge to preserve principal and to maintain ligyidvhile at the same time capturing a market
rate of return. To achieve these objectives, wentaai a diversified portfolio of debt securitieglinding municipal bonds and notes, corporate
bonds and notes, commercial paper, treasury amtagmtes and bills, certificates of deposit ancheyomarket funds. We invest excess cash
predominantly in high-quality investment grade dedturities with less than two years to maturityr ®arketable securities are classified as
available-for-sale and are reported at fair valuit) unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, dmain accumulated other comprehensive
income. The fair values for our securities are cheiteed based on quoted market prices as of thatiatudate and observable prices for sin
assets.

We evaluate our investments periodically for pdssdther-than-temporary impairment and review fexcguch as the length of time and exten
to which fair value has been below cost basisfittacial condition of the issuer, our intent tdchand whether we will be required to sell the
security before its anticipated recovery, on a nli@edy than not basis. If declines in the fair walof the investments are determined to be
other-than-temporary, we report the credit losgiporof such decline in other income and expensey net basis, and the remaining noncredit
loss portion in accumulated other comprehensiverire For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2@12@11, no impairment charges with
respect to our investments were recorded.

In August 2007, our Board of Directors ("the Bogradlithorized a plan to repurchase up to a maxinatah 6f $100.0 million of our
outstanding shares of common stock dependent oketneanditions, share price and other factors. dné¥nber 2013, the Board increased the
amount authorized to be used for repurchases t0.§1billion. No expiration has been specified fustplan. Repurchases may take place in
the open market or through private transactionsofA3ecember 31, 2013 , we have repurchased appabely 2,145,000 shares of common
stock at a total cost of $39.3 million under thigrpat an average price of $19.24 . As of DecerBheP013 , the total amount available for
repurchase was $110.7 million . We plan to contitauexecute authorized repurchases from time te tinder the plan.

In April 2013, we announced plans for a capitaba@dition strategy. The strategy maintains the atigaarterly dividend of $0.10 per share tha
we originally instituted in March 2012. We alsmannced a plan to provide for special dividendseomgear equal to 20-30% of “Episodic
Gain,” which is net gain resulting from “Episodie¥®enue”. We define Episodic Revenue as revenue tithe revenue payable over at least
one year pursuant to a contract, and may includentgee such as non-recurring engineering feesaititiense fees, back payments resulting
from audits, damages awards from courts or tritayreadd lump sum settlement payments. Another 20-@0Episodic Gain would be used to
provide a “sinking fund” to provide for the growtifi the quarterly dividends. We also announced a faepurchase outstanding shares of ou
common stock in an amount equal to 20-30% of Efpis@ain. We anticipate that all quarterly and salettividends, as well as stock
repurchases, would be paid out of cash, cash dguigaand short-term investments.

In 2012, we paid quarterly dividends of $0.10 gearse in each of May 2012, August 2012 and Nover2b&R In 2013, we paid quarterly
dividends of $0.10 per share in each of March 2048y 2013, August 2013 and November 2013. In Ma}320ve also paid a special divide
of $0.30 per common share in accordance with thieed dividend policy noted above. The specialdfwvd was calculated based on the
Episodic Gain we generated over the precedingdaarters.

In January 2014, we announced a restructuringeobiilgitalOptics segment to cease all remaining rfasturing operations. We expect to in
cash charges in the range of $16.0 million to $18il0on as a result of this restructuring, primtaffior the settlement of open purchase orders
for equipment and inventory, severance costs titeted employees and cash obligations relatedditity leases and restoration costs at
locations we will be closing as a result of thistrecturing. The majority of these cash costs apeeted to be paid in the first half of 2014.

We believe that based on current levels of oparatand anticipated growth, our cash from operatitmyether with cash, cash equivalents an
shortterm investments currently available, will be stiffint to fund our operations, dividends and st&gurchases and acquisition needs ft
least the next twelve months. Poor financial resuibanticipated expenses, unanticipated acquisitid technologies or businesses or
unanticipated strategic investments could give tasadditional financing requirements sooner thaewpect. There can be no assurance that
equity or debt financing will be available when dee or, if available, that such financing will be terms satisfactory to us and not dilutive to
our then-current stockholders.
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Contractual Cash Obligations

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 4-5
Total 1 Year Years Years Thereafter
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligations $ 17,85( $ 3,72¢ % 9,31 $ 34771 $ 1,331

The amounts reflected in the table above for opegdéase obligations represent aggregate futunénmiim lease payments under non-
cancelable facility and equipment operating leaged,purchase obligations relating to fixed asaetsinventory. For our facilities leases, rent
expense charged to operations differs from rert pacause of scheduled rent increases. Rent exjsecaleulated by amortizing total rental
payments on a straight-line basis over the lease te

It is the Company's policy to classify accruediiest and penalties related to unrecognized taxfigivethe provision for income taxes. For
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ,cegnized an insignificant amount of interest andatties related to unrecognized
benefits. As of December 31, 2013 and Decembe2@12, we accrued $0.6 million and $0.5 millionspectively, of interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits. At this time,are unable to reasonably estimate the timingefong-term payments or the amount by
which the liability will increase or decrease otiare. As a result, this amount is not includedhe table above.

See Note 13 —Commitments and Contingenclesf the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statets for additional detail.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2013, we did not have any af&hice sheet arrangements as defined in item 3@3(g)of Regulation S-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of our fir@mindition and results of operations are bas@m wur consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements have been preparechiiorcoity with generally accepted accounting pritefp(“GAAP”) in the United States

which requires us to make estimates and judgmbatsaffect the reported amounts of assets, liaslirevenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiestfsir nature, these estimates and judgments éjeciuo an inherent degree of uncertainty. W
evaluate our estimates based on our historicalresqm® and various other assumptions that areveglito be reasonable under the
circumstances. These estimates relate to revegogniion, the assessment of recoverability of gabénd intangible assets, the assessment
of useful lives and the recoverability of propeiiant and equipment, the valuation and recognibfostock-based compensation expense, the
valuation of investments, recognition and measurgrokdeferred income tax assets and liabilitiee,assessment of unrecognized tax ben
and others. Actual results could differ from theséimates, and material effects on our operatiaglt®and financial position may result. See
Note z— “Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémts full description of our
accounting policies.

Revenue Recognitic

We derive our revenue from royalty and license .f&&venues are recognized when there is persuagidence of an arrangement, delivery
has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable,ciéctability of the resulting receivable is reaably assured. Determining whether and w
these criteria have been satisfied requires usakeerassumptions and judgments which could havgréfisant impact on the timing and
amount of revenue it reports. For example, we reizegrevenue on certain royalty agreements on lalzasis because management determine
collectability is not reasonably assured. Theserd@hations have a material impact on our operagsglts.

Royalty revenue is generated from a licensee'syatazh or shipment of licensed products incorpoatiur intellectual property, technologies
or software. Running royalties are primarily basedunit volumes shipped. Licensees generally regfagment information within 30 to 60
days following the end of the quarter. From timditee we also enter into license agreements trmatige for fixed license fees or royalty
payments. When there is no reliable basis on whigltan estimate our royalty revenues prior to olbtgithese reports from the licensees, we
recognize royalty revenues on a one-quarter lagaRorevenue also includes payments resulting fp@modic compliance audits of licensees,
as part of a settlement of a patent infringemesputie, or judgments of license dispute.
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License revenue is generated from license agream@ntertain rights to our intellectual propemgtinologies. We also derive revenue from
software licenses for digital and video photographsige enhancement technology. In some instanaemay enter into license agreements
that involve multiple element arrangements to @&stude technology transfer, design, technical iserand unspecified support. For techno
and software licenses, revenue is recognized uplbivedy or on a straight-line basis over the pefiodhich the unspecified support or service
is performed.

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets

We make judgments about the recoverability of paseld finite-lived intangible assets whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate
that impairment may exist. If such facts and cirstances exist, we assess recoverability by comgpénm projected undiscounted net cash
flows associated with the related asset or grougsséts over their remaining lives against thaipeetive carrying amounts. Impairments, if
any, are based on the excess of the carrying anoventhe fair value of those assets. If the uddils shorter than originally estimated, we
accelerate the rate of amortization and amortieee¢maining carrying value over the new shortefuldiée. Such change could result in
impairment charges in future periods, which cowdgiéha significant impact on our operating resulis financial condition.

We perform an annual review of the valuation ofdwitl each year, or more often if indicators of iaiment exist. Triggering events for
impairment reviews may be indicators such as aéviedustry or economic trends, restructuring agjdéower projections of profitability, or a
sustained decline in our market capitalization.|l&thons of possible impairment and, if applicalaldjustments to carrying values require us t
estimate, among other factors, future cash flowsful lives, and fair market values of our repatimits and assets. When we conduct our
evaluation of goodwill, the fair value of goodwl assessed using valuation techniques that resjginéficant management estimates and
judgment. Should conditions be different from maeragn’'s last assessment, significant impairments of galbdhay be required, which

would adversely affect our operating results.

In 2011, we recorded an impairment charge of goba@fv$49.7 million due primarily to the low markptice of our common stock, which
resulted in our market capitalization being sigrafitly lower than the book value of equity for ae@ded period of time. In 2013, we again
recorded a $6.7 million impairment charge of goddalie to the restructuring of our DigitalOpticsdiness. These restructuring activities
involved estimates based on all information knowmfthe date of this report. Refer to Note 8Geodwill and Identified Intangible Assets
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtadditional details.

Property, plant and equipme

We assess property, plant and equipment for impaitwhen events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of the assets
or the asset grouping may not be recoverable. Fatitat we consider in deciding when to perforninapairment review include significant
under-performance of a business or product limelation to expectations, significant negative istdyior economic trends, and significant
changes or planned changes in our use of the a¥¢etsieasure the recoverability of assets thatawilitinue to be used in our operations by
comparing the carrying value of the asset groupinaur estimate of the related total future undisted net cash flows. If an asset grouping’s
carrying value is not recoverable through the eslatndiscounted cash flows, the asset groupingrisidered to be impaired. The impairmel
measured by comparing the difference between thet gsouping’s carrying value and its fair valumperty, plant and equipment is
considered a non-financial asset and is recordéiratalue only if an impairment charge is recag.

Impairments are determined for groups of assedsa@lto the lowest level of identifiable independsash flows. When we determine that the
useful lives of assets are shorter than originediymated, we accelerate the rate of depreciatienthe assets’ new, shorter useful lives.

Stock-based compensation expense

Calculating stock-based compensation expense esgthie input of highly subjective assumptions,udiig the expected life of the options,
stock price volatility, dividends and the pre-vagtbption forfeiture rate. We estimate the expetifedf options granted based on historical
exercise patterns, which we believe are represeatat future behavior. We estimate the volatilifiyour common stock on the date of grant
based on a market-based historical volatility. #ksumptions used in calculating the fair valuaatlsbased awards represent our best
estimates, but these estimates involve inhererdrtaioties and the application of management juddgn#es a result, if factors change and we
use different assumptions, our stock-based compiensaxpense could be materially different in tbufe. In addition, we are required to
estimate the expected forfeiture rate and onlygrize expense for those shares expected to veststWeate the forfeiture rate based on
historical experience of our stock-based awardsdieagranted, exercised and cancelled. If ourahétufeiture rate is materially different from
our estimate, stock-based compensation expense beudignificantly different from what we have reged in
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the current period. See Note 11:Stock-Based Compensation Expeigd the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémtsdditional
detail.

Valuation of investments

Our investments consist primarily of municipal berahd notes, corporate bonds and notes, commpagatl, treasury and agency notes and
bills, certificates of deposit and money marketdsiiWe invest excess cash predominantly in highitgyuavestment grade marketable
securities with less than two years to maturityr @arketable securities are classified as avai&dilsale and are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, recomledéumulated other comprehensive income (losg)lizeel gains and losses, unrealized losse
and declines in value determined to be other-tkeampbrary, if any, on available-for-sale securities generally reported in other income and
expense, net. The fair values for our securitiedatermined based on quoted market prices a® oftlnation date, observable prices for
similar assets and, in the event that observalidegfor similar assets are not available, extgrmbvided pricing models, discounted cash
flow methodologies or other similar techniques. Tegrmination of fair value when quoted marketgsiare not available requires significant
judgment and estimation. In addition, we evalubg&eihvestments periodically for possible o-than-temporary impairment and review factors
such as the length of time and extent to whichvalue has been below cost basis, the financiadition of the issuer, our intent to hold and
whether we will not be required to sell the segubiéfore its anticipated recovery, on a more-likislginnot basis. If any of these conditions i
estimates change in the future, or, if differenineates are used, the fair value of the investmeatg change significantly and may result in
other-than-temporary decline in value which coudstdnan adverse impact on our results of operations.

Accounting for income tax

We must make certain estimates and judgments @rméting income tax expense for financial statenpemposes. These estimates and
judgments occur in the calculation of tax credas, benefits and deductions, and in the calculatfclax assets and liabilities. Significe
changes to these estimates may result in an iremgadecrease to our tax provision in a subsequesitd.

We must assess the likelihood that we will be ableecover our deferred tax assets. If recovenptdikely on a more-likely-thamot basis, wi
must increase our provision for income taxes bgpmiag a valuation allowance against our defereedassets. Should there be a change in ol
ability to recover our deferred tax assets, ouwision for income taxes would fluctuate in the pdrof the change.

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabiliti@svolves dealing with uncertainties in the apgdiica of complex tax regulations. We recognize
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in 5. and other tax jurisdictions based on ounesté of whether, and the extent to which,
additional tax payments are probable. If we ultehatletermine that payment of these amounts isegssary, we reverse the liability and
recognize a tax benefit during the period in whighdetermine that the liability is no longer neeggsThis may occur for a variety of reasons,
such as the expiration of the statute of limitagiom a particular tax return or the completionroBaamination by the relevant tax authority.
record an additional charge in our provision foee&in the period in which we determine that thmrded tax liability is less than the expected
ultimate assessment.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordanith authoritative guidance related to income=taxt he application of income tax law is
inherently complex. Laws and regulations in thissaare voluminous, frequently changing and arenaftebiguous. As such, we are require
make many subjective assumptions and judgmentsdiegeour income tax exposures. Interpretationanaf guidance surrounding income tax
laws and regulations are subject to change ovex. ths such, changes in our assumptions and judgneantmaterially affect amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheetstateh®ents of operations.

Our policy is to classify accrued interest and ft&mrelated to the accrued liability for unrecamgu tax benefits in the provision for income
taxes. For the years ended December 31, 2013,&012011, we did not recognize any significant fiegsaor interest related to unrecognized
tax benefits. See Note 12“come Taxes of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémtsidditional detail.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 “Recent Accounting Pronouncemefisf the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staets for a full description of recent
accounting pronouncements including the respeetwected dates of adoption.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

The primary objectives of our investment activitége to preserve principal and maintain liquidityilr at the same time capturing a market
rate of return. To achieve these objectives, wentaai our portfolio of cash, cash equivalents angt$tments in a variety of securities, which
are subject to risks including:

Interest Rate Ris

The risk associated with fluctuating interest rasegenerally limited to our investment portfolife invest in marketable securities, consisting
primarily of municipal bonds and notes, corporateds and notes, commercial paper, treasury anccagenies and bills, which had a fair
value of $303.8 million at December 31, 2013 . &xposure to interest rate risks is not significiue to the short average maturity of our
holdings, which is less than a year. A hypotheti®al (100 basis-point) increase in period end ister@es along the yield curve would have
resulted in a $1.6 million decrease in the faiueabf our investment positions at December 31, 2@&nversely, a 1% (100 basis-point)
decrease in interest rates to zero would havetezsinl a $700,000 increase in the fair value ofipuestment portfolio. These estimates reflect
only the direct impact of a change in interestgated actual results may differ from these estimate

Investment Ris

We are exposed to market risk as it relates togdgmim the market value of our investments in @oidito the liquidity and credit worthiness of
the underlying issuers of our investments. Our stwents are subject to fluctuations in fair value tb the volatility of the credit markets and
prevailing interest rates for such securities. Marketable securities, consisting primarily of nuipél bonds and notes, corporate bonds and
notes, commercial paper, treasury and agency aotsills, certificates of deposit and money mafiuatls, are classified as available-for-sale
or trading securities with fair values of $303.8lim and $395.6 million as of December 31, 2@t®l 2012, respectively. Unrealized gains,

of tax, on these investments at December 31, 2@&8 approximately $0.1 million, as compared to aliwed gains of approximately $0.1
million at December 31, 2012 . We do not hold aasivitive, derivative commaodity instruments or athimilar financial instruments in our
portfolio.

Bank Liquidity Risl

As of December 31, 2013, we have approximately&8illion in operating accounts that are held vdtmestic and international financial
institutions. A majority of these balances are heiith domestic financial institutions. These casltabhces could be lost or become inaccessibl
if the underlying financial institutions fail or they are unable to meet the liquidity requiremettheir depositors and they are not supported
by the federal government. Notwithstanding, we haseincurred any losses and have had full acaessrtoperating accounts to date. We
believe any failures of domestic and internatidirancial institutions could impact our ability fond our operations in the short term.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R

Our international sales and substantially all af gperating expenses are typically made in U.Sadobnd are generally not subjected to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Consequeatlyresults of operations are not subject to sicgnift foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We
do not currently hedge against foreign currency flatctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated balance sheets as of Decemb@033B,and 2012, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, stockholders’ equity
(deficit), comprehensive income (loss) and casidlfor each of the years in the thigear period ended December 31, 2013 are set fotttis
Annual Report at Item 15(a)(1).

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED )

The following table presents our unaudited quartexsults of operations for the eight quarterdm periods ended December 31, 2013 and
2012. The following table should be read in confiorcwith the consolidated financial statements geldted notes contained elsewhere in this
Annual Report. We have prepared the unauditedrimdition on the same basis as our audited consdlidiatencial statements. This table
includes all adjustments, consisting only of norneglurring adjustments, that we consider necedsaffpir statement of our financial position
and operating results for the quarters presentpdraling results for any quarter are not necegsadicative of results for any future quarters
or for a full year. We employ a calendar month-egpbrting period for our quarterly reporting.
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Revenues:
Royalty and license fees
Total Revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues
Research, development and other related costs
Selling, general and administrative

Litigation expense

Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atier

charges
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Other income and expense, net
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeetax
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neawf
Net loss
Earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss from discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted
Net loss:
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared per share

Weighted average number of shares used in per share
calculations-basic

Weighted average number of shares used in per share
calculations-diluted

1

Three Months Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 (1) 2013 (2) 2013 (3) 2013 (4) 2013 (5)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 4353t ¢ 5831 $ 6040¢ $ 4757¢ $ 2866¢ $ 4661+ $ 37,26( $ 56,37(
43,53¢ 58,31t 60,40¢ 47,57¢ 28,66+ 46,61« 37,26( 56,37(
1,917 2,117 2,06¢ 1,743 1,81¢ 1,01¢ 85( 837
20,71( 21,52: 21,61: 24,92( 23,40t 20,17( 20,85: 22,22¢
23,47( 23,29¢ 22,84¢ 22,91¢ 24,01 24,64 17,43t 16,14¢
3,492 6,72¢ 9,68¢ 14,11: 14,08: 17,40¢ 12,69¢ 16,20:

— — — 2,52¢ 11,65: 5,947 1,022 51,38t
49,58¢ 53,66 56,21¢ 66,21¢ 74,96¢ 69,17¢ 52,85t 106,79
(6,057) 4,65¢ 4,19:¢ (18,64() (46,307) (22,565 (15,595 (50,42°)
66€ 987 3,72¢ 49z 33€ 48€ 41¢ 54(
(5,387%) 5,641 7,91¢ (18,149 (45,96¢) (22,079 (15,17 (49,88)
(1,169 3,97 3,741 (5,410 (20,439 1,89¢ 40,48¢ 2,53¢
(4,219 1,66< 4,171 (12,739 (25,52)) (23,979 (55,66)) (52,42¢)
(3,869 (2,079 (5,289 (7,87%) (29,09¢) 8,16¢ (15,309 (1,723)

$ (8,08) $ (409 $ (1,117 $ (20,61 $ (44,62) $ (15819 $ (70,969 $ (54,149
$ (00 $ 002 $ 008 $ (029 $ (049 $ (04 $ (10 $ (0.9)
$ (00§ $ 00 $ 008 $ (029 049 $ (04 $ (109 $ (0.99)
$ (00 $ (©0) $ (010 $ (0.19 03 $ 018 $ (0299 $ (0.09
$ (007) $ (009 $ (010 $ (©1fY $ (03¢ $ 01t $ (029 $ (0.09
$ (016 $ (©0) $ (©O0) $ (039 $ (08) $ (030 $ (13 s @10
$ (01 $ (00) $ (0.0 $ (0.39 (08) $ (030 $ @31 $ (1.0
$ — $ 01 $ 01C $ 01 $ O01C $ 04 $ 01 $ 01
51,73¢ 51,88: 52,09: 52,22¢ 52,47 53,157 54,07¢ 53,86¢
51,73¢ 52,07: 52,26 52,22¢ 52,47 53,98 54,07¢ 53,86¢

In the fourth quarter of 2012, we announced thatweald focus our efforts on our core MEMS cameralaie business. In

connection with this effort, we reduced our work®and ceased operations at our facility in TelMAigrael. In connection with these
actions, we recognized a restructuring charge d& $2llion, primarily consisting of severance, cgtlated to the continuation of

certain employee benefits, and expenses relatdebtdosure of our facility.

Taiwan operation, $0.3 million impairment of resgmand development equipment relating to the cosifithe
facility in Tel Aviv and an $8.7 million charge dtethe abandonment of patents and technology wdaaked a
revision of the useful life estimate of these pttemd technology assets thus fully impairing them.

In the first quarter of 2013, the restructuringpairment of long-lived assets and other chargesistad of employee
severance of $1.4 million, impairments of $1.3 imillof manufacturing equipment assets held for sgkting to the

In the second quarter of 2013, restructuring, impant of long-lived assets and other charges irdwed$1.9 million impairment of

our investment in NemoTek Technologie S.A., a $iilfion charge related to disposal of an entityt hethered advanced packaging
solutions, an impairment charge of $1.1 milliormanufacturing equipment assets held for sale ngjat the Taiwan operation, $0.9
million in asset impairments relating to the Ireetlual Property and DigitalOptics businesses, &8 #illion in severance charges.
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4 In the third quarter of 2013, a valuation allowamaes recorded against substantially all of our fadéeferred tax

assets as we concluded such assets were no latigaetlizable.

In January, 2014, we announced a restructuringiobagitalOptics segment to cease all remaining ufi@cturing operations.
Therefore, we will no longer pursue a strategy ahofacturing and selling mems|cam products. In eotion with these actions, we
impaired $32.8 million of manufacturing equipment&6.5 million of intangibles relating to the DOptics operation, recorded a
$9.8 million charge for commitments relating to ngmirchase orders for equipment and impaired $28libmof IT related assets.

Other Supplementary Data

The following table presents our quarterly unawtliiten-GAAP financial measures for the eight quarterthe periods ended December 31,
2013 and 2012. The non-GAAP financial measuressadiju either one-time or ongoing non-cash acquinézhgibles amortization charges,
acquired in-process research and developmenpratisf of stock-based compensation expense, resting;timpairment of long-lived assets
and other charges and related tax effects of theafentioned adjustments. The non-GAAP financiesuees also exclude the effects of
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718teck Compensation upon the number of diluted shased in calculating non-GAAP
earnings per share. We believe that the non-GAABsores used in this report provide investors withdrtant perspectives into our ongoing
business performance. Our management uses thes@AwR financial measures when evaluating our ofeggterformance. The non-GAAP
financial measures disclosed by the Company shuatithe considered a substitute for, or superidfirtancial measures calculated in
accordance with GAAP, and the financial resultsdaled in accordance with GAAP and reconciliationthose financial statements shouli
carefully evaluated. The non-GAAP financial measwrsed by the Company may be calculated differdragiyn, and therefore may not be
comparable to, similarly titted measures used giotompanies.

Three Months Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

GAAP income (loss) from continuing operations $ (4219 $ 166¢ $ 4177 $ (12,739 $ (2552) $ (23,979 $ (55,66) $ (52,420
Adjustments to GAAP net income (loss):

Stock-based compensation expense:

Research, development and other related costs 1,39: 1,487 1,11¢ 1,157 92¢ 80€ 694 96¢
Selling, general and administrative 2,19¢ 3,01¢ 2,54¢ 2,18¢ 1,40¢ 4,06¢ 1,97 2,417
Amortization of acquired intangibles:
Cost of revenues 1,59 1,59¢ 1,59¢ 1,59¢ 1,59¢ 824 824 827
Research, development and other related costs 1,35: 1,357 1,33; 1,33¢ 1,51¢ 1,46¢ 1,45( 1,46(
Selling, general and administrative 2,923 2,89¢ 2,83¢ 2,871 2,92¢ 2,89: 2,89: 2,89(
Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atier
charges — — — 2,52¢ 11,65: 5,947 1,022 51,38t
Tax adjustments for non-GAAP items (2,559 (2,925) (2,566) (2,48)) (6,119 (5,119 _ _

Non-GAAP net income(loss) from continuing operasion $ 268 $ 9,08 $ 11,03 $ (3549 $ (11,620 $ (13,099 $ (46,80) $ 7,52
Non-GAAP net income (loss) per common share - eilut $ 005 $ 017 $ 021 $ (00) $ (029 $ (029 $ (08) $ 0.1

Weighted average number of shares used in per share
calculation-diluted* 53,09¢ 52,897 53,02¢ 53,26 52,47: 53,157 54,07¢ 55,12¢

* Non-GAAP diluted shares are based on the GAAetil share adjusted for stock-based compensatimnse and tax effect.
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Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013
Revenues:
Intellectual Property Segment:
Royalty and license fees
Recurring revenue $ 3840 $ 41,31 $ 38,02¢ $ 16,49¢ $19,13¢ $ 23,90: $ 22,83 $ 18,36(
Episodic revenue 624 11,66: 19,831 26,52¢ 6,50( 18,96¢ 9,50( 30,76¢
Total Intellectual Property
revenues 39,02¢ 52,97: 57,86¢ 43,02« 25,63¢ 42,86¢ 32,33¢ 49,12¢
DigitalOptics Segment:
Royalty and license fees
Recurring revenue 4,51( 5,341 2,54: 4,557 3,02¢ 3,74f 4,92¢ 7,241
Total DigitalOptics revenues 4,51( 5,341 2,54: 4,55 3,02¢ 3,74 4,92¢ 7,241
Total revenues $ 43,53f $ 58,315 $ 60,40‘ $ 47,57¢ $ 28,66‘ $ 46,611 $ 37,26( $ 56,37(

We define recurring revenue as payments made purtna license agreement or other agreement teacheduled to occur over at least one
year of time. We define episodic revenue as-recurring since it is not payable over at leas pear pursuant to a contract. Episodic revenue
includes non-recurring items such as engineeriag, fmitial license fees, back payments resultinghfaudits, damages awards from courts or
other tribunals, and lump sum settlement paymeaitsough the royalty revenue reported by our li@ason a quarterly basis is generally not
assured, for ease of reference, we refer to tlesmnues as “recurring revenue.”

We believe that presenting episodic and recurm@vgmue information provides both management anestovs with a more complete
understanding of underlying operating results aedds of established, ongoing operations, as weaksults due to unique items that can
obscure underlying trends. Management recognizgstie term “episodic revenue” may be interpretiéf@mntly by other companies and may
not be applicable under different circumstances.baéleve that these measures are useful in asgessimds of the respective business and
therefore be a useful tool in assessing periodetiod performance trends.

Importantly, a source of episodic revenue may becarsource of recurring revenue, when, for exangptampany settles litigation with us by
paying a settlement amount and entering into a$ieeagreement or payment plan that calls for d@ialiticense fee and ongoing royalty
payment over several years. In that scenario,attlement amount would be episodic revenue, asdvind initial license fee, and the ongoing
payments would be recurring revenue.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Attached as exhibits to this Form 10-K are cetdiiicns of Tessera Technologies, Inc.’s Chief Exgeudfficer and Chief Financial Officer,
which are required in accordance with Rule 13aflthe® Exchange Act. This “Controls and Procedusesition includes information
concerning the controls and controls evaluatioarrefl to in the certifications and it should bedréaconjunction with the certifications, for a
more complete understanding of the topics presented

Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

Tessera Technologies, Inc. maintains disclosur&aisrand procedures that are designed to ensaténfiormation required to be disclosed in
our reports filed pursuant to the Exchange Acerded, processed, summarized and reported withitime periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms and that such information is acdatad and communicated to our management, incluolimgChief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allaa fimely decisions regarding required disclostmedesigning and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures, management recognizeartlgatontrols and procedures, no matter how weligthed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredot@fectives, and management is required to appfpdgment in evaluating the cdsenefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.
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Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofifmgn and operation of our disclosure controts@ecedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(
and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of theoétite period covered by this report (the evaluatiate). Based on this evaluation, our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer concluded as of the evaluation date thatdisclosure controls and procedures were
effective to provide reasonable assurance thahtbemation relating to Tessera Technologies, limzluding our consolidated subsidiaries,
required to be disclosed in our SEC reports (ip&orded, processed, summarized and reported wifteitime periods specified in SEC rules
and forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communictd€elessera Technologies Inc.’s management, inetudur principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate, tooall timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Change in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in Tessera Technolog's, internal control over financial reporting,defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f), during Tessera Technologies, Imodst recent quarter that has materially affecteds ceasonably likely to materially affect,
Tessera Technologies, Inc.’s internal control direancial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for Tessera Technologies, |
Our internal control over financial reporting ip@cess designed to provide reasonable assuragasliteg the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foemel purposes in accordance with U.S. generatig@ed accounting principles. Tessera
Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over finaregporting includes those policies and procedthas (i) pertain to the maintenance of record
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fagRect the transactions and dispositions of thetassf Tessera Technologies, Inc.; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financatkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of Tessera Technologies, Inc. @rggbmade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of TasBechnologies, Inc.; and (iii) provide reasonassurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or as#pn of Tessera Technologies, Inc.’s assetsabiald have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Tessera Technologies, Inc.’s management assesseffetiveness of our internal control over finahoeporting as of December 31, 2013 ,
utilizing the criteria set forth in 1992 by the Cuittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®aynmission (COSO) in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. Based on the assessmentdsefeTechnologies, Inc.’s management, we detedntitad Tessera Technologies, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of December 31, 2013 . The effectivenesgestera Technologies, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 113 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopétsTessera Technologies, Inc.’s
independent registered public accounting firm,tased in their attestation report which appearpage F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this Item 10 is her@igorporated by reference from the information urttie captions “Executive Officers,”
“Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) BeneéitDwnership Reporting Compliance” that will be taned in the Proxy Statement for our
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxyt&taent”).

We have adopted a written code of business coradutethics that applies to our principal executifficer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller, or pens serving similar functions. The text of our cafi®usiness conduct and ethics has been
posted on our website at http://www.tessera.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Iltem 11 is incagted by reference from the information under thgtions “Election of Directors,”
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compemsatf Executive Officers” and “Compensation ComeetReport” that will be contained
in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
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The information required by this Iltem 12 is incagted by reference from the information under tagtions “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” and “Security Ownership of Certain Bdicial Owners and Management” that will be congaliin the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa&ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted by reference from the information under thgtions “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” and “Election of Directofsattwill be contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted by reference from the information under tagtion “Ratification of Auditors” that will
be contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

Page
Number
(1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-1

(3) Exhibits*

* The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhilritsex following the signature page to this AnnRalport
are filed as part of, or hereby incorporated bgnence into, this Annual Report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Tessera Technologies, Inc.
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In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenfenpeiations, of comprehensive loss, of
stockholders' equity and of cash flows presenbyfain all material respects, the financial positiof Tessera Technologies, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and Decemb&(3P, and the results of their operations and ttash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2013 in conformiti @tcounting principles generally accepted inUhéed States of America. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materialjects, effective internal control over financiegporting as of December 31, 2013, based or
criteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framewo(992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgiuns of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's management ismegge for these financial statements, for maiitej effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéiveness of internal control over financial oejing, included in Management's Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting appeatimgler Item 9A. Our responsibility is to expresgams on these financial statements and
on the Company's internal control over financigloring based on our integrated audits. We conduste audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requatevtb plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatemedhtnehether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordx@r financial reporting included obtain
an understanding of internal control over finanogdorting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrcbibiased on the assessed risk. Our audits altadiext performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wayé¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basiedo opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 3, 2014

TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except for par value)
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December 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,72: % 103,80:
Short-term investments 285,86! 338,80:
Accounts receivable, net 3,13¢ 11,59t
Inventories — 1,507
Short-term deferred tax assets 56 3,88(
Current assets of discontinued operations 7,02¢ —
Other current assets 22,50: 15,70:
Total current assets 392,31: 475,28t
Property and equipment, net 9,481 72,54«
Intangible assets, net 81,20: 120,43.
Long-term deferred tax assets 904 22,49¢
Other assets 85& 7,671
Goodwill — 6,66¢
Total assets $ 484,75. $ 705,10:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,20¢ % 14,43"
Accrued legal fees 10,18¢ 11,72¢
Accrued liabilities 23,53t 22,14(
Deferred revenue 1,14¢ 4,86¢
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 407 —
Total current liabilities 38,48¢ 53,17:
Long-term deferred tax liabilities 52C 3,10z
Other long-term liabilities 5,11C 6,40:
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations 197 —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock: $0.001 par value; 10,000 sharé®ered and no shares issued and outstanding — —
Common stock: $0.001 par value; 150,000 shareoenéd; 55,617 and 52,947 shares issued,
respectively, and 53,442 and 52,293 shares ouis@gnmespectively 55 53
Additional paid-in capital 530,76: 480,34
Treasury stock at cost; 2,175 and 654 shares ofrmonstock at each period end, respectively (39,919 (10,649
Accumulated other comprehensive income 13z 11¢
Retained earnings (deficit) (50,599 172,54t
Total stockholders’ equity 440,43 642,42!
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 484,75 % 705,10:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Revenues:

Royalty and license fees $ 168,90t $ 209,83 $ 237,92

Total revenues 168,90¢ 209,83t 237,92!

Operating expenses:

Cost of revenues 4,51¢F 7,84¢ 8,40«

Research, development and other related costs 86,65: 88,76 65,66¢

Selling, general and administrative 82,23¢ 92,53 79,16

Litigation expense 60,38t¢ 34,01¢ 29,35«

Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atiger charges 70,007 2,52¢ 4,29¢

Impairment of goodwill — — 38,08:

Total operating expenses 303,79 225,68: 224,96

Operating income (loss) (134,889 (15,84¢) 12,95¢
Other income and expense, net 1,78C 5,87z 2,64:

Income (loss) before taxes from continuing operetio (133,109 (9,972) 15,59¢
Provision for income taxes 24,48: 1,14¢ 14,28¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations (157,59 (11,116 1,31«
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (27,967 (19,109 (20,619)
Net loss $ (18555 $ (30,229 $ (19,300
Income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations:

Basic $ (295 $ 0.2)) $ 0.0z

Diluted $ (295 $ 021 % 0.0z
Loss from discontinued operations:

Basic $ (0.52) $ (0.37) $ (0.40

Diluted $ (0.59 $ 0.37) $ (0.40
Net loss:

Basic $ (3.48 % (0.5¢) % (0.39)

Diluted $ (348 ¢ (0.5¢) ¢ (0.3¢)
Cash dividends declared per share $ 0.7C $ 03C $ =

Weighted average number of shares used in per shlngdations-basic 53,34t 51,97" 51,08:

Weighted average number of shares used in per shbndations-diluted 53,34t 51,97: 51,44

F-3
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TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net loss $ (185,559 $ (30,22Y $ (29,300
Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-fore saturities, net of tax 14 95 (27%)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 14 95 (275)
Comprehensive loss $ (185,54) $ (30,130 $ (19,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2010
Net loss

Other comprehensive loss

TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands)

Accumulated

Issuance of common stock in connection with

exercise of stock options

Issuance of common stock in connection with

employee common stock purchase plan

Issuance of restricted stock, net of shares

cancelled

Stock-based compensation expense —

Tax benefits in connection with stock option plan —

Balance at December 31, 2011
Net loss

Other comprehensive income _

Cash dividends paid on company common stock —

Issuance of common stock in connection with

exercise of stock options

Issuance of common stock in connection with

employee common stock purchase plan

Issuance of restricted stock, net of shares

cancelled
Repurchases of common stock

Stock-based compensation expense —

Tax benefits in connection with stock option plan —

Balance at December 31, 2012

Net loss

Other comprehensive income —

Cash dividends paid on company common stock

Issuance of common stock in connection with

exercise of stock options

Issuance of common stock in connection with

employee common stock purchase plan

Issuance of restricted stock, net
cancelled

Repurchases of common stock

Stock-based compensation expense —

Balance at December 31, 2013

Common Stock Additional Treasury Stock Other Retained
Paid-In Comprehensive Earnings

Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Income (Loss) (Deficit) Total
50,59: $ 51 $ 437,02 645 $ (10,509 $ 29¢ $ 237,71. $ 664,58
— — — — — — (19,300) (19,300)
. . _ _ — 275) — (27%)
23¢ — 3,59¢ — — — — 3,59¢
371 1 4,17: — — — = 4,17¢
37¢ — — — — — — —
— 25,57( — — — — 25,57(
— (7,667 — — — — (7,667
51,57¢ $ 52 $ 462,69 645 $ (10509 $ 24 $ 21841, $ 670,67
— — — — — — (30,22% (30,22Y
— — — — 95 — 95
— — — — — (15,63¢) (15,63¢)
167 — 2,37¢ — — — — 2,37¢
29z 1 3,73: — — — — 3,73¢
267 — — — — — — —
9 — — 9 (137) — — (137
— 17,03¢ — — — — 17,03¢
— (5,497 — — — — (5,49
52,29: $ 53 $ 480,34 654 $ (1064) $ 11¢  $ 172,54 $ 642,42
— — — — — — (185,55 (185,55}
— — — — 14 — 14
— — — — — (37,589 (37,589
2,031 1 33,52( — — — — 33,52!
28¢ — 3,417 — — — — 3,417

of shares

351 1 — — — — — 1
(1,529 — (25) 1,521 (29,27¢) — — (29,307
— 13,50¢ — — — — 13,50¢
53,44: $ 55 $  530,76: 2,17t $ (39,91) $ 13 $ (50,59Y) $ 440,43

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (18555) $ (30,22 % (19,300
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash foperating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt 15,937 15,20¢ 10,07:
Amortization of intangible assets 22,33( 25,06¢ 17,328
Stock-based compensation expense 13,50: 17,03¢ 25,57(
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipmedt@ther assets, net (8,975 (92) 57
Impairment of goodwill 6,66¢ — 49,65
Non-cash restructuring, impairment of long-livedets and other charges 64,71¢ 63 (480
Deferred income tax and other, net 22,73t (6,200 7,08t
Amortization of premium or discount on investmesutsi other 3,10¢ 212 (917)
Tax benefits from employee stock option plan — (5,497) (7,667
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 8,44k (2,537 3,19¢
Inventories 1,12¢ 45¢ 27¢
Other assets (2,56¢) (1,33¢) (3,68))
Accounts payable (5,887 2,99:¢ 2,43¢
Accrued legal fees (1,537) 5,61¢ 1,022
Accrued and other liabilities 1,60¢ 1,72¢ (2,082
Deferred revenue (3,720 2,25¢ (3,149
Net cash from operating activities (48,07°) 24.,86( 79,42¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (20,11)) (33,429 (5,910
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment dmer @issets 19,70¢ 1,29: 2,207
Purchases of short-term available-for-sale investme (233,881) (261,759 (353,05))
Proceeds from maturities and sales of short-temn@my-term investments 285,59¢ 359,52 322,65¢
Acquisition, net of cash acquired — (27,907 —
Purchases of intangible assets (3,360 (4,875 (66,699
Net cash from investing activities 47,94° 32,85: (100,789
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend paid (37,58%) (15,639 —
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation — — 85
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 33,49° 2,37¢ 3,59«
Proceeds from employee stock purchase program 3,415 3,73 4,17¢
Repurchase of common stock (29,27¢) (237 —
Net cash from financing activities (29,95() (9,66%¢) 7,85¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (30,08() 48,04+ (13,510
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 103,80: 55,75¢ 69,26¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 73,72: $ 103,80: $ 55,75¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Income taxes paid, net $ 10,70  $ 4,88( $ 14,16¢
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing actfies:
Property and equipment included in accounts payafdeaccrued liabilities $ 372 % 5,041 $ 83
Acquired intangible assets included in accruedlitas $ — % 1,10 $ 3,60



The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Tessera Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) is alimgl company with operating subsidiaries in twonsegts: Intellectual Property and
DigitalOptics.

The Company's Intellectual Property segment, mathhgel essera Intellectual Property Corp., genen&esnue from manufacturers and othet
implementers that use our technology. The segmehtdes Tessera, Inc. and Invensas Corporationgtisas”). Tessera, Inc. pioneered chip-
scale packaging solutions, which it licenses tosgrmiconductor industry. Invensas develops andigsjinterconnect solutions and intellect
property in areas such as mobile computing and aamzations, memory and data storage, and 3-D latedrCircuit (“3DIC”) technologies.

DigitalOptics Corporation and its subsidiaries ("OQ manage the DigitalOptics segment. DOC'’s sofeasolutions for mobile imaging
include its FaceTool8", FacePowel", FotoSavvy™, face beautification, red-eye removal, High DynalRange, panorama, and image
stabilization products. DOC also seeks to monetizeDigitalOptics intellectual property portfolim@technology, through a sale, licensing or
other means.

The consolidated financial statements include tomants of Tessera Technologies, Inc. and eads afiolly owned subsidiaries. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements baea prepared in accordance with generally acdegteounting principles (“GAAP”) in
the United States (“U.S.”). All significant intenopany balances and transactions are eliminatedrisatidation.

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on December 31.Cldrapany employs a calendar month-end reportingog@édar its quarterly reporting.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaogd balances in order to conform to the curremigal’s presentation. The most significan
these reclassifications are as follows:

* In 2013, the Company restructured its Digitai©psegment, by selling its Micro-Optics businesd aelosing its leased manufacturing
facility in Zhuhai, China (the “Zhuhai Facility”As a result, the financial results of the Micro-@ptbusiness and of the Zhuhai
Facility for 2013 and all previous periods are préged as discontinued operations.

e The revenue classification "Past Production Raysi' is now included in the "Royalty and Licenke& on the statements of
operations for 2013 and all previous periods preskn

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make esdtsand assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements andrapanying notes. The accounting estimates andrguins that require management’s
most significant, difficult, and subjective judgntémclude the recognition and measurement of ctimad deferred income tax assets and
liabilities, the fair value measurements of investits, the assessment of the recoverability of gdbdiae assessment of useful lives and
recoverability of long-lived assets, the assessmfahrecognized tax benefits and the valuationraedgnition of stock-based compensation
expense, among others. Actual results experiengé¢ldebCompany may differ from management’s estimate

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmegmischased with an original or remaining maturitytwee months or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cashakmis are maintained with various financial ingtons.

Financial Instruments

Investments consist primarily of municipal bonds aotes, corporate bonds and notes, treasury arntagotes and bills, commercial paper,
certificates of deposit, and money market fundgestments with remaining maturities from originatghase date of three months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents. Investmentsreittaining maturities from original purchase dateater than three months are generally
classified as available-for-sale for use, if regdirin current operations, and are classified ag-¢arm investments. Investments determined tc
lack an active market for a period greater
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than 12 months are classified as long-term investsndhe Company’s cash equivalents and shortirerestments are classified as available-
for-sale. Unrealized gains and losses on securitetsof tax, are recorded in accumulated otherprehensive income and reported as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. The i2om evaluates the investments periodically fosjiide other-than-temporary impairment
and reviews factors such as the length of timeexteint to which fair value has been below costdydise financial condition of the issuer, the
Company’s intent to hold and whether the Comparlynet be required to sell the security beforeaitgicipated recovery, on a more-likely-
than-not basis. If the declines in the fair valfi¢he investments are determined to be other-tearporary, the Company reports the credit los
portion of such decline in other income and expenst and the remaining noncredit loss portioadoumulated other comprehensive income
The cost of securities sold is based on the spadéntification method. Interest and dividend im&and realized gains or losses are includec
in other income and expense, net.

Concentration of credit and other risks

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentrations of credik ksnsist principally of cash equivalents,
short-term investments and accounts receivable Cidmepany follows a corporate investment policy watsets credit, maturity and
concentration limits and regularly monitors the pasition, market risk and maturities of these itwvesnts. The Company believes that any
concentration of credit risk in its accounts reabie is substantially mitigated by the Company’aleation process, relatively short collection
terms and the high level of credit worthiness siciistomers. The Company performs ongoing crediuations of its customers’ financial
condition and limits the amount of credit extendéten deemed necessary but generally requires taterall.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had two custompresenting 73% and 15% of aggregate gross temdévables. At December 31,
2012, the Company had one customer representingo22fgregate gross trade receivables.

The following table sets forth revenues generatehfcustomers which comprise 10% or more of ta@aénues for the periods indicated:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
SK hynix Inc. 26% * % * %
Sony Corporation 18 * *
Samsung Electronics 11 10 10
Micron Technology, Inc. * 15 20
Spansion Inc. * 12 *
Powertech Technology Inc. * 0% 11% 27%

* denotes less than 10% of total revenues.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost aneciaped using the straight-line method over testimated useful lives. Repair and
maintenance costs are charged to expense as idcurre

The depreciation and amortization useful life pasifor property and equipment are as follows:

Furniture and equipment One to five years
Production equipment Five to ten years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of five years or the remaining term of ldese

When property and equipment are sold or disposeithefcost of the asset and the related accumutiegbciation or amortization are remo
from the accounts and the resulting gain or losdisposal is charged other income and expense, net.

The Company assesses property, plant and equigorantpairment when events or changes in circunt&anndicate that the carrying value
of the assets or the asset grouping may not beeegiole. Factors considered in deciding when téopmran impairment review include
significant under-performance of a business or peobtine in relation to expectations, significaeigative industry or economic trends, and
significant changes or planned changes in the Caypase of the assets. The
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Company measures the recoverability of assetswitlatontinue to be used in its operations by conmgathe carrying value of the asset
grouping to its estimate of the related total fatundiscounted net cash flows. If an asset grolpirayrying value is not recoverable through
the related undiscounted cash flows, the assepgrgus considered to be impaired. The impairmsmhéasured by comparing the difference
between the asset grouping’s carrying value anf@ditvalue.

Goodwill and identified intangible assets

Goodwill. Goodwill is recorded as the difference, if angtvireen the aggregate consideration paid for anisiiqn and the fair value of the r
tangible and identified intangible assets acquineder a business combination. The Company revimpairment of goodwill annually. The
Company first assesses qualitative factors to oeter whether it is more-likely-than-not that thé faalue of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount as a basis for determining whetiemecessary to perform the two-step goodwiphainment test. If the Company concludes
it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value ofeporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, itcheet perform the two-step impairment test.

If based on the qualitative assessment, the Comipaligves it is more-likely-than-not that the fa&ue of its reporting units is less than its
carrying value, a twatep goodwill impairment test is required to bef@mened. The first step requires the Company to cr@phe fair value ¢
each reporting unit to its carrying value includadtpcated goodwill. The Company determines thevalue of its reporting units using an
equal weighting of the results derived from an mecapproach and a market approach. The income agpr® estimated through the
discounted cash flow method based on assumptiang &lture conditions such as future revenue graates, new product and technology
introductions, gross margins, operating expensssodnt rates, future economic and market conditiand other assumptions. The market
approach estimates the fair value of the Compaeytsty by utilizing the market comparable methodachtis based on revenue multiples from
comparable companies in similar lines of businégke carrying value of a reporting unit exceelds teporting unit’s fair value, the Company
performs the second step of the goodwill impairntest to determine the amount of impairment loss.

The second step of the goodwill impairment tesbimes comparing the implied fair value of the repay unit with the carrying value of the
reporting unit. An impairment charge is recognifmdthe excess of the carrying value of the repgrtinit over its implied fair value.
Determining the fair value of a reporting unit igogective in nature and requires the use of sigaift estimates and assumptions, including
revenue growth rates and operating margins, ditaees and future market conditions, among others.

Identified intangible asse. Identified intangible assets consist of acquiatents, existing technology, trade names, assemuekforce and
non-compete agreements resulting from business ioatidns, and acquired patents under asset purelggisements. The Company’s
identified intangible assets are amortized onaigtt-line basis over their estimated useful livasging from two to 15 years . The Company
makes judgments about the recoverability of puretidiite-lived intangible assets whenever facts eincumstances indicate that the useful
life is shorter than originally estimated or thia tarrying amount of assets may not be recoverHlsdech facts and circumstances exist, the
Company assesses recoverability by comparing thieqied undiscounted net cash flows associatedtivitielated asset or group of assets
over their remaining lives against their respectimgying amounts. Impairments, if any, are basethe excess of the carrying amount ove
fair value of those assets. If the useful lifehisrser than originally estimated, the Company waddelerate the rate of amortization and
amortize the remaining carrying value over the saarter useful life.

For further discussion of goodwill and identifieddngible assets, see “Note 8 — Goodwill and Ifiedtintangible Assets.”

Treasury stock

The Company accounts for stock repurchases usagast method. For reissuance of treasury stodketextent that the reissuance price is
more than the cost, the excess is recorded aserase to capital in excess of par value. If thestence price is less than the cost, the
difference is recorded in capital in excess ofyzdne to the extent there is a cumulative treastogk paid in capital balance. Once the
cumulative balance is reduced to zeemy remaining difference resulting from the saléreasury stock below cost is recorded as a teatuof
retained earnings.

Revenue recognition

The Company derives its revenue from royalty aocense fees. Revenues are recognized when thegesisagive evidence of an arrangement,
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or deteahia, and collectability of the resulting receivals reasonably assured. Determining whether
and when these criteria have been satisfied regjthieCompany to make assumptions and judgmenthwbuld have a significant impact on
the timing and amount of revenue it reports.




Table of Contents

Royalty revenue is generated from a licensee'syatazh or shipment of licensed products incorpogathe Company’s intellectual property,
technologies or software. Running royalties arenprily based on unit volumes shipped. Licenseegrmgdly report shipment information
within 30 to 60 days following the end of the geart-rom time to time the Company also enterslinemse agreements that provide for fixed
license fees or royalty payments. When there isefiable basis on which the Company can estimateitalty revenues prior to obtaining th
reports from the licensees, the Company recogmmesdty revenues on a one-quarter lag. Royaltymaealso includes payments resulting
from periodic compliance audits of licensees, as @a settlement of a patent infringement dispatgudgments of license dispute.

License revenue is generated from license agreanfi@ntertain rights to the Company’s intellectpedperty technologies. The Company also
derives revenue from software licenses for digited video photography image enhancement technologpme instances, the Company may
enter into license agreements that involve multgkdgnent arrangements to also include technol@nster, design, technical service and
unspecified support. For technology and softwarenises, revenue is recognized upon delivery orstragght-line basis over the period in
which the unspecified support or service is perfm

The Company provides payment terms to licenseesdbgson their financial strength, credit worthinasd the Company’s collection
experience with the licensee. If the Company presidxtended payment terms, revenue is deferrelcbagtnent is due.

I ndemnification

The Company provides indemnification of varyingmedo certain customers against claims of intall@gbroperty infringement made by third
parties arising from the use of the Company’s tetdgies. In accordance with authoritative guidafazeaccounting for guarantees, the
Company evaluates estimated losses for such indieation. The Company considers such factors asi¢iygee of probability of an
unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a neaisle estimate of the amount of loss. To dateueb slaims have been filed against the
Company and, as a result, no liability has beearded in the Company'’s financial statements.

As permitted under Delaware law, the Company hasemgents whereby it indemnifies its officers angéctors for certain events or
occurrences while the officer or director is, orswserving at the Company’s request in such capaldiie maximum potential amount of future
payments the Company could be required to makeruhdse indemnification agreements is unlimitedyéner, the Company has Directors’
and Officers’ Liability insurance coverage thaintended to reduce its financial exposure and nmapke the Company to recover a portion of
any such payments. The Company believes the estihfiair value of these indemnification agreememtsxicess of applicable insurance
coverage is minimal.

Research, development and other related costs

Research, development and other related costsstqmsharily of compensation and related costgpfmsonnel as well as costs related to p:
prosecution, applications and examinations, amatitin of intangible assets, materials, supplieseandpment depreciation. Research and
development is conducted primarily in-house angetr development of chip-scale, three-dimensiomdlveafer-level packaging technology,
high-density substrate, thermal management technolowagé sensor packaging and image enhancement teghnéll research, developme
and other related costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock-based compensation expense

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatjmnse in accordance with the authoritative guidamcshare-based payment. Under th
provisions of the guidance, stock-based compensatipense is measured at the grant date basee éairtivalue of the option using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model and is recognizedxag®ese on a straight-line basis over the requsgiteice period, which is generally the
vesting period. The fair value of the Company'sktawards for non-employees was estimated bas#uediair market value on each vesting
date, accounted for under the variable-accountiathod.

The authoritative guidance also requires that the@any measure and recognize stock-based compansapense upon modification of the
term of stock award. The stock-based compensatipaerese for such modification is the sum of any umidized expense of the award before
modification and the modification expense. The rficdiion expense is the incremental amount of #ievialue of the award before the
modification and the fair value of the award after modification, measured on the date of modificatin the case when the modification
results in a longer requisite period than in thginal award, the Company has elected to applytad method where the aggregate of the
unamortized expense and the modification expenam@tized over the new requisite period on agitdine basis. In addition, any forfeiture
will be based on the original requisite period ptmthe modification.
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Calculating stock-based compensation expense esgtlie input of highly subjective assumptions,udgig the expected term of the stock-
based awards, stock price volatility, and the psting option forfeiture rate. The Company estimalbe expected life of options granted base
on historical exercise patterns, which are beligeede representative of future behavior. The Camgpsstimates the volatility of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant baeddstorical volatility. The assumptions used itcatating the fair value of stock-based
awards represent the Company’s best estimatethdsg estimates involve inherent uncertaintiesth@a@pplication of management judgment.
As a result, if factors change and the Company difssent assumptions, its stotlased compensation expense could be materiallgrdiff in
the future. In addition, the Company is requiregstimate the expected forfeiture rate and onlggeize expense for those shares expected t
vest. The Company estimates the forfeiture ratedas historical experience of its stock-based dw#rat are granted, exercised and
cancelled. If the actual forfeiture rate is matéyridifferent from the estimate, stodkased compensation expense could be significaiftgrent
from what was recorded in the current period. Sete N1 —'Stock-based Compensation Expensa” additional detail.

I ncome taxes

The Company must make certain estimates and judgnredetermining income tax expense for finanstatement purposes. These estimate:
and judgments occur in the calculation of tax deedax benefits, tax deductions, and in the catauh of certain deferred taxes and tax
liabilities. Significant changes to these estimaay result in an increase or decrease to the Coyigptax provision in a subsequent period.

The provision for income taxes was comprised ofGbenpany’s current tax liability and changes inediefd income tax assets and liabilities.
The calculation of the current tax liability invels dealing with uncertainties in the applicatiorrafplex tax laws and regulations and in
determining the liability for tax positions, if anpken on the Company’s tax returns in accordatteauthoritative guidance on accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes. Deferred incometaare determined based on the differences betihedimancial reporting and tax basis of
assets and liabilities. The Company must assedikéti@ood that it will be able to recover the Cpamy’s deferred tax assets. If recovery is nc
likely on a more-likely-than-not basis, the Compamyst increase its provision for income taxes loprding a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax assets that it estimates will notndtely be recoverable. However, should there Heage in the Company’s ability to recover its
deferred tax assets, the provision for income taw@mdd fluctuate in the period of such change. Set 14 ~Income Taxes"for additional
detail.

Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be involveceigal and administrative proceedings and claimsadbus types. The Company records a
liability in its consolidated financial statemefits these matters when a loss is known or consitlerebable and the amount can be reasonab
estimated. Management reviews these estimatesimagounting period as additional information lmees known and adjusts the loss
provision when appropriate. If the loss is not atolle or cannot be reasonably estimated, a lialiityot recorded in the consolidated financial
statements. If a loss is probable but the amoultssfcannot be reasonably estimated, the Compaolpses the loss contingency and an
estimate of possible loss or range of loss (urdash an estimate cannot be made). The Companyndbescognize gain contingencies until
they are realized. Legal costs incurred in conpeatiith loss contingencies are expensed as incuBeel Note 13 —Commitments and
Contingencies” for further information regarding the Companysnding litigation.

NOTE 3 — RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Adopted

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardafiq"FASB") issued ASU 2012-02, Intangibles — Gaitidand Other (Topic 350): Testing
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmewthich is intended to reduce the complexity and ocbgterforming a quantitative test for
impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assetsg®rmitting an entity the option to perform a qgtadlize evaluation about the likelihood that an
indefinitedived intangible asset is impaired in order to deiae whether it should calculate the fair valuéhaf asset. The update also imprc
previous guidance by expanding upon the exampleseafits and circumstances that an entity shouldidenbetween annual impairment tests
in determining whether it is more-likely-than-nbat the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangildsset is less than its carrying amount. The
Company adopted this guidance in fiscal year 2018 prospective basis. For further informationmangible asset impairment, see Note"8 —
Goodwill and Identified Intangible AssetsThe adoption of this ASU did not have a mateirigbact on the Company'’s financial statements.
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In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11,iBal&heet (Topic 210): Disclosure about OffsetAsgets and Liabilities, which
requires an entity to include additional disclosumbout financial instruments and transactionslééidor offset in the statement of financial
position, as well as financial instruments subfec master netting agreement or similar arrangem& 2011-11 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after Januar301L3, and interim periods within those annual gid’he adoption of this ASU did not have
a material impact on the Company’s financial statets.

In February 2013, the FASB issued amendments t6A8B Accounting Standards Codification relatingtie reporting of reclassifications «
of accumulated other comprehensive income. The dments require an entity to provide information aitbe amounts reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income by compohreatidition, an entity is required to presentei on the face of the statement where
net income is presented or in the notes, signifieamounts reclassified out of accumulated otherprefrensive income by the respective line
items of net income, but only if the amount redfées is required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassifie net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For other amounts that are nguired under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in tlegitirety to net income, an entity is required
to cross-reference to other disclosures requirekbiubd.S. GAAP that provide additional detail abthatse amounts. The Company adopted
these amendments in the first quarter of fiscal 843 on a prospective basis. The adoption ofABE did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 4 — COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the follow(imgthousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Trade and other receivables (1) $ 3,13t $ 11,63¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1) — (43)
$ 3,13t $ 11,59t

(1) Accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2ele8ing to the Company's operations in CharlottatiNCarolina and Zhuhai, China are
included in current assets of discontinued opemnati®ee Note 6 —Discontinued Operationg for additional details.

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Raw materials (2) $ — 3 84z
Work in process (2) — 14t
Finished goods (2) — 52C

$ — 3 1,507

(2) The Company sold its remaining inventory ag pathe August 2013 sale of the Company's Micrdi€poperations in Charlotte, North
Carolina.

Other current assets consisted of the followinghousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Prepaid income taxes $ 14,817 $ 5,82¢
Interest receivable 2,311 2,96:
Other 5,37: 6,912

$ 22,50 $ 15,70:

Property and equipment, net consisted of the fatigwin thousands):
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December 31, 2013

Q) December 31, 2012
Furniture and office equipment $ 21,28t $ 54,24:
Production equipment 2,52 36,57"
Land and buildings 45k 21,31«
Leasehold improvements 3,69¢ 13,87:
27,96¢ 126,00!

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (18,485 (53,46)
$ 9,481 $ 72,54+

(1) The cost and accumulated depreciation and &atdn of these assets have been reduced by therdraf impairment taken on these
assets. See Note 15Restructuring, Impairment of Long-lived Assets attter chargesfor additional details.

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Employee compensation and benefits (3) $ 7,460 $ 15,87¢
Purchase obligations (4) 9,80( —
Other (3) 6,27¢ 6,26

$ 23,53t % 22,14(

(3) Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2013 relgtio the Company's operations in Charlotte, N@dholina and Zhuhai, China are include
current liabilities of discontinued operations. S&se 6 — "Discontinued Operationg for additional details.

(4) Purchase obligations related to inventory asuiament. See Note 15'Restructuring, Impairment of Longred Assets and Other Charge
for additional details.

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the follog (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Unrecognized tax benefits $ 511C $ 5,21:
Other — 1,191
$ 511C $ 6,40:

Accumulated other comprehensive income consistékeofollowing (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securitiest,of tax $ 132 % 11¢
$ 13 % 11¢

NOTE 5 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following is a summary of marketable securitie®ecember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (irstrals):
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December 31, 2013

Gross Gross Estimated
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Values
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bonds and notes $ 131,37:  $ 7% (31) $ 131,41¢
Municipal bonds and notes 109,87 74 3 109,95(
Commercial paper 21,21¢ 4 (€N} 21,21¢
Treasury and agency notes and bills 28,03¢ 17 2 28,05:
Money market funds 13,19¢ — — 13,19¢
Total available-for-sale securities $ 303,70¢  $ 17C  $ @7 $ 303,83t
Reported in:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,97
Short-term investments 285,86!
Total marketable securities $ 303,83t

December 31, 2012

Gross Gross Estimated
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Values
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bonds and notes $ 171,48! $ 177 $ 98 $ 171,56:
Municipal bonds and notes 110,18! 55 (32 110,20¢
Treasury and agency notes and bills 29,05( 12 4 29,05¢
Commercial paper 46,13¢ 12 4 46,14:
Money market funds 34,10¢ — — 34,10¢
Certificate of deposit 4,50:% 1 — 4,50¢
Total available-for-sale securities $ 395,46: $ 257 % (13¢) $ 395,58!
Reported in:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 56,78:
Short-term investments 338,80:
Total marketable securities $ 395,58

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 , timep@ay had $359.6 million and $442.6 million , regpeely, in cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments. The majority of themseunts were held in marketable securities, as shabwne. The remaining balance of $55.8
million and $47.0 million at December 31, 2013 &etember 31, 2012, respectively, was cash hedgphémating accounts not included in the
tables above.

The gross realized gains and losses on sales éktabfe securities were not significant duringykars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Unrealized gains (net of unrealized losses) of $filllon , net of tax, as of December 31, 2013 rewelated to a temporary decrease in value
of the remaining available-for-sale securities amede due primarily to changes in interest ratesraatket and credit conditions of the
underlying securities. Certain investments witkemporary decline in value are not considered totber-than-temporarily impaired as of
December 31, 2013 because the Company has thiy &biliold these investments to allow for recovenyl does not anticipate having to sell
these securities with unrealized losses and cogsitoi receive interest at the maximum contractital For the years endBeécember 31, 201
and 2012 , respectively, the Company did not reaogdimpairment charges related to its marketadteisties.

The following table summarizes the fair value anasg unrealized losses related to individual aléetor-sale securities at December 31,
2013 and 2012, which have been in a continuousalireel loss position, aggregated by investmentgoaieand length of time (in thousands):

F-14




Table of Contents

December 31, 2013 Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Corporate bonds and notes $ 9,151 $ (31) $ — ¢ — 9,151 $ (32)
Municipal bonds and notes 5,49¢ 3 — — 5,49¢ ©)]
Commercial paper 66,37¢ (2) — — 66,37¢ @
Total $ 81,028 $ (35 $ — ¢ — 81,02 $ (35
December 31, 2012 Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Corporate bonds and notes $ 60,62( $ 98 $ — 3 — 3 60,62( $ (99
Municipal bonds and notes 48,14¢ 32 — — 48,14¢ (32
Commercial paper 10,561 (4) — — 10,567 4
Certificate of deposit 3,50( (@D} 3,50( Q)
Treasury and agency notes and bills 2,99 (3 — — 2,997 ©)
Total $ 125,83. $ (13¢) $ — ¢ — 125,830 % (139

The estimated fair value of marketable securitiesdntractual maturity at December 31, 2@48hown below (in thousands). Actual maturi
may differ from contractual maturities becauseeéssunay have the right to call or prepay obligatiafthout call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated

Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 153,86!
Due in one to two years 149,97:
Total $ 303,83t

NOTE 6 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2012, DOC, a subsidiary of Tessera TeclgiedolInc., completed its acquisition of certaiseds of Vista Point Technologies, from
Flextronics International Ltd. (the "Zhuhai Transac"). At the time of the closing of the Zhuhaighsaction, the Company intended to use thi
acquired assets and related manufacturing busioesselerate its strategy of building the Digitalids segment into a manufacturer and
supplier of camera modules in the mobile phone etatfowever, in the first quarter of 2013, the Campdetermined the DigitalOptics
business was to be restructured and announceldits  close the Zhuhai Facility. As a resultro$ restructuring, certain assets acquired in
the transaction were considered impaired or writ#mntirely. For further discussion of affectesbats, see Note 8 -Goodwill and Identified
Intangible Assetsand Note 15 “Restructuring, Impairment of long-lived assets atider charges.”

In the third quarter of 2013, the Company contintgetkstructure its DigitalOptics business throtigh sale of its Micro-Optics business basec
in Charlotte, North Carolina. Originally purchasac006, this business focused on diffractive agtedements, refractive optical elements, an
integrated micro-optic sub-assemblies. The Compltgrmined these offerings were no longer partsdbing-term strategy for the
DigitalOptics business. As a result, on August®, 2, the Company sold all of the related assetseoMicro-Optics business to a buyer in
exchange for $14.9 million in cash which resulte@ idisposal gain of $8.7 million , and is includedhe net loss from discontinued
operations. The Company retained ownership ofateed land and building and certain fabricatiosess for this facility, which are being
leased to the buyer.

The businesses discussed above are consideredtitiseal operations, and accordingly, the Compasyréported the results of operations
financial position of these businesses in discathoperations within all statements of operatjmesented and the current balance sheet.
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The results from discontinued operations were Bgvis (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Product and service revenues $ 6,427 $ 24,18t $ 16,65
Total revenues 6,421 24,18t 16,65
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 11,23¢ 32,52: 15,08¢
Research, development and other related costs 5,90: 11,91¢ 10,30¢
Selling, general and administrative 3,771 4,76 4,21¢
Restructuring, impairment of long-lived assets atiter charges 6,74¢ (1) — 381
Impairment of goodwill 6,664 (2 = 11,57:
Total operating expenses 34,32¢ 49,20: 41,56¢
Operating loss before taxes (27,899 (25,01) (24,919
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 65 (5,90¢) (4,300
Net loss from discontinued operations $ (27,967) $ (19,109 $ (20,61

(1) Includes $5.8 million impairment of assets tialgto the business in Charlotte, North Carolit@h@rlotte"), $4.3 million impairment of
assets relating to the Zhuhai, China operation(ti4ti'), $3.1 million and $0.9 million of severanedating to Charlotte and Zhuhai,
respectively (see Note 15 -Restructuring, Impairment and Other Chardgs$0.9 million of asset impairments relating thaClotte trade
name intangibles (see Note 8 Gdodwill and Identified Intangible Asséfs and $1.5 million in consulting fees for theesaf Charlotte
Micro-Optics, offset by an $8.7 million gain on ealf Micro-Optics assets and an $1.1 million gairdesposal of assets relating to Zhuhai.

(2) See Note 8 “Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assets."

The current assets and current liabilities of didicmed operations were as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2013
Accounts receivable and other assets, net $ 29
Property and equipment, net (1) 7,00(
Total current assets of discontinued operations $ 7,02¢
Accrued liabilities 407
Total current liabilities of discontinued operatson $ 407

(1) Assets are classified as held for sale

NOTE 7 — FAIR VALUE

The Company follows the authoritative guidance Yaiue measurement and the fair value option farfcial assets and financial liabilities.
Fair value is defined as the exchange price thatidvioe received for an asset or paid to transfxbdity, or an exit price, in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market participan the measurement date. The
established fair value hierarchy requires an emditjmaximize the use of observable inputs and m@rthe use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. There are three levels ofifgphat may be used to measure fair value:
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Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical asset

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssauated prices for similar assets; quoted pricesarkets that are not active;
or other inputs that are observable or can be boreded by observable market data for substantiadiyfull term of the assets.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@mmarket activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets. Level

3 assets and liabilities include financial instrumsewhose value is determined using pricing modi¢sounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well ariimments for which the determination of fair vatequires significant

management judgment or estimation.

The following is a list of the Company’s assetsuiegd to be measured at fair value on a recurramjsband where they were classified within

the hierarchy as of December 31, 2013 (in thougands

Quoted
Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Marketable Securities
Money market funds (1) $ 13,19¢ $ 13,19¢ $ — 3 =
Corporate bonds and notes (2) 131,41¢ — 131,41¢ —
Municipal bonds and notes (2) 109,95( — 109,95( —
Treasury and agency notes and bills (2) 28,05: — 28,05 —
Commercial paper (3) 21,21¢ — 21,21¢ —
Total Assets $ 303,83 $ 13,19¢ % 290,64( $ —

The following footnotes indicate where the notexsiiis were recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sh@&scember 31, 2013 :

(1) Reported as cash and cash equival
(2) Reported as shomrm investment
(3) Reported as either cash and cash equivalestsootierm investment

The following is a list of the Company’s assetsuiegd to be measured at fair value on a recurragjsband where they were classified within
the hierarchy as of December 31, 2012 (in thougands

Quoted
Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Marketable Securities
Money market funds (1) $ 34,10¢ $ 34,10¢ $ —  $ —
Corporate bonds and notes (2) 171,56« — 171,56« —
Municipal bonds and notes (2) 110,20¢ — 110,20¢ —
Treasury and agency notes and bills (2) 29,05¢ — 29,05¢ —
Certificate of deposit (2) 4,504 — 4,504 —
Commercial paper (3) 46,14: — 46,14: —
Total Assets $ 395,58! $ 34,10¢ $ 361,47 $ —

The following footnotes indicate where the notexsiiis were recorded in the Consolidated Balance Shé&scember 31, 2012 :

(1) Reported as cash and cash equival
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(2) Reported as shomrm investment
(3) Reported as either cash and cash equivalestsootierm investment

Nor-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table represents the activity in leSessets (in thousands):

Assets included in
discontinued
operations and held

Assets held for sale for sale (1) Other (1)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ — ¢ — 3 —
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ — 3 — % —
Assets transferred 9,581 12,73t 7,18:
Assets Sold (6,200 (3,319 (664)
Assets written-off (3,38)) (2,42)) (3,799
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ — $ 7,00 $ 2,72

(1) These assets are categorized as level 3 assateesult of the sale of our Micro-Optics businiesated in Charlotte, North Carolina, which
was completed in August 2013. See Note ®istontinued Operationsfor more information. These assets are carriedaket value as
determined by specific third party quotes.

NOTE 8 — GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes to the carrying value of goodwill aaraf during the year ended December 31, 2013:flected below (in thousands):

DigitalOptics
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 6,66¢
Impairment of goodwill (6,664

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ =

In March 2013, the Company revised its businesgesiy for the DigitalOptics business to concentitatenanufacturing efforts on the lens
barrel, rather than the whole camera module. Thissed strategy made the Zhuhai Facility unnecgs3@ie Company announced its plans to
close the Zhuhai Facility in March 2013. This damigriggered an impairment review of the relateddwill and purchased intangible assets
recorded in connection with the Zhuhai Transac{g@e Note 6 — Discontinued Operation$ for additional detail regarding the Zhuhai
Transaction). As a result of the Company's impamnnassessment, completed in the first quarter d82the Company recorded an impairmen
charge to goodwill of $6.7 million , all of whichas included in the DigitalOptics segment.

Identified intangible assets consisted of the feitg (in thousands):
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December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Average
Life Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

(Years) Assets Amortization Net Assets Amortization Net
Acquired patents / core
technology (1) 315 $ 121,96 $ (4555) $ 7641. $ 137,72¢ $ (3887 $ 98,85
Existing technology (2) 5-10 18,70( (16,939 1,761 54,19¢ (38,56%) 15,63
Customer contracts (3) 3-9 8,60( (5,619 2,98¢ 12,80( (8,037 4,76
Trade name (4) 4-10 52C (47¢€) 44 3,62( (2,449 1,175
Non-competition agreemen 2 — — — 1,40(C (1,400 —
Assembled workforce 4 — — — 30C (300 —

$ 14978 $ (6858) $ 8120: $ 21004 $  (89,61) $ 120,43;

(1) In the first quarter of 2013, the Company relear a $0.4 million impairment charge, which waduded in the net loss from continuing
operations due to abandonment of acquired patedta@impairment of $0.9 million relating to pateatquired in the Zhuhai Transaction,
which impairment was included in the loss from diginued operations. In addition, the Company £dld million (representing net book
value) of patents relating to the Charlotte, N&@#rolina asset sale in the third quarter of 20d3hé fourth quarter of 2013, the Company
recorded $5.2 millioin impairment charges, which was included in thelogs from continuing operations, relating to péethat were pa
of the DigitalOptics business.

(2) In the first quarter of 2013, the Company imedran $8.3 milliortharge, which was included in the net loss fronticoing operations, du
to the abandonment of existing technology whichsedua revision of the useful life estimate of thiestnology assets thus fully impairing
them. In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Comparypréed $1.8 million of impairment charges relatiagatents that were part of the
DigitalOptics patent group.

(3) In the first quarter of 2013, the Company imedra $0.7 million impairment charge, which waduded in the loss from discontinued
operations, relating to the customer contractbefzhuhai Facility.

(4) In the third quarter of 2013, the Company reedra $0.9 million impairment charge, which waduded in the loss from discontinued
operations, relating to the trade name intangibfé¢ke Charlotte, North Carolina operation.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembge2®L3 , 2012 , and 2011 amounted to $21.6 milli®23.3 million and $15.3 million ,
respectively. As of December 31, 2013 , the estih&iiture amortization expense of intangible asseds follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 17,67¢
2015 16,86"
2016 16,01
2017 13,73¢
2018 11,99:
Thereafter 4,917

$ 81,20:

NOTE 9 — NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

The Company has a share-based compensation planwhith employees may be granted share-based sivenldding shares of restricted
stock and restricted stock units ("RSUs"). Non-<€igble dividends are paid on unvested sharesstrigted stock. No dividends are accrued ol
paid on unvested RSUs. As such, shares of resirittek are considered participating securitieseutite two-class method of calculating
earnings per share. The two-class method of cdlnglaarnings per share did not have a materiahahpn the Company’s earnings per share
calculation as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted shares (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Weighted average common shares outstanding 52,29: 52,01( 51,13t

Unvested common shares subject to repurchase 1,05: (33 (593
Total common shares-basic 53,34¢ 51,977 51,08:
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock awards — — 92

Restricted stock awards and units — — 26¢
Total common shares-diluted 53,34¢ 51,971 51,44

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed ubmgveighted average number of common sharesaodisg during the period, excluding
any unvested restricted stock awards that are sulgjeepurchase. Diluted net income (loss) perestsacomputed using the treasury stock
method to calculate the weighted average numbeomimon shares and, if dilutive, potential commoareh outstanding during the period.
Potential dilutive common shares include unvesgstricted stock awards and units and incrementahoon shares issuable upon the exercise
of stock options, less shares from assumed proc&bdsassumed proceeds calculation includes agotaaéeds to be received from the
employee upon exercise, the average unrecogniaekl sbmpensation cost during the period and anyéaoefits that will be credited upon
exercise to additional paid-in capital.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 aridi@@e calculation of net loss per share, 2.8ionil, 6.5 million and 6.4 million shares,
respectively, subject to stock options and regtdatock awards and units were excluded from thepatation of diluted net loss per share as
they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 10 — STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Stock Repurchase Programs

In August 2007, the Company’s Board of Directoth€*Board”) authorized a plan to repurchase uprtmgimum total of $100.0 millioof the
Company’s outstanding shares of common stock degrmermh market conditions, share price and otha@ofacln November 2013, the Board
increased the amount authorized to be used forebpses to $150.0 million . As of December 31, 20tt@ Company had repurchased a total
of approximately 2,145,000 shares of common stsitkce inception of the plan, at an average prickl8 32 per share for a total cost of $39.3
million . As of December 31, 2012 , the Company telirchased a total of approximately 645,000 shaffeommon stock, since inception of
the plan, at an average price of $16.26 per sluara tfotal cost of $10.5 million . The shares repased are recorded as treasury stock and ar
accounted for under the cost method. No expiratete has been specified for this plan. As of Deaarfh, 2013 , the total amount available
for repurchase was $110.7 million . The Compannpla continue to execute authorized repurchases time to time under the plan.

Stock Option Plans

The 2003 Plan

In February 2003, the Board adopted and the Conipatyckholders approved the 2003 Equity Inceniian (2003 Plan”). Under the 2003
Plan, incentive stock options may be granted tdbmpany’s employees at an exercise price of rethemn 100% of the fair value on the date
of grant, and non-statutory stock options may lamged to the Company’s employees, non-employeetdieand consultants at an exercise
price of no less than 85% of the fair value. Inhbodses, when the optionees own stock represemting than 10% of the voting power of all
classes of stock of the Company, the exercise ghie# be no less than 110% of the fair value endéite of grant. Options, restricted stock
awards, and restricted stock units granted undeipthn generally have a term of ten years fromddte of grant and vest over a four -year
period. Restricted stock, performance awards, dividequivalents, deferred stock, stock paymentsaook appreciation rights may also be
granted under the 2003 Plan either alone, in addit, or in tandem with any options granted theden. Restricted stock awards and units are
full-value awards that reduce the number of sheessrved for grant under this plan by one and @ieshares for
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each share granted. The vesting criteria for i@sttistock awards and units is generally the passatime or meeting certain performance-
based objectives, and continued employment throluglvesting period generally over four years. ABetember 31, 2013 , there were
approximately 4.8 million shares reserved for fatgrant under this plan.

A summary of the stock option activity is presenetbw (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Options Outstanding

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Remaining
Shares Subject to Price Per Contractual Life ~ Aggregate Intrinsic
Options Share (in years) Value
Balance at December 31, 2010 6,38: $22.09
Options granted 1,90( $15.17
Options exercised (239 $15.02
Options canceled / forfeited / expired (1,225 $23.48
Balance at December 31, 2011 6,81¢ $20.16
Options granted 2,36¢ $15.14
Options exercised (167) $14.18
Options canceled / forfeited / expired (1,919 $23.22
Balance at December 31, 2012 7,09¢ $17.80
Options granted 1,204 $19.00
Options exercised (2,03)) $16.51
Options canceled / forfeited / expired (2,359 $18.59
Balance at December 31, 2013 3,91% $18.37 6.59 $ 9,17¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2013 3,63( 6.39 $ 8,572
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 1,968 4.43 $ 4,064

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding and exercisable underfaleCompany’s plans at December 31,
2013:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Outstanding Contractual Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
Prices per Share (in thousands) Life (in years) per Share (in thousands) per Share
$12.03 - $13.96 40t 7.40 $ 12.7¢ 17¢  $ 12.6¢4
$14.00 - $14.91 483 7.96 $ 14.7¢ 13t $ 14.7¢
$15.03 - $16.45 43C 6.41 $ 15.9¢ 22¢ % 15.9¢
$16.51 - $17.55 454 5.98 $ 17.2¢ 248 % 17.2(
$17.74 - $18.81 38¢ 528 §$ 17.8i 285 % 17.8¢
$18.84 - $18.84 43¢ 994 % 18.8¢ — —
$18.89 - $19.75 39¢ 499 $ 19.2¢ 327 % 19.3¢
$19.79 - $20.71 40z 8.89 % 20.4¢ 48 % 20.4¢
$21.7 - $44.27 51¢ 295 $ 26.7: 51t $ 26.7¢
$12.03 - $44.27 3,915 659 $ 18.3; 1,968 g 19.5]

Restricted Stock Awards and Ur

Information with respect to outstanding restricséock awards and units as of December 31, 2018fsllaws (in thousands, except per share
amounts):
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units
Number of Shares

Number of Shares Subject to Weighted Average
Subject to Time- Performance- Total Number Grant Date Fair
based Vesting based Vesting of Shares Value Per Share
Balance at December 31, 2010 98( 56E 1,54 $ 19.8¢
Awards and units granted 261 — 261 $ 16.07
Awards and units vested / earned (33)) (1139 (4449 $ 23.31
Awards and units canceled / forfeited (180 (197 (371) $ 19.2¢
Balance at December 31, 2011 73C 261 991 $ 17.6(
Awards and units granted 367 13z 50C $ 16.4¢
Awards and units vested / earned (239 (30 (269 $ 17.1¢
Awards and units canceled / forfeited (149 (24¢) (397) $ 19.0¢
Balance at December 31, 2012 71¢ 11€ 831 $ 16.3¢
Awards and units granted 59¢€ 35¢ 954 $ 19.2¢
Awards and units vested / earned (262) (27) (289 % 17.4¢
Awards and units canceled / forfeited (312) (99 (411 $ 16.77
Balance at December 31, 2013 731 34¢ 1,08t g 18.4¢

Performance Awards and Uni

Performance awards and units may be granted tooges or consultants based upon, among other ttimgsontributions, responsibilities
and other compensation of the particular employemosultant. The value and the vesting of sucfop@ance awards and units are generally
linked to one or more performance goals or otheciic performance goals determined by the Compamgach case on a specified date or
dates or over any period or periods determinedeydompany, and range from zero to 100 percerteofjtant.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

In August 2003, the Board adopted the 2003 Empl&teek Purchase Plan (the "ESPP"), which was ajgprby the Company’s stockholders
in September 2003 and became effective Febru&29@4. Subsequently, the Board adopted the IntematEmployee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “International ESPP”) in June 2008.

As of December 31, 2013, there were approxima&tgly,230 shares reserved for grant under the ES@Eharinternational ESPP, collectively.

Dividends

Stockholders of the Company’s common stock ardledtio receive dividends when declared by the Gomgs Board of Directors. The
Company began paying a $0.10 quarterly dividerttiénsecond quarter of 2012. Dividends declared %@ré0 and $0.3per common share
2013 and 2012, respectively. No dividends wereatded and paid in 2011.

NOTE 11 — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE
The effect of recording stock-based compensatigeese for the years ended December 31, 2013 ,&@12011 is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Cost of revenues $ 50 $ 641 $ 45¢
Research, development and other related costs 3,591 6,45¢ 8,23:
Selling, general and administrative 9,86: 9,94( 16,87¢
Total stock-based compensation expense 13,50: 17,03¢ 25,57(
Tax effect on stock-based compensation expense — (5,14¢) (7,705
Net effect on net income (loss) $ 13,50:  $ 11,88t $ 17,86%
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Stock-based compensation expense categorized lmusaquity components for the years ended DeceBihet013 , 2012 and 2011 is
summarized in the table below (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Employee stock options $ 7,81 % 10,33: $ 16,46¢
Restricted stock awards and units 4,317 4,792 7,04¢
Employee stock purchase plan 1,371 1,912 2,05¢
$ 13,50: % 17,03¢ % 25,57(

Total stock-based compensation expense

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@and, the Company granted 1,204,000 , 2,366,00&0D,000 shares of stock options,
respectively. The 2013, 2012 and 2011 estimatedipae fair value of those grants was $6.82 , $dr@3$8.24 respectively, before estimat

forfeitures.

The total fair value of restricted stock awardstedsiuring the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011 was $5.0 million , $4.5 million
and $10.3 million , respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 andv284 $6.8 million , $0.6 million an$il.0
million , respectively. The intrinsic value is calated as the difference between the market vaiub® date of exercise and the exercise price

of the shares.

As of December 31, 2013, the unrecognized stockdasmpensation balance after estimated forfeinalased to unvested stock options was
$11.7 million to be recognized over an estimateijimed average amortization period of 3.0 years&i&i8 million related to restricted stock
awards and units, including performance-based aamd units, to be recognized over an estimateghtexi average amortization period of
2.3 years . As of December 31, 2012, the unrecegrsrock-based compensation balance after estirfafettures related to unvested stock
options was $17.8 million to be recognized oveestimated weighted average amortization period®f2ars and $13.6 million related to
restricted stock awards and units, including penmce-based awards and units, to be recognizedaovestimated weighted average
amortization period of 2.5 years .

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricingehto determine the estimated fair value of opidrhe fair value of each option grant
is determined on the date of grant and the expiemeeorded on a straight-line basis. The assumgtised in the model include expected life,
volatility, risk-free interest rate, and divideniiélgd. The Company’s determinations of these assimptire outlined below.

Expected life The expected life assumption is based on analysieedCompany’s historical employee exercise patieFfhe expected life
of options granted under the ESPP represents fegngf period of two years.

Volatility —Volatility is calculated using the historical vdlay of the Company’s common stock for a term dstent with the expected life.
Historical volatility of the Company’s common stoiskalso utilized for the ESPP.

Risk-free interest rate The riskfree interest rate assumption is based on theTWeAsury rate for issues with remaining terms sintib the
expected life of the options.

Dividend yield -Expected dividend yield is calculated by annuafjzine cash dividend declared by the Board for threenit quarter and
dividing that result by the average closing pri€¢he Company’s common stock for the quarter. Ghgldends are not paid on options,
restricted stock units or unvested restricted stavehrds.

In addition, the Company estimates forfeiture rafesfeitures are estimated at the time of gradtrawised in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. Historidata is used to estimate pre-vesting option fanfes and record stock-based compensation
expense only for those awards that are expecteestio

The following assumptions were used to value th@op granted:
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Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected life (in years) 5.0 3.7 3.7
Risk-free interest rate 0.8-1.8% 0.5-0.8% 0.6-1.8%
Dividend yield 2.1-3.8% 2.2-2.8% 0.0%
Expected volatility 44.2 -59.5% 45.3 -66.4% 66.7 -76.7%

The following assumptions were used to value thEEShares:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected life (years) 2.0 2.0 2.0
Risk-free interest rate 0.3-0.4% 0.2-0.6% 0.4 -0.6%
Dividend yield 2.3-3.8% 2.2-2.7% 0.0%
Expected volatility 38.9 -40.6% 43.7 -79.7% 43.7 -79.7%

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arld a@laggregate of 288,000 , 292,000 and 371,000nom shares, respectively, were
purchased pursuant to the ESPP.

Modifications

From time to time, the Company enters into consgliagreements with its departing employees. Sontleesk agreements may include
continued vesting of the departing employees’ stoghlirds and an extension of the exercise periad fhe standard 90 days from employmen
termination date to the termination of the consagliagreement. As a result of modifications relatefbrmer employees, the Company incurrec
stock-based compensation expense of $3.0 millghl, million , and $5.2 million for the years end2ecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

NOTE 12 — INCOME TAXES

The components of total income (loss) before inctames from continuing operations are as followdlfousands):

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

u.S. $ (101,99) $ (5,98) $ 43,84(
Foreign (31,117 (3,999 (28,247)
Total income before income taxes from continuingragons $ (133,109 $ (9,972 $ 15,59¢

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes cateil of the following (in thousands):
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Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Current:
U.S. federal (12,95¢) (1,079 $ 3,95¢
Foreign 14,777 8,25: 8,09:
State and local 8 69 (107)
Total current 1,82¢ 7,24¢ 11,94
Deferred:
U.S. federal 25,23t (6,425 2,85¢
Foreign (2,587) (987) (5449
State and local — 1,301 29
Total deferred 22,65¢ (6,10%) 2,33¢
Provision for income taxes 24,48: 1,142 % 14,28

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying amo@iaissets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts for income tiapqgses.

Significant components of the company’s deferredassets and liabilities are as follows (in thowsan

December 31,

2013 2012

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 29,23t % 10,91¢

Research tax credit 7,27 4,23¢

Foreign tax credit 19,94¢ 6,52¢

Expenses not currently deductible 17,68¢ 19,95:

Basis difference in fixed and intangible assets 18,461 622
Gross deferred tax assets 92,60¢ 42,25:
Valuation allowance (91,130 (14,587
Net deferred tax assets 1,47¢ 27,66¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired intangible assets, foreign (51¢) (4,097)

Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries (520 (295)
Net deferred tax assets $ 44C $ 23,27:

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company haduaten allowance of $91.1 million and $14.6 mitliprespectively, related to federal,
state, and foreign tax attributes that the Compmeligves to be not realizable on a more-likely-thatbasis. The increase of $76.5 million in
the valuation allowance in 2013 was due primanlyetderal tax attributes which the Company assert® not realizable. During the year 2(

a valuation allowance was recorded against suligigrdall of the Company's federal deferred taxeasss the Company concluded such asset
were no longer fully realizable. The need for auatibn allowance requires an assessment of boitiyeoand negative evidence when
determining whether it is more-likely-than-not tideferred tax assets are recoverable. Such assgssmequired on a jurisdiction-by-
jurisdiction basis. In making such assessmentjfgignt weight is given to evidence that can besghbiyely verified. After considering bo
negative and positive evidence to assess the reduiliy of the Company's net deferred tax assatind the year 2013, the Company
determined that it was not more-likely-than-not @@mpany would realize the full value of federaledeed tax assets given current
uncertainties regarding the timing of profits thas caused the Company to be in a cumulative yleaeloss position as of the end of 2013.
The Company continues to monitor the likelihood thevill be able to recover the deferred tax assethe future. This determination includes
objectively verifiable positive evidence that ouigles potential negative evidence.

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal ino® tax rate to the Company’s effective tax ratsifollows:
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Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

U.S. federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State, net of federal benefit — (13.9) 8.3
Stock-based compensation expense (0.2 (6.2 5.¢
Tax exempt interest 0.1 1.¢ (2.7
Research tax credit and other 1.2 — (6.4
Foreign withholding tax (11.7 (77.5) 50.¢
Foreign losses not benefited 0.€ (13.9) (9.6)
Foreign tax rate differential (6.9 1.C (4.9
Foreign tax credit 10.1 65.5 (45.5)
Change in valuation allowance (46.5) — —
Goodwill impairment — — 74.¢
Others (0.9 (4.7 1.2

Total (18.5)% (11.5% 91.€ %

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had fedetadperating loss carryforwards of approximately $58illion and state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $122.1 million . lysificant amount of the state net operating lassyforwards are carried over from the
acquired entities, Digital Optics Corporation ir080and Siimpel Corporation in 2010. If not utilizedese operating loss carryforwards will
begin to expire on various dates beginning in 284 will continue to expire through 2033. In aduitithe Company has research tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $2.7 million for @l purposes which will start to expire in 2014 avill continue to expire through 2033.
The Company also has research tax credit carryfolsvaf approximately $4.9 million for state purpesad $1.4 million for foreign purposes,
which will never expire. The Company has $19.9ionillof foreign tax credit carryforwards which wékpire beginning in 2022 and will
continue to expire through 2023. Under the prowisiof the Internal Revenue Code, substantial clsaimgine Company's or its subsidiaries'
ownership may limit the amount of net operatinglaad research tax credit carryforwards that cauibeed annually in the future to offset

taxable income.

The Company plans to permanently reinvest the uit@srearnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries exéepthe Company's Israeli, Chinese,

Taiwanese and Japanese subsidiaries where theeluisthese subsidiaries is imminent following @@mpany's announcement to cease its
MEMS manufacturing operations. The Company hasugcca deferred tax liability of $0.5 millidor the withholding taxes that would arise
the distribution of the Israeli and Japanese sidn$és' earnings. The Chinese and Taiwanese sabsgislihave nominal earnings or deficits ¢
December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized tax benafigoximated $5.0 million , (included in other letggm liabilities on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet), of which $3.5 million would afféot effective tax rate if recognized. As of Decentiis 2012, unrecognized tax benefits
approximated $4.8 million , of which $3.6 milliorowld affect the effective tax rate if recognized. & December 31, 2013, it is reasonably
possible that unrecognized tax benefits may deerbg$3.0 to $3.3 million in the next 12 months tuéhe expected lapse of statute of
limitation relating to federal tax deductions aedearch tax credit, foreign tax incentives andctbsure of a foreign subsidiary.

The reconciliation of our unrecognized tax bendbtsthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ahtl (s follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Total unrecognized tax benefits at January 1 $ 4,831 $ 3,770 % 4,83
Gross increases and decreases due to tax pogaiersin prior periods 18 822 87
Gross increases and decreases due to tax pogaiersin the current period 29C 23¢ 52C
Gross increases and decreases due to settlemémtsung authorities (87) — (967)
Gross increases and decreases due to lapses icaappbktatutes of limitations (22) — (713)
Total unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 $ 5031 $% 4,831 $ 3,77(

F- 26




Table of Contents

It is the Company's policy to classify accruediiest and penalties related to unrecognized taxfigivethe provision for income taxes. For
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 201Catmpany recognized an insignificant amount of edeéand penalties related
unrecognized tax benefits. For the years endedibleee31, 2013 and 2012, the Company accrued $0ii6mand $0.5 million , respectively,
of interest and penalties related to unrecogniagdenefits.

At December 31, 2013, the CompaniZ008 through 2013 tax years were open and subj@citential examination in one or more jurisdios.

In addition, in the U.S., any net operating lossiesredits that were generated in prior years kilized in the open years may also be subject t
examination. The Company is currently under exatiinan the U.S. on its 2008 and 2009 tax retuvMe.cannot estimate the financial
outcome of the U.S. examination. The Company inatently under state or foreign income tax exatioms.

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease and Purchase Commitments

The Company leases office and research facilitielscdfice equipment under operating leases whiglirexat various dates through 2020. The
amounts reflected in the table below are for thgreggate future minimum lease payments under nooetalle facility and equipment
operating leases. Under lease agreements thafrc@stzalating rent provisions, lease expense wded on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Rent expense for the years ended Decemb@033,, 2012 and 2011 amounted to $3.9 million.7 $illion and $3.1 million ,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, future minimum lease paymare as follows (in thousands):

Lease
Obligations
2014 $ 3,72¢
2015 3,27¢
2016 3,201
2017 2,831
2018 1,91¢
Thereafter 2,88¢
$ 17,85(

Contingencies

For all legal proceedings described below, at eapbrting period, the Company evaluates wheth@obga potential loss amount or a potential
range of loss is probable and reasonably estimatder the provisions of the authoritative guidathag addresses accounting for contingen
The Company is currently unable to predict thelfmacome of these lawsuits and therefore canniroéne the likelihood of loss nor estim

a range of possible loss. An adverse decisionyofthese proceedings could significantly harm@mnpany’s business and consolidated
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

Contingency fee dispute for the case of Tessera Technologies, I nc. v. Hynix Semiconductor Inc. et. al, Case No. 1-06-CV-076688 (Cal.
Super. Ct.)

Tessera Technologies, Inc. had a dispute withoitmér counsel Susman Godfrey L.L.P. (“Susman”) dkeramount due to Susman, if any, as
a contingency fee for Susman's work in the matt@ressera Technologies, Inc. v. Hynix Semiconduatar$usman requested arbitration of
the dispute. On or about December 9, 2013, théegarached a settlement of the arbitration in arghk for a full release of all claims betweer
the parties.

Other Litigation Matters

In addition to the foregoing matters, the Compamy iés subsidiaries are involved in other litigatimatters and claims in the normal course of
business. In the past, the Company and its subisisihave litigated to enforce their respectiveptst and other intellectual property rights, to
enforce the terms of license agreements, to prataae secrets, to determine the validity and soflee proprietary rights of others and to
defend against claims of infringement or invalidithe Company expects it or its subsidiaries welitivolved in similar legal proceedings in
the future, including proceedings regarding infanent of its patents and proceedings to ensureepeop full payment of royalties by
licensees under the terms of its license agreements
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These existing and any future legal actions maynteither or both of the Company’s business segmantsmay hinder the Company’s ability
to independently optimize each business segmeneXamnple, they could cause an existing licensestrategic partner to cease making roy
or other payments to the Company, or to challehgevalidity and enforceability of patents ownedtlhy Company’s subsidiaries or the scope
of license agreements with the Company’s subs&badnd could significantly damage the Companyaiomship with such licensee or
strategic partner and, as a result, prevent thptamtoof the Company’s other Intellectual PropemtyDigitalOptics technologies by such
licensee or strategic partner. Litigation couldasverely disrupt or shut down the business opesabf licensees or strategic partners of the
Company’s subsidiaries, which in turn would sigeafitly harm ongoing relations with them and cahseGompany to lose royalty revenues.

The costs associated with legal proceedings aiealyphigh, relatively unpredictable and not coetely within the Company’s control. These
costs may be materially higher than expected, wbielid adversely affect the Company’s operatingltssnd lead to volatility in the price of
its common stock. Whether or not determined inGbenpany’s favor or ultimately settled, litigatioiverts managerial, technical, legal and
financial resources from the Company’s businessatipes. Furthermore, an adverse decision in ariiexfe legal actions could result in a los¢
of the Company’s proprietary rights, subject thenpany to significant liabilities, require the Compéo seek licenses from others, limit the
value of the Company’s licensed technology or atlies negatively impact the Compasystock price or its business and consolidatedh iz
position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 14 — SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: Intelié&roperty and DigitalOptics. Corporate Overhewaduides certain operating amounts
such as finance, IT, HR, legal, business developaeth other administrative services that are riotated to the reportable segments becaus
these operating amounts are not considered in &¥aduthe operating performance of the Company&rimss segments.

The Company's Chief Executive Officer is also thee€Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") as definedthe authoritative guidance on
segment reporting. The Company has organizedptatiag units to align with the vision of the CODM.

The Intellectual Property segment, managed by Tadatellectual Property Corp., generates revenora imanufacturers and other
implementers that use our technology. The segmehtdes Tessera, Inc. and Invensas. Tessera,itmegyed chip-scale packaging solutions,
which it licenses to the semiconductor industryelmsas develops and acquires interconnect soluiothéntellectual property in areas such as
mobile computing and communications, memory and datrage, and 3DIC technologies.

DOC operates the DigitalOptics segment. DOC'’s saifnsolutions for mobile imaging include its FacelSpface beautification, red-eye
removal, HDR, panorama, and image stabilizationlpets. DOC also seeks to monetize the DigitalOptitdlectual property portfolio and
technology, through a sale, licensing or other mean

The Company does not identify or allocate asset®pgrtable segment, nor does the CODM evaluatatage segments using discrete asset
information. Reportable segments do not record-iségment revenues and accordingly there are namg@ont. The Company does not alloc
other income and expense to reportable segmentough the CODM uses operating income to evaligiertable segments, operating costs
included in one segment may benefit other segments.

The following table sets forth the Company’s segimewmenues, operating expenses and operating infoss) from continuing operations for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 , and(#0fliousands):
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Revenues:
Intellectual Property revenues
DigitalOptics revenues
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Intellectual Property Segment
DigitalOptics Segment
Corporate Overhead
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations:
Intellectual Property Segment
DigitalOptics Segment
Corporate Overhead

Total operating income (loss) from continuing opierss

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 149,97 $ 192,89 $ 213,41
18,93¢ 16,94¢ 24,51
168,90¢ 209,83t 237,92!
118,83 97,98 81,49:
143,82 80,67¢ 96,50¢
41,13 47,02: 46,96¢
303,79 225,68 224,96
31,13 94,90¢ 131,91¢
(124,88%) (63,729 (71,995
(41,13 (47,029 (46,96¢)
$ (134,88) $ (15,84) $  12,95¢

A significant portion of the Company’s revenuesléived from licensees headquartered outside dfltBe principally in Asia, and it is
expected that these revenues will continue to addou a significant portion of total revenues irufre periods. The table below lists the
geographic revenues from continuing operationstferperiods indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Korea $ 64,09 3% $  40,25] 2% $  43,75¢ 19%
Japan 48,48: pAS 23,31 11 29,58! 12
u.sS. 41,87¢ 25 103,15: 49 71,267 30
Other Asia 12,79¢ 8 38,76¢ 18 85,80 36
Europe and other 1,661 1 4,35¢ 2 7,514 3
$ 168,90¢ 10(% $ 209,83t 10(% $ 237,92¢ 100%

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, @&ht three , four and threestomers, respectively, each accounted for 10fbave of tota

revenues.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 properdyemuipment, net, by geographical area are predéeaiew (in thousands):

Taiwan

uU.S.

Israel

Asia Pacific and other
China

Total

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 2,39 % 18,17¢ $ 15€
4,72¢ 39,46" 35,082
1,431 1,83¢ 27¢
931 2,02¢ 80z
— 11,03¢ —
$ 9,481 $ 72,54: $ 36,31¢

NOTE 15 — RESTRUCTURING, IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED A SSETS AND OTHER CHARGES

Beginning in 2011, the Company initiated a reorgation of its DigitalOptics segment. These actimese intended to refocus its DigitalOpt
business strategy to achieve the full potentidlsodifferentiated imaging technology while redugitosts. These efforts resulted in several

actions.
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In August 2011, the Company announced a commithoetmdertake a workforce reduction at its Yokohadagan development facility and to
close that facility in order to optimize the Compaoperations. Expenses incurred as a resultedefactivities consisted of severance, costs
related to the continuation of certain employeecfieshand expenses related to the closure of titjaand termination of the operating lease,
and are recorded in restructuring and other chasgeke statement of operations. Total restrucgugind other charges related to these acti
were $5.2 million , all of which were expensedhie year ended December 31, 2011 and these adtiwidee completed during the first quarter
of 2012.

In November 2012, the Company announced a restimgtaf its DigitalOptics segment in Tel Aviv, I&fa In connection with this effort,
DigitalOptics reduced its workforce and ceased afpans at its facility in Tel Aviv, Israel and inged total charges of $2.5 million in the
fourth quarter of 2012.

In 2013, the Company continued reorganizing thatBliQptics segment by closing its manufacturingratien in Zhuhai, China, selling a
significant portion of the assets of the CompaMiwo-Optics business based in Charlotte, Northoiaa. On January 16, 2014, the Compan
announced a restructuring of its DigitalOptics seghto cease all remaining manufacturing operatiesslting in the impairment charges
related to our long-lived asseEor the year ended December 31, 2013, the Companyred cumulative charges, which include contiguanc
discontinued operations in total, of $5.9 millionseverance and $70.9 million in impairment of ldingd assets and other charges. Minimal
restructuring and impairments expenses pertairanige shutdown of Zhuhai and the sale of Micro-Gpéire expected to be charged in future
periods.

Refer to the table below for more details of th&tnecturing, impairment of long-lived assets anteotcharges which are presented on a
combined continuing and discontinued operationssbasgeneral, the fair value of long-lived assats the related impairment charges are
determined by specific market quotes for the affeéctssets.

Information with respect to restructuring, impaimhef long-lived assets and other charges as oéeer 31, 2013 is as follows (in
thousands):

Impairment of long-lived assets and

Employee Severance other Total
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ —  $ — 139: % —  $ 1,39: $ —
2012 restructuring and other charges 2,36: — 161 — 2,52¢ —
Cash payments (450 — (1,399 — (1,847 —
Non-cash items — — (139) — (139 —
Balance at December 31, 2012 1,91t — 28 — 1,941 —
2013 restructuring and other charges:
Impairment of DigitalOptics long-lived
assets (1) — — 51,90( — 51,90( —
Disposal of Micro-Optics business (2) — 3,121 — (50%) — 2,61¢
Closure of Zhuhai, China facility (3) — 88¢ — 3,24: — 4,131
Closure of Tel Aviv, Israel facility (4) 25¢ — 24¢ — 507 —
Other (5) 1,614 — 15,98¢ — 17,60( —
Total 2013 charges 1,87: 4,00¢ 68,13« 2,74( 70,007 6,74¢
Cash payments (3,59%) (3,847 (2,289 (2,96¢) (5,88)) (6,80¢)
Non-cash items — — (58,709 22¢ (58,709 22¢
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 18¢  $ 167 $ 7174 § — $ 7,360 $ 167

(1) During the first and second quarters of 20b8,EGompany impaired $1.3 million and $1.1 milliaespectively, of manufacturing
equipment assets held for sale relating to the dai@peration. On January 16, 2014, the Companyusnteal a restructuring of its
DigitalOptics segment to cease all remaining mactufing operations. This action triggered a $32ilion impairment of manufacturing
equipment, a $4.8 million impairment of intangillesets, purchase obligations of $9.8 million feremory and equipment, and
impairments of IT related assets of $2.1 milliorthe fourth quarter of 2013. The total impairmembant of $53.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013 was included in continopegations.
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(2) In 2013, the Company recorded $3.1 million®fesance charges primarily relating to the salta@Micro-Optics business in Charlotte,
North Carolina, impaired $5.8 million of Charlotissets, recorded $1.5 million in consulting feedtie sale of Charlotte assets, and
impaired $0.9 million of trade name intangiblestielg to the Charlotte operation, which were offsgtain $8.7 million gain on sale of
Charlotte assets. The severance and impairmentsreeorded in discontinued operations for the yealed December 31, 2013.

(3) In the first quarter of 2013, the Company imedi$1.7 million of manufacturing equipment as$etisl for sale resulting from the closure of
the Zhuhai Facility, and recorded impairment charngfe$0.7 million relating to customer relationshgnd $0.9 million relating to patents
acquired from the Zhuhai Transaction (see Note' &eodwill and Identified Intangibles Assétr more information about the accelere
amortization of existing technology). The severatitarges relating to the closure of the ZhuhailFaevhich were incurred in the first and
second quarters of 2013 totaled $0.9 million . $&eerance and impairment charges relating to tieuct of the Zhuhai Facility were
recorded in discontinued operations for the yededrDecember 31, 2013.

(4) In 2013, the Company incurred $0.2 million e¥srance and $0.3 millicof asset related impairments relating to the clesidithe Tel Aviv
facility.

(5) In 2013, the Company incurred $1.6 million efilsrance relating to corporate overhead reductfunshermore, the $14.3 million of
impairment and other charges for the year ende@iber 31, 2013 included an $8.7 million chargetdube abandonment of patents and
technology which caused a revision of the usefaldstimate of these patents and technology assetgully impairing them (see Note 8 -
Goodwill and Identified Intangibles Assétfor more information about the accelerated araation of existing technology). a $1.9 million
impairment of an investment in NemoTek Technoldgi&., a $1.5 million impairment charge related igpdsal of an entity that furthered
advanced packaging solutions and $2.2 million seasnpairments relating to the Intellectual Proypand DigitalOptics operations.

NOTE 16 — BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement saviras fhat allows voluntary contributions by all emytes upon their hire date. Eligible
employees may elect to contribute up to the maxiraomunt allowed under Internal Revenue Servicelatigns. The Company can make
discretionary contribution under the 401(k) plamring the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 @htl, Zhe Company contributed
approximately $0.9 million , $1.4 million , and Imillion , respectively, to the 401(k) Plan.

NOTE 17 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Restructuring of the Digital Optics Segment -

On January 16, 2014, the Company announced actsging of its DigitalOptics segment to cease athaining manufacturing operations.
Therefore, the Company will no longer pursue aatyaof manufacturing and selling mems|cam prodédgart of these efforts, the
Company will be closing its facilities in Arcadi@alifornia, Rochester, New York and in Taiwan aagah. Though this action does not que
as discontinued operations at December 31, 20&3Ctimpany incurred approximately $49.0 millionrmpairment charges in the fourth
quarter related to certain assets which were iregaor written off entirely and other charges. Idiidn, we anticipate that this action is
expected to result in severance and other chafdestween $6.0 million to $9.0 million in the firsalf of 2014. For further discussion of
affected assets, see Note 8Goodwill and Identified Intangible Assétand Note 15- "Restructuring, Impairment of Long-Lived Assetd a
Other Charges."

Declaration of a Cash Dividend -

On February 7, 2014, the Board declared a casHetid of $0.10 per share of common stock, payabManch 26, 2014, for the stockholders
of record at the close of business on March 5, 2014

PTI Settlement
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On February 27, 2014, the Company announced thatifisidiary, Tessera, Inc., entered into a segthénvith Powertech Technology, Inc.,

Powertech Technology (Suzhou) Co. Ltd., and Macfoeechnology, Inc. related to their pending caséle United States District Court for
the Northern District of California.
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Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts forthe Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Balance at Charged (Credited) Charged (Credited) Balance at End of
Beginning of Year to Expenses to Other Accounts Year
Deferred income tax asset:
Valuation allowance
2011 $ 3,011 $ 4,18t $ — % 7,19¢
2012 $ 7,19¢ % 6,45 $ 93: $ 14,58:
2013 $ 14,58: $ 76,547 $ — % 91,13(
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amel(ithed'Exchange Act”)the registrant he
duly caused this report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 3, 2014

T ESSERA T ECHNOLOGIES, I NC..

By: /s/ Thomas Lacey

Thomas Lacey
Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appears\beémeby authorizes and appoints Thomas Lacey ab@éf®RAndersen, and each of them,
with full power of substitution and resubstitutiand full power to act without the other, as higtend lawful attorney-in-fact and agent to act
in his name, place and stead and to execute inahme and on behalf of each person, individuallyiarehch capacity stated below, and to file
any and all amendments to this Annual Report omF0-K, and to file the same, with all exhibitsrite, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comimisgranting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agead each of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimg), ratifying and confirming all that said atters-in-fact and agents or any of them or
their or his substitute or substitutes may lawfdéyor cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Aistréport has been signed below by the followiagspns on behalf of the registrant and in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Signature

/sl Thomas Lacey
Thomas Lacey

/s/  Robert J. Andersen
Robert J. Andersen

/s/ Richard S. Hill
Richard S. Hill

/s/ Tudor Brown
Tudor Brown

/sl John Chenault
John Chenault

/sl George Cwynar
George Cwynar

/sl Peter A. Feld
Peter A. Feld

/sl George A. Riedel
George A. Riedel

/sl Christopher A. Seams

Christopher A. Seams

/s/  Donald E. Stout
Donald E. Stout

/sl Timothy J. Stultz
Timothy J. Stultz, Ph.D.

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 3, 2014

March 3, 2014

March 3, 2014
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March 3, 2014

March 3, 2014
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Exhibit

Number

2.1%

2.2%*

2.3**

2.4**

2.5%*

2.6%*

2.7+
3.1*

3.2
4.1*
10.1*

10.2+

10.3+
10.41*

10.5*

10.6t*

10.7t*

10.8t*

10.91*

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Title

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 31, 2§ dbetween Tessera Technologies, Inc. and Skelld td. (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report anmrfr 8-K, filed on November 1, 2005, and incorpodaterein by reference)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of JulypB62among Tessera Technologies, Inc., Dalton Asitipm Corp., Digital
Optics Corporation and Carolinas Capital Corpe(fias Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current ReporForm 8-K, filed on
July 10, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of Januar$@D, mong Tessera Technologies Hungary Holding, [Ey@squad
GmbH, each of the shareholders of Eyesquad Gmbtshan A. Amir (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registt's Current Report
on Form 8-K, filed on January 31, 2007, and incoamherein by reference)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Janugrg@®8, among Tessera Technologies, Inc., ForkKerger Sub, Inc.,
FotoNation, Inc. and Yury Prilutsky, as Stockhoklégent (filed as Exhibit 2.4 to the RegistramXsnual Report on Form 10-
K, filed on February 29, 2008, and incorporatedccheby reference)

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated Mar201P, by and among, Tessera Technologies, Incitdl@iptics
Corporation and Flextronics International Ltd.€éllas Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current ReporForm 8-K, filed March
2, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment to Stock and Asset Purchase Agreemetat] dane 28, 2012, by and among Tessera Techns|dgee,
DigitalOptics Corporation and Flextronics Interoatkl Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrar@sarterly Report on Form
10-Q, filed on August 3, 2012 and incorporated imebg reference)

Amendment No. 2 to Stock and Asset Purchase Agneemated September 4, 2012, by and among Tessermdlogies, Inc.,
DigitalOptics Corporation and Flextronics Interoatil Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrar@sarterly Report on Form
10-Q, filed on November 7, 2012 and incorporatestineby reference)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated September 14, 26 amended August 29, 2012, December 19, R0drzh 2, 2013,
March 25, 2013, April 29, 2013 and May 22, 2018:ias Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterlyp&® on Form 10-Q, filed
on August 6, 2013, and incorporated herein by esfes)

Specimen Common Stock Certificate
Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Riegig and each of its directors and executive effic

Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended anceckstétctive July 31, 2013 (filed as Appendix Bhie Registrant’s
Definitive Proxy Statement, filed on April 16, 2Q18hd incorporated herein by reference)

International Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as deteand restated effective January 30, 2013 (filedppendix C to the
Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed opriA 16, 2013, and incorporated herein by referg¢nce

Limited TCC License Agreement, dated as of Oct@2r1996, by and between Tessera, Inc. and InteddCation

First Amendment to Limited TCC License Agreemeiated as of October 1, 2000, by and between Tedsetand Intel
Corporation

Second Amendment to Limited TCC License Agreemdaied as of March 22, 2002, by and between Tedseraand Intel
Corporation

Patent License Agreement, dated as of Octoberd9B,by and between Tessera, Inc. and Sharp Caiqora
Immunity Agreement, dated as of January 24, 20Q92ndl between Tessera, Inc., and Sharp Corporation

License Agreement, dated as of January 1, 200anbdyetween Tessera, Inc. and Texas Instrumests, In
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10.10t*

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

Third Amendment to Limited TCC License Agreemeittedl as of September 10, 2003, by and betweenréesse. and Intel
Corporation

Tessera Technologies, Inc. 2012 Performance Bolausf& Executive Officers and Key Employees (fiesiAppendix A to the
Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed oglfruary 17, 2012 and incorporated herein by reteren

Fifth Amended and Restated 2003 Equity IncentianRiiled as Appendix A to the Registrant’s Defindt Proxy Statement,
filed on April 1, 2010, and incorporated hereinrbference)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for the Tessera Meldyies, Inc. Fourth Amended and Restated 200&Emcentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’'s Registra Statement on Form S-8, filed June 13, 2008,iacorporated herein by
reference)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for the Tessera Meldyies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 2003 tgdncentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’'s Registra Statement on Form S-8, filed August 6, 201 encorporated herein by
reference)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (Board) for the BeasTechnologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Resta@®8 Equity Incentive
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's R&gtion Statement on Form S-8, filed August 61@0and incorporated herein
by reference)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (Romania) for theseza Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Res@288 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Regist's Registration Statement on Form S-8, filedydst 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Stock Option Agreement (International) fiee Tessera Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended arsidRed 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed Novem#g2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Tes$echnologies, Inc. Fourth Amended and Restated EoQity Incentive
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s R&gtion Statement on Form S-8, filed June 1382@@d incorporated herein
by reference)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the Tes$echnologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated ZBfity Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’'s Registra Statement on Form S-8, filed August 6, 201 encorporated herein by
reference)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Israel) for Tessera Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Reb@2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Regist's Registration Statement on Form S-8, filedyést 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Romania) ferTiessera Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended andaRas2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Regist's Registration Statement on Form S-8, filedyést 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement for the Tessezhiielogies, Inc. Fourth Amended and Restated 2@@@EIncentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Registna Statement on Form S-8, filed June 13, 2008,iacorporated herein by
reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement for the Tessehiielogies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 2008tidncentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Registra Statement on Form S-8, filed August 6, 201@ mcorporated herein by
reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement (Performance Vigtior the Tessera Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amehded Restated 2003
Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to tRegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form Sl&j August 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement (Ireland) for Tressera Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Reg2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Rémgist’'s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filadyAst 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement (Israel) for tless§era Technologies, Inc. Fifth Amended and Res2063 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Rémist’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filadyAst 6, 2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Deferred Stock Agreement (Internationaf)tfe Tessera Technologies, Inc. Fifth AmendedRestated 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed Novem#e2010, and
incorporated herein by reference)
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10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33+

10.34+

10.35+

10.36+

10.37+

10.38+

10.39+

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43+

10.44

10.45+

Tessera Technologies, Inc. International EmployteekSPurchase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to thgi&eant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, filed June 13, 2008, anorporated herein by reference)

Form of Severance Agreement with the Registrantsetive officers (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Raant’'s Current Report
on Form 8-K, filed on April 3, 2009, and incorpadtherein by reference)

Form of Amended and Restated Change in Controlri@aee Agreement with the Registrant’'s executivecefs (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Reportramm 8-K, filed on April 3, 2009, and incorporateerein by reference)
Amendment to Change in Control Severance Agreemithtthe Registrant’s executive officers (filedEehibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedMay 5, 2011, and incorporated herein by refergnce

Employment Letter, dated October 24, 2008, by atdiéen the Registrant and Bernard J. Cassidy @iseHxhibit 10.45 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed agbFuary 25, 2010, and incorporated herein by ratsspe

Employment Letter, dated August 15, 2012, by artdiben the Registrant and C. Richard Neely, Jedfds Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedMovember 7, 2012, and incorporated herein by eefs®)

Separation Agreement, dated August 14, 2012, bybahwleen the Registrant and Michael Anthofer (fésdExhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedMovember 7, 2012, and incorporated herein by eefs®)

Revised Employment Letter, dated October 3, 20§23 between the Registrant and Robert A. Youited(hs Exhibit 10.45
to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-Kdibn March 1, 2013, and incorporated herein byregice)

Settlement Agreement and General Release, dateshiber 11, 2012, by and between the Registrant armh Bob
Roohparvar (filed as Exhibit 10.46 to the RegidteaAnnual Report on Form 10-K, filed on March 013, and incorporated
herein by reference)

Consulting Agreement, dated December 11, 2012ndybatween Tessera Global Services, Inc., a wioeltyed subsidiary of
the Registrant, and Farzan Bob Roohparvar (fileBxdsbit 10.47 to the Registrant's Annual Reporfonm 10-K, filed on
March 1, 2013, and incorporated herein by refergnce

Settlement Agreement and General Release, datedrjats, 2013, by and between the Registrant aokaRil Chernicoff (filec
as Exhibit 10.48 to the Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10-K, filed on March 1, 2013, and incorpiedaherein by reference)
Consulting Agreement, dated January 15, 2013, bybatween Tessera Global Services, Inc., a wheltyenl subsidiary of the
Registrant, and Richard Chernicoff (filed as Exhilf).49 to the Registrant's Annual Report on Fo@aK1filed on March 1,
2013, and incorporated herein by reference)

Employee Letter, dated April 15, 2013, by and befwthe Company and Richard S. Hill (filed as Exhil@i.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedAugust 6, 2013, and incorporated herein by refesg

Severance Agreement, dated April 15, 2013, by atwéden the Company and Richard S. Hill (filed akiBit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filedAugust 6, 2013, and incorporated herein by refegg

Consulting Agreement, dated April 15, 2013, by hetlveen Tessera Global Services, Inc. and Dr. Rébefoung (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repartorm 10-Q, filed on August 6, 2013, and incorpedaherein by reference)
Separation Agreement and General Release, dateldlApR013, by and between the Company and DreRob. Young (filed
as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly RéeporForm 10-Q, filed on August 6, 2013, and incogted herein by
reference)

Settlement Agreement, dated May 22, 2013, by ahddsn the Registrant and Starboard Value LP (Rleéxhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed oay\24, 2013, and incorporated herein by reference)

Employment Letter, dated December 9, 2013, by ataden the Registrant and Thomas Lacey (filed &s$bix10.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed cecBmber 11, 2013, and incorporated herein by nedede
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Severance Agreement, dated December 9, 2013, bgeineen the Registrant and Thomas Lacey (filexdgbit 10.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed cecBmber 11, 2013, and incorporated herein by nedede

Change in Control Severance Agreement, dated Deze2013, by and between the Registrant and Thdraeey (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Current ReporfFomm 8-K, filed on December 11, 2013, and incorfedderein by reference)

Employment Letter, dated December 19, 2013, bytataieen the Registrant and Robert Andersen (fisexdibit 10.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed anulry 3, 2014, and incorporated herein by refeenc

Severance Agreement, dated January 2, 2014, bpeineen the Registrant and Robert Andersen (fiseléibit 10.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed anulry 3, 2014, and incorporated herein by refeenc

Change in Control Severance Agreement, dated Ja2u@014, by and between the Registrant and Rébetérsen (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-K, filed on January 3, 2014, and incorpatdterein by reference)

Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy

List of subsidiaries

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRiegistered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney (see signature page to this AhRegort on Form 10-K)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursiido Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchangeoid934

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b}lé Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptesuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

Confidential treatment has been granted astt@in portions of this agreement.
Indicates a management contract or compensplan or arrangement.

Filed as exhibits to Tessera Technologies, Inceégifration Statement on Form S-1 (SEC File No-B33518), effective
November 12, 2003, and incorporated herein by eefs.

The exhibits and schedules to this agreement hase bmitted in reliance on Item 601(b)(2) of RetjofaS-K promulgated by
the SEC, and a copy thereof will be furnished saimgntally to the SEC upon its request. Readersarioned that the
representations and warranties set forth in thisegent are qualified by those schedules, and dhmailbe relied upon as
accurate or complete without reference to thosedudes
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Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy

TESSERA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION POLICY
(Effective July 1, 2013)

Non-employee members of the board of directors‘(tBeard ) of Tessera Technologies, Inc. (th€bmpany ") shall be
eligible to receive cash and equity compensatiéecafe as of July 1, 2013 (theEffective Date "), as set forth in this Direct
Compensation Policy. The cash compensation andyeawards described in this Director Compensatiolici? shall be paid or |
made, as applicable, automatically and withouthfrriaction of the Board, to each member of the 8@dro is not an employee
the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Gomigfeach, a Non-Employee Director ") who may be eligible to receive st
cash compensation or equity awards, unless suchBENgrioyee Director declines the receipt of such @shpensation or equ
awards by written notice to the Chairman of ther@o&his Director Compensation Policy shall remairffectuntil it is revise
or rescinded by further action of the Boafthe terms and conditions of this Director CompednsaPolicy shall supersede ¢
prior cash or equity compensation arrangementsdetiwhe Company and its directors.

1. Cash Compensation

(@) Annual Board RetainerEach NonEmployee Director shall be eligible to receive amual retainer «
$35,000 for service on the Board.

(b) _Chairman and Committee Retainelrs addition, a Non-Employee Director serving as:

(i) Chairman of the Board or Lead Independeime®or, as applicable, shall be eligible to reeear
additional annual retainer of $20,000 for such isetv

(i)  Chairman of the Audit Committee shall bkgible to receive an additional annual retaine
$20,000 for such service;

(i)  Members (other than the chairman) of fhedit Committee shall be eligible to receive anidddal
annual retainer of $8,000 for such service;

(iv)  Chairman of the Compensation Committedldbeeligible to receive an additional annual ireti
of $12,000 for such service;

(v) Members (other than the chairman) of the @ensation Committee shall be eligible to receiv
additional annual retainer of $6,000 for such sEzyi

(vi) Chairman of the Nominating and Governanam@ittee shall be eligible to receive an additi
annual retainer of $8,000 for such service; and

(vi)  Members (other than the chairman) of M@minating and Governance Committee shall be dé
to receive an additional annual retainer of $4,f@0&uch service.

The foregoing annual retainer fees shall be paidash on a quarterly basis. NBEmployee directors elected
appointed during a quarter shall receive the fulirterly amount for the annual board retainer far quarter in which they ¢
elected or appointed. The chairman and committiéness shall be prorated for any portion of a tpréyr period served by a Non-
Employee Directors on a committee, as the Chairofisihe Board, or as a chairman of a committee @Bbard.

2. _Equity CompensationThe NonEmployee Directors shall be automatically grantemtls awards as provided
Section 11 of the Company’s Fifth Amended and Redta003 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended frone tiontime, the ‘Equity
Plan ). Such stock awards shall be granted under and Isdaubject to the terms and provisions of the Edeiian and shall
granted subject to the execution and delivery ofrawagreements, including attached exhibits, irstsuttially the same forr
previously approved by the Board.






Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

DigitalOptics Corporation, a Delaware corporation

DigitalOptics Corporation Asia Limited, a compamganized under the laws of Hong Kong
DigitalOptics Corporation East, a Delaware corporat

DigitalOptics Corporation Europe Limited, an Iriimited corporation

DigitalOptics Corporation Europe SRL, a Romanianitiéd liability corporation

DigitalOptics Corporation Holdings, a Delaware amgtion

DigitalOptics Corporation International, a Delawagporation

DigitalOptics Corporation Israel Limited, a compasrganized under the laws of Israel
DigitalOptics Corporation Japan GK, a Goda KaigBK) organized under the laws of Japan
DigitalOptics Corporation Korea Limited, a comparganized under the laws of Republic of Korea
DigitalOptics Corporation MEMS, a Delaware corpaat

DigitalOptics Corporation Taiwan Co., Ltd., a comparganized under the laws of Taiwan
DigitalOptics Corporation Technology Zhuhai Co.dLta company organized under the laws of the R&Rlepublic of China
Eyesquad GmbH, a company organized under the la@gmnany

Eyesquad Limited, a company organized under the EHvsrael

FotoNation Vision Limited, an Irish limited corpaian

Invensas Corporation, a Delaware corporation

Tessera, Inc., a Delaware corporation

Tessera Advanced Technologies, Inc., a Delawangocation

Tessera Electronic Miniaturization Technical Seegi¢Shanghai) Limited, a company organized undelais of the People’s Republic of
China

Tessera Global Services, Inc., a Delaware corporati

Tessera Intellectual Property Corp., a Delawarpation



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Fora8$No. 333-168597, 333-151659, 333-137933,
333-131457, 333-116369, 333-115311, 332238) of Tessera Technologies, Inc. of our regared March 3, 2014 relating to the consolid

financial statements, financial statement schedaessthe effectiveness of internal control oveaficial reporting, which appears in this Form
10-K.

San Jose, CA
March 3, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchge Act of 1934

I, Thomas Lacey, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKessera Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi¢'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are reasong
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

March 3, 2014 /sl Thomas Lacey
Thomas Lacey
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchge Act of 1934

I, Robert Andersen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKessera Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most recen
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are reasong
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2014 /s/ Robert Andersen
Robert Andersen
Executive Vice President and Chief Finah€ifficer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(b) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Tesserahihedogies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Conyda on Form 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2013 as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission (the “Report”), I, Thomas Lacglyief Executive Officer, certify,
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exghakct of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptesuaunt to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Thomas Lacey
Thomas Lacey

Chief Executive Officer
March 3, 2014

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(b) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Tesserahihedogies, Inc, a Delaware corporation (the “Conyggron Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as filed with the Securitiesixcthange Commission (the “Report”), |, Robert Arsaer, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of Sleeurities Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C.5D138s adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Robert Andersen

Robert Andersen

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
March 3, 2014

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Rule 13-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ahtd 5.C. Section 1350 has
been provided to the Registrant and will be retdibg the Registrant and furnished to the Securéed Exchange Commission or its staff u
request.



